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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENEREBEERASHN

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Eav Yin (alias Duong Khai Nhon), aged 73, is the founder of
the Company and a member of Chaozhou Committee of Guangdong
Province of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference
(EEE MMM E#HZ 8)and was appointed as an Executive Director
and the Chairman of the Company on 22nd November 2006. He is
also the chairman of the nomination committee and a member of the
remuneration committee of the Company. Mr. Eav Yin is a Cambodian
Chinese and prior to his establishing of a Hong Kong company in 1968
as an importing agent for watch distribution business in Cambodia, had
extensive experience of distributing watches in Cambodia and Vietnam.
Mr. Eav Yin is the father of Mr. Eav Ming Keong, Kinson and Mr. Duong
Ming Chi, Henry and the spouse of Mdm. Lam Kim Phung, a controlling
shareholder of the Company. Mr. Eav Yin is a director and a controlling
shareholder of Century Hero International Limited, which is a controlling
shareholder of the Company.

Mr. Eav Ming Keong, Kinson, aged 38, holds a Bachelor of Arts
degree in Interior Design and Technology and a Master of Arts degree
in Art, Design and Visual Culture from the London Guildhall University.
After graduation, Mr. Eav Ming Keong, Kinson has practiced in an
architecture firm in London for 2 years. Mr. Eav Ming Keong, Kinson
is a son of Mr. Eav Yin and a brother of Mr. Duong Ming Chi, Henry,
both are Executive Directors of the Company. He was appointed as an
Executive Director of the Company on 22nd November 2006.

Mr. Duong Ming Chi, Henry, aged 50, was educated at the University
of Southern California. Mr. Duong has more than 30 years of
experiences in the watch branding and retailing industries. He was
appointed as an Executive Director of the Company on 7th July 2011.
Before that, he was appointed as the Executive Director from the
listing of the Company in 1989 and subsequently resigned on 31st
August 1996 to pursue his personal career. Mr. Duong is a son of
the Chairman, Executive Director and controlling shareholder of the
Company, Mr. Eav Yin and is the elder brother of Mr. Eav Ming Keong,
Kinson, who is an Executive Director of the Company.

Mr. André Francois Meier (“Mr. Meier”), aged 49, holds a degree
in banking. Mr. Meier has more than 20 years experience in watch
business. He spend his last 12 years at Blancpain S.A. (10 years as vice
president and international sales manager). Mr. Meier was appointed
as the chief executive officer of Juvenia Montres S.A., a subsidiary of
the Company, on 1st September 2011 and an Executive Director of the
Company on 26th October 2011.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Lai Si Ming, aged 55, is a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors and an associate member of the Royal Institution
of Chartered Surveyors. He was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director of the Company on 8th August 1998. He is also
the chairman of the audit committee and a member of the nomination
committee and remuneration committee of the Company. Mr. Lai was
elected as the Vice Chairman, General Practice Division of the Hong
Kong Institute of Surveyors during the years from 2001 to 2003. Mr.
Lai has been practicing as a professional surveyor since 1983 and has
considerable experience in the property field. Mr. Lai holds a Master
Degree of Business Administration from Chinese University of Hong
Kong. Mr. Lai held directorship as independent non-executive director
of The Sun’s Group Limited during the years from 2002 to 2003.

Ms. Wong Wing Yue, Rosaline, aged 43, graduated with LLB (Hons)
at King’s College, London University, UK in 1992, and was admitted to
both the UK Bar (Middle Temple, UK) and the Hong Kong Bar in 1993.
Ms. Wong is a practicing barrister in Hong Kong. She was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director of the Company on 16th
December 2006. She is also a member of the nomination committee,
the audit committee and the remuneration committee of the Company.

Mr. Lee Tat Cheung, Vincent, aged 43, has more than 20 years
experience in accounting and auditing and is the sole proprietor of a
firm of Certified Public Accountants practicing in Hong Kong. Mr. Lee
is an associate member of The Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales, a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants. He holds a Master Degree in Corporate Finance
from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company on 16th December
2006. He is the chairman of the remuneration committee and also a
member of the audit committee and the nomination committee of the
Company.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Poon Kwok Sing, Sammy, aged 54, joined the Group in 1989. Mr.
Poon has considerable experience in watch retailing, wholesale and
brand management. During the period from April 1992 to March 1993,
he was elected as the Director of the Federation of Hong Kong Watch
Trades & Industries Limited which is an official association representing
the watch industry in Hong Kong. Mr. Poon is the general manager in
charge of the Group’s watch retailing business in the PRC.

Mr. Leung Shing Yiu, David, aged 49, rejoined the Group in May
2012 as the general manager in charge of the Group’s watch
retailing business in the north east region in the PRC. Mr. Leung
has considerable experience in watch retailing, wholesale, brand
management and computer system management. He holds a Bachelor
of Science degree from University of Toronto.

Mr. Cheng Ka Chung, aged 45, joined the Group in 2010. Mr. Cheng
has more than 15 years experience in finance and accounting. He holds
a Bachelor of Arts degree in Accountancy and a Master of Science
degree in Accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Mr.
Cheng is the Finance Director and Company Secretary of the Company.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

agan
BIR[E515m A A
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
IR E
2013 2012 Change
=B —F—_F =g
HK$ million HK$ million %
BEET B &5
Operations Feg—
Turnover X 1,099 1,036 6
Loss attributable to owners FEBRAQARFAEA
of the Company Z B8 (209) (61) N/A
iE A
Loss per share — Basic FREE-EX (20.76 HK cents) (6.12 HK cents) N/A
(Restated)
(20.763% fili) (6.12781) TEA
(E31)
Interim dividend declared and paid EEMRIKE 2 EHRE - -
Final dividend proposed after WEPRBRIRE 2
the end of the reporting period RHEIRR B - -
Financial position B 75 R R,
Total assets BEE 1,053 1,076 2)
Equity attributable to FBRALNRRFE AR
owners of the Company 537 539 1)
Non-controlling interests FEFERR AR R = 10 10 N/A
iE A
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Business Review

The Group’s turnover for the year was HK$1,099 million which was 6%
higher than HK$1,036 million of last year. Gross profit margin declined
from 28% to 25% due to intense market competition and stock
provision (after netting off the write back) amounting to HK$21 million
for this year. Sales from mainland China was decreased by 11% to
HK$714 million while average same store sales in China was increased
by 1% when excluded old flagship store in Beijing. Sales in Hong Kong
were increased by 66% to HK$380 million since the new shops set up
in last year were operated on a full year basis this year.

The Group had adopted a prudent approach to close down 11 non-
profitable stores and abandoned 2 new projects in Beijing & Xian
resulting in HK$42 million loss. While this had resulted in restructuring
costs, it allows us to better focus on our profitable stores and projects.

JUVENIA brand was re-launched and accounted for HK$62 million
loss during the financial period. The Group had invested HK$43 million
in JUVENIA Swiss factory for the year. JUVENIA has successfully
developed its own manufacturing watch movement caliber becoming
a genuine Swiss watch manufacturing company. The manufacturing
watch movement had successfully pasted one year independent test in
laboratoire Dubois in La Chaux de fonds.

The total number of POSs is as below (after reclassification):

S B515m R i

3 e

NEFEAKE 2 & %5 51,099,000,0008 7T © REF
[FI#AAY1,036,000,00078 0= H16% © A THIH# F R
LA RAE 7 E & E (MR B &) € %821,000,0007%
T » ERRYE28% T EFI25%  RE B AREMNIEESE
B 11%2714,000,0007 7T + ifn A B 35 R & 64 & Al
#hn1% (LR EEBEERRIN) c BEREFEBBRIUD
NTZEEHSF2EEE  AENHEER ML IN66%
Z380,000,000/8 7T °

REBERDMFBEZ % BRT—HEMNITENZE
JEEE - WHkEL AP Z M {EFEE - E%42,000,000
B2 EE  WEBREMARAN EASHEEELT
WEEREMAIEREHMIER -

B2 REEHEL - N AV BREME£62,000,00075 7T
2R FN - AEBE1%E43,000,0005 TR E 2
THE BEERMAE LB & RERNTFHRED - K
A—BEEMNR T FHREEAR - REFHEBEEK
I @@ La Chaux de fonds 2 laboratoire DuboisH]
FEBAH -

ZEEREENT (BHHRR)

As at As at

31st March 31st March

2013 2012

R=B-—=F RIZT—_F

=A=+-—H SHETr—E

Beijing k= 9 9
Shanghai lisbis} 8 10
Shenyang &5 5 8
Chengdu, Chongging, Urumugi and Wuxi K EE - SBARERED 4 7
Hong Kong &5 4 4
30 38
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Financial Review

Results review

The Group recorded a turnover of HK$1,099 million for the year ended
31st March 2013, (2012: HK$1,036 million) which was 6% higher than
last year. Sales from the mainland China decreased by 11% to HK$714
million as compared with HK$801 million of last year was due to the
slow down of the market during the second half of the year. Sales in
Hong Kong increased by 66% to HK$380 million as compared with
HK$229 million of last year due to the fact that the new POSs set up in
Hong Kong in last year were operated on a full year basis this year.

Distribution costs increased by 25% to HK$411 million as compared
with HK$328 million of last year was mainly due to the increase in
rental expenses, depreciation and advertising expenses in the mainland
China and Hong Kong as a results of full year operation of some POSs
in Hong Kong. Administrative expenses decreased by 13% to HK$47
million as compared with HK$54 million of last year which was mainly
due to the decrease in equity-settled share based payment expenses in
this year.

Valuation gains on investment properties decreased by 75% to HK$8
million as compared with HK$33 million of last year as a result of the
property stabilizing policy launched by the Hong Kong Government
during the year.

Other expenses amounting to HK$35 million this year were mainly
consisted of the onerous contract provision for some loss making POSs
of HK$12 million and write off of assets due to closure of POSs of
HK$16 million.

Finance costs increased by 122% to HK$20 million as compared with
HK$9 million of last year was due to the increase in bank loans during
the year.

The Group had abandoned two new project Beijing and Xian resulting in
HK$30 million loss for the year.

Liquidity, financial resources and capital structure

As at 31st March 2013, the Group’s total cash balance amounted to
HK$119 million (2012: HK$90 million). The increase was mainly due
to the fund raised by the Company through rights issue amounting to
around HK$205 million which is offset by the net movement in the bank
and director’s loans and the cash outflow from operating activities.
The Group has secured banking facilities amounting to HK$137 million
which were secured by certain inventories, bank deposits, leasehold
properties, prepaid lease payments, investment properties, rental
assignment, assignment of dividends and shareholder’s receivable
as well as unlimited corporate guarantee provided by the Company.
Gearing ratio of the Group, expressed as a ratio of total borrowing, over
total equity, was 50% as at 31st March 2013 (2012: 61%).

S B515m R i

i} #5 [0 &

KL

BE_ T =F=-A=+-"RLFEAEBZLEE
/1,099,000,0007%8 7T (=& — = 4 : 1,036,000,000
BIL) BREFRD6% - RAPENMAHERE
“F £9801,000,0007%8 JT L % » T [£11%%714,000,000
B BRASEFTHFEMENE - BANHEERERT
#9229,000,0007% JT, L X » 32 1166 % 380,000,000/
T EAREFERBRINHNTEEHSFE2FRLE
B EE PN °

7§85 X 7N #E 8 A 2= F #9328,000,0007% JT 3 i125% =
411,000,000 7C * TEEHRESHAZIGIN - HER
FEAMES (—LHEESEEMEFEEMEZ)H
B EFRZIEINFTE o 7T E B A F R EIA54,000,000
BT 2 13% £47,000,000/8 T © EEZE A5 F ARG
RERZNAREIZRD

& W) 3 1h B I 2= 8 A F #933,000,0007% 70 R A 75%
8,000,000/ - TERRFEHEBTBBRMTHELE
EMEBRROER -

NS E A 518 £ %8 435,000,00008 T © T ERIEAE
A E51812,000,0008 2 — LT EERFRBARERTE
JE#B1EH #916,000,0008 T8 EMEE A E S L EE -

AR E AL NRITER - B & B &R A /9,000,000
7 TT 1% 1122 % %20,000,0005 7T °

AEEASEELENEZLRMAZMEHFEE B
30,000,000/ 7T 2 E5 48 °

HBEZ  HHERRENEE
R-ZZE—=F=A=+—R FAEBHSEHL
% /119,000,000 7T (=& — = £ : 90,000,000/%
) cHEHRENEFERHARBAARAEBEREED
205,000,000/ 7c R W IRITHZEFERE  REFZE
FoUAREETEERRSRETES - AEBRTEE
4R /137,000,000 70 - RETFE - R17ExR - A
EME - ENEERE KEYE HeEERZY R
BEOMERREWKENR  URBAARAIREZE LR
DRAIBERIEAER - AEB 2B ELL X (LUFEER
BERKR) R-E—Z=F=ZA=+—HAE50% (=
T——F:61%) °
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EIRB51:m MK D ifr

Foreign exchange risks

The Group views its main currencies as Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi
and Swiss Francs. The Group monitors its exposure to foreign
exchange risks, and when it considers necessary and appropriate, will
hedge its foreign exchange risks by using financial instruments.

Prospects

The Group believes the policy announced by Party General Secretary Xi
Jinping late last year to discourage officials from extravagant spending
and displays of wealth will persist for a substantial period.

The Group has taken decisive actions to close non-profitable stores in
PRC, withhold new stores project and reduce corporate overhead. The
financial performance of our PRC retailing business unit is expected to
improve starting this month.

On 23rd June 2013, the Group has opened a new spacious Rolex
Tudor boutique at a prominent location on Canton Road in Hong Kong.
The market response has been very positive from Mainland Chinese
tourists.

The Group is determined to rebuild its financial strength and confidence
to turnaround its business.

On behalf of the Group, we sincerely thank for the kind patience of our
shareholders and positive supportive of our customers, suppliers and
associates.

12| Asia Commercial Holdings Limited
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The Directors have pleasure in submitting their report together with the
audited financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and the
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 18 on the
financial statements.

The analysis of the principal activities and geographical locations of the
operations of the Company and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) during the
financial year are set out in Note 18 on the financial statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The loss of the Group for the year ended 31st March 2013 and the state
of the Company and the Group’s affairs as at that date are set out in
the financial statements on pages 36 to 134.

SHARE CAPITAL

Particulars of the share capital of the Company during the year are set
out in Note 31 on the financial statements.

DIVIDENDS
The Directors have not declared any interim dividend (2012: Nil HK
cent) and did not propose any final dividend for the year ended 31st
March 2013.

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are set out in
Note 18 on the financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment are set out
in Note 15 on the financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the movements in investment properties during the year are
set out in Note 17 on the financial statements.

RESERVES
Details of reserves available for distribution to shareholders and

movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group during the
year are set out in Note 33 on the financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERS

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES

In December 2012, the Company repurchased a total of 7 of its listed
shares on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “HK Stock
Exchange”) from the open market at the price of HK$0.092 per share
so that the total number of listed shares was reduced to 3,417,166,100
shares after share repurchase. This ensured that the Company did
not have any fractional shares after the share consolidation of every
10 shares into 1 share effected in January 2013. Aggregate purchase
consideration paid for the repurchase was HK$0.649. The repurchase
was paid out from the Company’s retained profit.

BORROWING

Details of the bank borrowings are set out in Note 26 on the financial
statements.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

For the year ended 31st March 2013, the Group’s largest supplier
contributed approximately 31% of the total purchases for the year
and the aggregate amount of purchases attributable to the Group’s
top five suppliers represented approximately 84% of the Group’s total
purchases.

Since the customer base of the Group is very wide, the aggregate sales
attributable to the Group’s five largest customers are approximately
1.6% of total sales during the year.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders (which to
the knowledge of the Directors owning more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital) had interest in the Group’s five largest suppliers.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A financial summary of the Group for the past five financial years is set
out on pages 135 to 136.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Eav Yin (Chairman)

Mr. Eav Ming Keong, Kinson
Mr. Duong Ming Chi, Henry
Mr. André Francois Meier

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Lai Si Ming
Ms. Wong Wing Yue, Rosaline
Mr. Lee Tat Cheung, Vincent

Mr. Eav Yin, Mr. Duong Ming Chi, Henry, Ms. Wong Wing Yue, Rosaline
and Mr. Lee Tat Cheung, Vincent shall retire at the forthcoming annual
general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.
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The independent non-executive Directors are subject to retirement by
rotation in accordance with the Company’s Bye-Laws.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election has a service contract
with the Company or its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31st March 2013, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company and any associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(“SFO”)) which were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests and short positions which they were taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or which were
required to be and were recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (“Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix 10 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) were as
follows:

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company
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Number of Approximate

ordinary percentage of

shares of aggregate

HK$0.2 each/ interests to

underlying total issued

shares held share capital

BESR BEREC BT

Name of Directors Nature of interest 02BTEER IR 45
BEEgR EHEE HERGHE BYESHK
%

Mr. Eav Yin BIEE Noteffi i+ 753,287,873 55.11
Mr. Eav Ming Keong, Kinson IPLEE: Pt PersonalfE A 3,614,550* 0.26
Mr. Duong Ming Chi, Henry HRELE Personalf& A 4,089,600" 0.30
Mr. André Francois Meier André Francois Meier’t 4 Personalf A 10,022,061* 0.73
Mr. Lai Si Ming BEHRLE PersonalfiEl A 366,625* 0.03
Ms. Wong Wing Yue, Rosaline Tt Personal{@ A 366,625* 0.03
Mr. Lee Tat Cheung, Vincent TEFLE PersonalfE A 366,625 0.03
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Note: Among the 753,287,873 shares in which Mr. Eav Yin is deemed to have
interests under the SFO (a) 70,688,600 shares are personal interest of Mr.
Eav Yin of which 2,933,000 shares are share options, (b) 1,609,200 shares
are held by Mdm. Lam Kim Phung (spouse of Mr. Eav Yin), (c) 535,401,737
shares by Century Hero International Limited, (d) 1,864,800 shares by
Debonair Company Limited, (e) 19,972,728 shares by Goodideal Industrial
Limited, (f) 2,550,672 shares by Hexham International Limited, (g) 2,846,536
shares by Goodness Management Limited and (h) 118,353,600 shares
by Chanchhaya Trustee Holding Corporation (as a trustee of Eav An Unit
Trust). Century Hero International Limited, Debonair Company Limited,
Hexham International Limited, and Goodness Management Limited are
wholly owned and Goodideal Industrial Limited is 87% owned by Mr. Eav
Yin. Eav An Unit Trust is a discretionary trust of which Mr. Eav Yin is the
founder, the beneficiaries include Mr. Eav Yin, his wife and their children.

& All the 3,614,550 shares are personal interest of Mr. Eav Ming Keong,
Kinson of which 2,199,750 shares are share options.

u All the 4,089,600 shares are personal interest of Mr. Duong Ming Chi,
Henry.

* All the interests are related to the share options held by the respective
Directors.

Save as disclosed herein and in the section headed “SHARE OPTION
SCHEME”, as at 31st March 2013, none of the Directors or chief
executive of the Company had any interests or short positions in
the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) which were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which they are taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO) or which were required to
be recorded in the register kept by the Company under Section 352
of the SFO or which were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code. In addition, save
as disclosed above, none of the Directors or chief executive of the
Company nor their spouses or children under 18 years of age had been
granted or had exercised any rights to subscribe for any equity or debt
securities of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO).
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS IFiEREXS
The Group had made certain continuing connected transactions with BE_Z—=FZA=+—HIWEYKRFEHHE -
a connected person group during the four financial years ended 31st AEBECHBEATETE TIHERERS  FBW

March 2013, details as below: T:
Transactions with the following entities are considered as continuing BT EEB /7R HEEAEEBFEENFERESS -

connected transactions for the relevant years.

Name of party Relationship

=L 2RES

Eav Yin The Chairman and executive director and controlling shareholder of the
Company

B RRABEFFRAITES LIERER

Connected Persons Group Companies ultimately controlled by an associate of Mr. Eav Yin and for the
avoidance of doubt, excluding the Group

BEALEE BRBBIEE—MHMARARZHZAT  ARERM  TREFEE

Lucky Linker Limited A member of the Connected Persons Group
HEALTEBENKE
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2013 2012 2011 2010
—E-=Z§ T ZT-——% ZIT-IZF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
HiE FET FET FET FET
(Restated)
(&%)
Sales of watch movements to: HEFHBET
a member of Connected Persons Group BEATEEKE (iv) 4,471 6,343 1,498 -
Purchase of watch movements from: REF&HHEOH
a member of Connected Persons Group MEATEEKE (iv) - 1,276 12,430 2,635
Provision of subsidised advertising REBELEBRTS
and marketing support to: BEEXE 7
Lucky Linker Limited Lucky Linker Limited (i) 1,950 937 - -
Leasing of offices and warehouses to: HERAERAET :
Lucky Linker Limited Lucky Linker Limited (ii) 126 126 126 126
a member of Connected Persons Group BEATEEKE 564 509 86 -
a member of Connected Persons Group MEATEBEKE 738 467 - -
1,428 1,102 212 126
Purchase of products from: REBERH: (iii)
a member of Connected Persons Group BEATEEKE 5,288 1,939 24 35
a member of Connected Persons Group ~ BiEATSEKE 67 50 - -
a member of Connected Persons Group BEATEENKE 456 58 - -
Lucky Linker Limited Lucky Linker Limited 3,054 1,974 - 2,047
8,865 4,021 24 2,082
Note: Hiat -
(i)  Provision of subsidised advertising and marketing support services () RUEBESEUERTEEBRIERE
The Group participated in the marketing programs and activities for KNEMS B Lucky Linker Limited 2 it 2 5 # E &2l
promoting and enhancing the image of branded watches supplied by Lucky FOE®) - DAMREM A mIEFHRAT R - Bt - BLucky
Linker Limited. In return, Lucky Linker Limited subsidised the Group by Linker Limited[A A B EESFHEEAEMAER -
paying an advertising subsidy to the Group.
(ii) Leasing of offices and warehouses (i) HEBAERAE
The Group leased certain premises owned by the Group to Lucky Linker SEEABAREEERZE T YWE TLucky Linker
Limited and other members of the Connected Persons Group for rental Limited X BB A TEBEMAK B A BERTBESUA ©
income.
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(iii) Purchase of products

The Group purchased products from Lucky Linker Limited and other
members of the Connected Persons Group including watches, watch spare
parts and components (including watch movements), watch accessories
and packaging. The Group also outsourced watch assembly, processing
and after-sales services such as maintenance and repairs to the Connected
Persons Group. The purchase of products includes the fees and charges for
these services.

(iv) Trading of watch movements

The Group conducted trading of watch movements with a member of the
Connected Persons Group.

The continuing connected transactions have been reviewed by the
independent non-executive Directors. The independent non-executive
Directors have confirmed that the continuing connected transactions
have been entered into:

(a) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(o) on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable to
the Group than terms available to or from (as the case may be)
independent third parties; and

(c) on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole.

For the purpose of Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, auditors of the
Company, has confirmed to the Company regarding the continuing
connected transactions disclosed above that nothing has come to the
auditor’s attention that causes them to believe that:

1. the disclosed continuing connected transactions have not been
approved by the Company’s board of directors;

2. the transactions were not, in all material respects, in accordance
with the pricing policies of the Company; and

3. the transactions were not entered into, in all material respects, in
accordance with the terms governing such transactions.

The Company confirmed that it has disclosed the continuing connected
transactions and the details of the continuing connected transactions
mentioned above pursuant to the disclosure requirements of Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed herein the section headed “CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS”, no contracts of significance to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
Director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 20th September 2002, the shareholders of the Company approved
the adoption of a new share option scheme (the “2002 Share Option
Scheme”). The purpose of the 2002 Share Option Scheme is to
encourage qualifying grantees to work towards enhancing the value
of the Company and its shares for the benefit of the Company and its
shareholders as a whole. Qualifying grantees of the 2002 Share Option
Scheme mean (i) any employee or any business-related consultant,
agent, representative or advisor of the Company or any subsidiary or
any affiliate; or (ii) any supplier, agent or consultant who provide goods
or services to the Company or any subsidiary or any affiliate; or (iii) any
customer of the Company or any subsidiary or any affiliate; or (iv) any
business ally or joint venture partner of the Company or any affiliate.

Refreshment of 2002 Share Option Scheme mandate limit (the
“Refreshment”) and amendment of rules of 2002 Share Option Scheme
(the “Amendment”) had been approved at the annual general meeting of
the Company held on 26th August 2008. Details of the Refreshment and
the Amendment were contained in the circular to shareholders dated
1st August 2008. The 2002 Share Option Scheme has been expired on
20th September 2012.

The Company has issued 146,800,000 and 34,170,000 share options
to the qualifying grantees to subscribe for ordinary shares of HK$0.02
each in the share capital of the Company under the 2002 Share Option
Scheme on 31st March 2011 and 26th October 2011 of which the
exercise prices were HK$0.394 per share and HK$0.263 per share
respectively. Upon the completion of the share consolidation and
rights issue in January 2013 and February 2013 respectively, both the
exercise prices and the numbers of share options have been adjusted
according to the 2002 Share Option Scheme. As of 31st March 20183,
the outstanding amount of share options was 42,871,661.

The exercise price of any share option is the highest of (i) the nominal
value of a share; (ii) the closing price of the share as stated in the daily
quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange on the date of grant; and (iii)
the average closing price of the share as stated in the daily quotation
sheets of the Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant.

The validity period of share options shall be vested in the grantees over
a time period of five years commencing from the date of grant above.
For each of such five years, 20% of the share options granted to the
grantees will vest. The vested share options shall be valid for a period
of ten years from the date of grant and shall lapse at the expiry of the
option period.

The total number of shares available for issue under the 2002 Share
Option Scheme, the share award plan approved by the shareholders
of the Company on 13th September 2010 and any other share
option schemes, after adjustment made for the share subdivision in
November 2010, the share consolidation in January 2013 and the rights
issue in February 2013, was 58,782,332 shares which represented
approximately 4.3% of the issued share capital of the Company at 31st
March 2013. In respect of the maximum entitlement of each grantees
under the 2002 Share Option Scheme, the number of shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of the share options granted to each
grantees in any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the Company’s
ordinary shares in issue.
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As at 31st March 2013, the Directors and employees of the Company ﬁé:%—zizﬁ i-?—— B ARREENEIEA
had the following interests in share options to subscribe for shares LTRERAFT —_ZEZ _iﬁ%ﬂﬂgﬁ% NEmERE
of the Company (market value per share at 31st March 2013 was T%%Z%H%%E%ﬁ%- EANTZRG (R-—T—=%
HK$0.231) granted for a nominal consideration.under the ?002 Share = H=+—BERTIEEER. 231/;570 7 B R A
Option Sc‘heme‘ of the Company. Th.e share opt|on.s are unlisted. !Each BIE L E %% 5— ﬁ%ﬂx%%ﬁ%?ﬁ*ﬁ)\a,u\ﬁﬁzli’z}ETO.Q
share option gives the holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary ST — B R HEF o
share of HK$0.2 of the Company. ! ORI
Adjustments
for share
No. of shares options
No. of share No.of acquired on pursuant
options share  exercise of to share
outstanding ~ No. of share options share consolidation ~ No. of share
at the options lapsed options  and rights options Period Period during
beginning of granted during during issue during outstanding during which which share
the year during the year the year the year  at year end share options options are Exercise
Ef theyear n ERfIR REERRH Ex are vested exercisable price per
Directors HATEN  FAREH %%z  BREER AURERN  HEOEN Date of grant EER e share
-H BREZE BREZE BREZE 2RO¥E  BRESRE  BREHE REAH ERENER BRENER SRIEE
Mr. Eav Yin 10,000,000 - - - (7,067,000 2,933,000 31st March 2011 30th March 2012 to 30th March 2012 to HKS1.344
BLRE Z3-F 30th March 2016 30th March 2021 134457
S :Z:E B=tBE ZE-C£zf=tBEE
“3-7AEzf=1R “EC-EZf1H
Mr. Eav Ming Keong, Kinson 7,500,000 - - - (5300250 2,199,750 31st March 2011 30th March 2012 to 30th March 2012 to HKS1.344
ARMEE 3 30th March 2016 30th March 2021 13445 T
=A=t-R Z-Z¥ZA=1RZE :E:E R=1RZ
ZE-REZASTR ZEC-%ZAC1A
Mr. André Francois Meier 34,170,000 - - - (24147939 10,022,061 26th Octobr 2011 25th October 2012 to 25th October 2012 to HK$0.897
André Francois Meier % £ “5--F 25th October 2016 25th October 2021 0897 T
th-trA CE-CETBCTRAE CE-CFTACTEAR
“E-RETACTER CE--£1ACTEA
Mr. Lai Si Ming 1,250,000 - - - (883379) 366,625 31st March 2011 30th March 2012 to 30th March 2012 to HKS1.344
BERLE 5% 30th March 2016 30th March 2021 134437
ZB=t-H “%- 7& F=tREZ —E-Z§zA=1RHE%
“E-REZfZ1H :T:7¢7H7$B
Ms. Wong Wing Yue, Rosaline 1,250,000 - - - (883379) 366,625 31st March 2011 30th March 2012 to 30th March 2012 to HKS1.344
@t 3% 30th March 2016 30th March 2021 134487
ZASt-R SEEIASHAE R-sREAIiAE
% M¢7H7+E _;_—ﬁ,ﬂ,fﬁ
Mr. Lee Tat Cheung, Vincent 1,250,000 - - - (883,375) 366,626 31st March 2011 30th March 2012 to 30th March 2012 to HK$1.344
TEELE “F-F 30th March 2016 30th March 2021 134487
ZA=+-H ‘ff‘i_ﬂ"fﬁﬂ ZR-IE-f=TRE
“E-REZAZ1H ZEI-E=A=1H
Employees 97,800,000 - (7,050,000 - (64,133,025 26,616,975 31st March 2011 30th March 2012 to 30th March 2012 to HK$1.344
EI “R--f 30th March 2016 30th March 2021 130457
Zf=1-1 “%- ‘i A=tBE ZF-CEZf=tRZ
“E-REZAZ1A :Z:*i,ﬂ,+a
Totalf 3 153,220,000 - (7,050,000) - (103,298,339) 42,871,661
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The share options granted to the Directors are registered under the
names of the Directors who are also the beneficial owners. The closing
prices of the Company’s shares immediately before the date of grant
of the share options on 31st March 2011 and 26th October 2011 were
HK$0.39 and HK$0.26 respectively.

During the year, 7,050,000 share options were lapsed under the 2002
Share Option Scheme.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed herein, at no time during the year, was the Company
or any of its associated corporations a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate
and none of the Directors or their spouses or children under 18 years of
age was granted any right to subscribe for any shares in, or debentures
of, the Company or any of its associated corporations.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year and up to the date of this report, no Director is
considered to have interests in the businesses which compete or are
likely to compete with the businesses of the Group pursuant to the
Listing Rules.

CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, OPTIONS, WARRANTS OR SIMILAR
RIGHTS

In addition to the share options granted under the 2002 Share Option
Scheme as disclosed herein, the Company entered into a placing
agreement with the placing agent on 31st August 2010, pursuant to
which the placing agent conditionally agreed, to procure placees to
subscribe for convertible notes (the “Convertible Notes”) issued by the
Company in an aggregate principal amount of up to HK$100,800,000
on a “best-efforts” basis. On 27th September 2010, the Company
completed the placing of HK$100,800,000 Convertible Notes to
independent placees. The Convertible Notes carry interest at 3% per
annum and the principal amounts of all Convertible Notes shall be
due and repayable on the third anniversary of the date of issue. The
Convertible Notes entitle their holders to convert their outstanding
principal amounts into new conversion shares at the initial conversion
price of HK$0.84 per conversion share (subject to anti-dilutive
adjustment). Pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Convertible
Notes, the Conversion Price of the Convertible Notes was adjusted
from HK$0.84 per Conversion Share to HK$0.168 per subdivided share
as a result of the share subdivision approved by the shareholders of
the Company on 12th November 2010. The above adjustment took
effect from the close of business of 15th November 2010. Upon the
completion of the share consolidation and the rights issue in January
2013 and February 2013, the conversion price of the Convertible Notes
was further adjusted to HK$1.68 and HK$0.573 per share respectively.
The final adjustment was effective on 16th January 2013. The
General Mandate (2009), which has not been used before the placing
agreement, will be used for the allotment and issue of the conversion
shares. As of 31st March 2013, an aggregate principal amount of
HK$69,500,000 has been converted into shares of the Company.
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On 13th September 2010, the shareholders of the Company approved
the adoption of a share award plan (the “Share Award Plan 2010”).
The Share Award Plan 2010 is a ten-year discretionary share award
and ownership plan. It is primarily for encouraging or facilitating the
holding of shares by those selected employees of the Group who, as
determined by the Board, are eligible to participate in the plan and to
whom new shares are or will be awarded. The Directors will make use
of the plan to award new shares to those selected employees of the
Group on suitable terms as incentives and rewards for their contribution
to the Group.

No award was granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed during the year.
Save as disclosed herein, the Company had no other outstanding
convertible securities, options, warrants or similar rights as at 31st
March 2013 and there was no issue or exercise of any such other
convertible securities, options, warrants or similar rights during the
year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS

As at 31st March 2013, so far as is known to any Directors and chief
executive of the Company, the following persons (other than the
Directors or chief executive of the Company) had an interest or short
position in the shares and underlying shares of the Company, being
5% or more of the Company’s issued share capital, which fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
the Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register kept by
the Company or required to be notified under Section 336 of the SFO:
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Notes:

1. These shares include 1,609,200 shares held by Mdm. Lam Kim Phung and
the remaining 751,678,673 shares represent the interest held by Mr. Eav
Yin, spouse of Mdm. Lam Kim Phung, whose interests are disclosed in the
above section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures”.

2. Century Hero International Limited is wholly owned by Mr. Eav Yin who is
also a director of this company.

3. Chanchhaya Trustee Holding Corporation is trustee of Eav An Unit Trust, a
discretionary trust, the beneficiaries of which include Mr. Eav Yin, his wife
and their children.

All the interests disclosed above represent long positions in shares of
the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31st March 2013, there were no other
person (other than the Directors or chief executive of the Company)
who was recorded in the register of the Company as having an interest
or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provision of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or, which were recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the
SFO.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-Laws although there is no restriction against such right under
Bermuda law.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

There are 451 employees in the Group as at 31st March 2013. The
Group offers competitive remuneration packages to employees in line
with market trends. Incentives such as discretionary bonuses and
shares under share award plan are offered to motivate employees.

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence.

The emoluments of the Directors of the Company are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating
results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.
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PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this annual
report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float under
the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2013 were
audited by CCIF CPA Limited. A resolution will be submitted at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to re-appoint CCIF
CPA Limited as auditor of the Company.

EXPRESSION OF GRATITUDE

The Board would like to take this opportunity to express its gratitude
to all staff members, shareholders, bankers, customers, suppliers and
professional advisors for the sincere support to the Group.

By Order of the Board

Eav Yin
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28th June 2013
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

PREIWS

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintain a high standard of corporate
governance practices by emphasising a quality board of directors,
sound internal control, transparency and accountability to all the
shareholders of the Company.

The Company has complied with all the code provisions set out in the
Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code”) contained in
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31st March
2013 except for the deviation from code provisions A.4.1 and D.1.4 and
those discussed below:

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda and enacted by private
act, the Asia Commercial Holdings Limited Company Act, 1989 of
Bermuda (the “1989 Act”). Pursuant to section 3(e) of the 1989 Act,
director holding office as executive chairman or managing director shall
not be subject to retirement by rotation at each annual general meeting
as provided in the Bye-Laws.

As the Company is bounded by the provisions of the 1989 Act, at this
time, the Bye-Laws cannot be amended to fully reflect the requirements
of the Code. As such, a special resolution was passed at the special
general meeting held on 28th March 2007 to amend the Bye-Laws of
the Company so that, inter alia, (i) every director (save for a director
holding office as Chairman or Managing Director) of the Company shall
be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years;
(i) a director may be removed by an ordinary resolution in general
meeting instead of a special resolution; and (iii) any director appointed
by the Board to fill a casual vacancy or as an additional director shall
hold office until the next following general meeting, instead of the next
annual general meeting.

To enhance good corporate governance practice, Mr. Eav Yin, the
Chairman of the Board has confirmed to the Board that he will
voluntarily retire from his directorship at annual general meeting of the
Company at least once every three years in order for the Company to
comply with the Code, provided that being eligible for re-election, he
may offer himself for re-election at the annual general meeting.

Code provision A.4.1 of the Code provides that non-executive director
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election.

During the year, the non-executive directors of the Company are not
appointed for a specific term but are subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every three years and re-election at the annual general
meeting in accordance with the Company’s Bye-Laws. As such, the
Company considers that sufficient measures have been taken to ensure
that the Company’s corporate governance practices are not less
exacting than those in the Code.

Code provision D.1.4 stipulates that directors should clearly understand
delegation arrangements in place. The Company should have formal
letters of appointment for directors setting out the key terms and
conditions of their appointments.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company has not entered into any written letters of appointment
with its Directors. However, the Board recognises that (i) the Directors
have already been subject to the laws and regulations applicable to
directors of a company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited, including the Listing Rules as well as the fiduciary duties to
act in the best interests of the Company and its shareholders; (ii) all
of them are well established in their professions; and (iii) the current
arrangement has been adopted by the Company for several years and
has proven to be effective. Therefore, the Board considers that the
Directors are able to carry out their duties in a responsible and effective
manner under the current arrangement.

The Board has updated its corporate governance principles and
practices by adopting the revised code provisions contained in the
Corporate Governance Code in the Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules
with effect from 1st April 2012. It also approved the revised terms of
reference of the audit committee and remuneration committee and
the establishment of a nomination committee on the said date. The
Board will continuously review and improve the corporate governance
practices and standards of the Company to ensure that business
activities and decision making processes are regulated in a proper and
prudent manner.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code for securities transactions by
Directors of the Company (the “Code of Conduct”) on terms no less
exacting than the required standard of the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules.

Having made specific enquiry with all the Directors of the Company, all
of them confirmed that they have complied with the required standards
set out in the Model Code and the Code of Conduct during the year
ended 31st March 2013.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Company
and oversees the Group’s business, strategic decisions and financial
performance. The management of the Group is responsible for the
day-to-day management and operation of the respective individual
business unit.

The Board comprises four Executive Directors and three independent
non-executive Directors. The biographical details of the Directors are
set out on page 4 of this annual report.

The Board possesses a balance of skills and experience which are
appropriate for the requirements of the business of the Company. The
opinions raised by the independent non-executive Directors of the
Company in the Board meetings facilitate the maintenance of good
corporate governance practices. One of the independent non-executive
Directors has the appropriate professional accounting experience and
expertise as required by Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules. A balanced
composition of Executive and non-executive Directors also generates
a strong independent element on the Board, which allows independent
and objective decision making process for the best interests of the
Company.
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PREIWS

The Company has received from each independent non-executive
Director an annual confirmation of his/her independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company considers all of them to
be independent.

The Board meets regularly to review the financial and operating
performance of the Group. During the year, 4 Board regular meetings
were held. Moreover, 2 Audit Committee meetings, 1 Remuneration
Committee meeting and 1 Nomination Committee meeting were
held during the year. The individual attendance of Directors in these
meetings was set out below:

ARTBERSEBLIFRTEFRE L TRAEA3
GRABISBHRMZ FERRBERSR  MARAR
BHABIFNTEFIBBIAL -

EXgrfRe  URIAEEZEBREBRE - &
FE EFSRTUREHSE - W RFEEERTT
TREBREE® —AFMHMEEGEENR-RREE

AEes ZSEREEEZAULELSHEMT

BEE®

Audit Remuneration Nomination
Board Committee Committee Committee
Name of Director meetings meetings meetings meetings
BExnR Exeges BERZEE8E VHZEESSE REZEE88E
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Eav Yin BTkt 4/4 N/AT 3 B 11 11
Mr. Eav Ming Keong, Kinson 15 BA 98 S A 3/4 N/A i A N/A i N/AT 3 A
Mr. Duong Ming Chi, Henry AR E 4/4 N/AT 48 N/AT 3 N/AT 3
Mr. André Francois Meier André Francois Meierst 4 4/4 N/AT 38 A N/AT 3 F N/AT 3 F
Independent non-executive BIUFHTES
Directors
Mr. Lai Si Ming HBERLE 4/4 2/2 1/1 1/1
Ms. Wong Wing Yue, Rosaline THEIFZLT 3/4 1/2 1/1 0/1
Mr. Lee Tat Cheung, Vincent TERELE 4/4 2/2 11 1/1

Mr. Eav Yin, the Chairman of the Company, is the father of Mr. Eav
Ming Keong, Kinson and Mr. Duong Ming Chi, Henry who are both
Executive Directors of the Company. Save as disclosed herein, there is
no financial, business, family or other material or relevant relationship
among members of the Board or between the Chairman and the chief
executive officer.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Chairman is Mr. Eav Yin while the function of the chief executive
officer is divided between the remaining Executive Directors.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Code provision A.4.1 of the Code provides that non-executive director
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election.

During the year, the non-executive Directors of the Company are not
appointed for a specific term but are subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years and re-election at annual general meeting
in accordance with the Company’s Bye-Laws. As such, the Company
considers that sufficient measures have been taken to ensure that the
Company’s corporate governance practices are not less exacting than
those in the Code.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Board has set up a nomination committee on 1st April 2012. The
principle duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing the
structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and
experience) of the Board at least annually and make recommendations
on any proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy, identifying individuals suitably qualified to become
Board members and select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships, assessing
the independence of independent non-executive Directors and making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment
of Directors and succession planning for Directors, in particular the
Chairman and the chief executive.

The Nomination Committee comprises one Executive Director, namely
Mr. Eav Yin and three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr.
Lai Si Ming, Ms. Wong Wing Yue, Rosaline and Mr. Lee Tat Cheung,
Vincent. The Nomination Committee is chaired by Mr. Eav Yin.

During the year, the Nomination Committee held 1 meeting to review
the structure, size and composition of the Board and to assess the
independence of independent non-executive directors and make
recommendations to the Board on the re-appointment of directors.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Board set up the Remuneration Committee on 15th July 2005 with
specific written terms of reference which clearly deal with its authority
and duties. The terms of reference have been updated during the
year in line with the revised Corporate Governance Code requirement
effective from 1st April 2012. The Remuneration Committee’s role is
to make recommendation to the Board on the remuneration policy
and structure for Directors and senior management and to ensure that
they are fairly rewarded for their individual contribution to the Group’s
overall performance, having regard to the interests of shareholders. The
principal duties of the Remuneration Committee include determining
the specific remuneration packages of all Directors and senior
management as well as reviewing and approving performance-based
remuneration by reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved
by the Board from time to time.

The Remuneration Committee comprises one Executive Director,
namely Mr. Eav Yin and three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Lai Si Ming, Ms. Wong Wing Yue, Rosaline and Mr. Lee Tat
Cheung, Vincent. The Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mr. Lee
Tat Cheung, Vincent.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee held 1 meeting to
advise the Board on the Group’s overall policy and structure of the
remuneration of the Directors and senior management. No Director or
any of his/her associates may be involved in any decisions as to his/her
own remuneration. Based on the review and discussion at the meeting,
the Remuneration Committee recommended to the Board to approve
the Group’s overall policy and structure of the remuneration of the
Directors and senior management.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31st March 2013, the total remuneration of the
auditors of the Group for statutory audit services and other services
is HK$1,621,000 (2012: HK$1,110,000) and HK$617,000 (2012:
HK$318,000) respectively.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board set up the Audit Committee in 1st January 1999 with specific
written terms of reference which clearly deal with its authority and
duties. The Audit Committee’s role is to review the Group’s financial
reporting, internal controls and corporate governance issues and to
make relevant recommendations to the Board.

The Audit Committee currently comprises three independent
non-executive Directors namely Mr. Lai Si Ming, Ms. Wong Wing Yue,
Rosaline and Mr. Lee Tat Cheung, Vincent. The Audit Committee is
chaired by Mr. Lai Si Ming.

Under its terms of reference, which were prepared and adopted with
reference to the Code and “A Guide for the Formation of an Audit
Committee” published by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, the Audit Committee is required, among other things,
to oversee the relationship with the external auditors, to review the
Group’s interim and annual results, to review the scope, extent and
effectiveness of internal control of the Group, to review accounting
policies and practices adopted by the Group, to engage independent
legal or other advisors as it determines is necessary and to perform
investigations.

The Audit Committee held 2 meetings during the year to review,
among other things, the interim and annual financial statements. Based
on the review and discussion at the meetings, the Audit Committee
recommended to the Board, among other things, to approve the interim
and annual financial statements of the Group.

TRAININGS OF DIRECTORS AND COMPANY SECRETARY

During the year, the Company has arranged training for all the Directors
with a view to refresh their knowledge and skills. During the year, the
Company Secretary of the Company has complied with the relevant
training requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year under review, there is no change in the Company’s
constitutional documents.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board acknowledges its responsibilities for preparing the financial
statements where were prepared in accordance with statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards. A statement by
the auditor about their reporting responsibilities is set out on pages
34 to 35 of this annual report. As far as the Board is aware, there are
no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

INTERNAL CONTROL

During the year, the Board, with the establishment of internal audit
department, had reviewed the effectiveness of the system of internal
control of the Group including material controls over financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management functions.

In addition, the Board has considered the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s accounting and
financial reporting function, and their training programmes and budget.

SHAREHOLDER COMMUNICATION

The objective of shareholder communication is to provide our
shareholders with detailed information about the Company so that they
can exercise their rights as shareholders in an informed manner.

The Company uses a range of communication tools to ensure its
shareholders are kept well informed of key business imperatives. These
include general meetings, interim and annual reports, announcements
and circulars. Procedure for voting by poll has been read out by the
chairman at the general meetings.

At the annual general meeting held on 5th September 2012, all
directors (except Ms. Wong Wing Yue, Rosaline) were present to
answer questions raised by shareholders and a separate resolution was
proposed by the chairman in respect of each separate issue, including
re-election of Directors, and voted by way of poll. The Company
announced the results of the poll in the manner prescribed under the
Listing Rules.

At the special general meeting held on 7th January 2013, for the
purpose of approving the consolidation of shares, right issues and
increase of share capital, all directors (expect Mr. André Francois
Meier) were present. The members of the Independent Board
Committee have attended the special general meeting to answer the
questions related to the right issues.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for special general meetings requisitioned by the
shareholders

Shareholders holding not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company (“Requisitionists”) shall have the right to require a special
general meeting to be called and propose any matter to be considered
at the general meeting of the Company. The Requisitionists may
deposit the written requisition for special general meeting (which shall
specify the full name of the Requisitionists, the business and proposal
to be considered at the general meeting of the Company, and shall be
signed by the Requisitionists) to the principal place of business of the
Company for the attention of the Board. If within twenty-one days of
such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting in
specified days as provided by the bye-laws of the Company and the
Listing Rules, the Requisitionists themselves may do so in accordance
with the provisions of Section 74(3) of the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda.
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Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election as a
director

Bye-law 103 of the Bye-laws of the Company provides that no person,
other than a retiring Director, shall, unless recommended by the Board
for election, be eligible for election to the office of Director at any
general meeting, unless notice in writing of the intention to propose
that person for election as a Director and notice in writing by that
person of his willingness to be elected shall have been lodged at the
Head Office or at the Registration Office at least seven days before the
date of the general meeting. The period for lodgment of the notices
required under this Bye-law will commence no earlier than the day after
the dispatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed for such
election and end no later than 7 days prior to the date of such general
meeting.

Accordingly, if a shareholder of the Company (the “Shareholder”)
wishes to propose a person other than a director of the Company
for election as a director of the Company at the general meeting (the
“Proposal”), he/she should lodge at the principal place of business in
Hong Kong of the Company at 19th Floor, 9 Des Voeux Road West,
Hong Kong (i) a written notice setting out the Proposal; and (ii) a written
notice signed by the person to be proposed of his willingness to be
elected.

In order for the Company to inform all Shareholders of the Proposal,
the written notice must state the full name of the person proposed
for election as a director of the Company, include the person’s
biographical details as required under rule 13.51(2) of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and such other information (e.g.
contact details, including residential address, telephone number, and
HKID card/passport number, etc.), and be signed by the Shareholder
concerned.

The period for lodgment of above written notices shall commence not
earlier than the day after the dispatch of the notice of general meeting
and end no later than seven (7) days prior to the date of the general
meeting. The Company is required under rule 13.70 of the Listing Rules
to provide the information about the Proposal in a supplementary
circular or by way of an announcement not later than 10 business days
before the general meeting. If the above written notices are received
by the Company less than 21 days prior to the general meeting,
the Company may need to consider the adjournment of the general
meeting.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Procedures for shareholders to put forward proposals at general
meetings

Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act, either any number of the
registered shareholders holding not less than one-twentieth (5%) of the
paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company (“Requisitionists”), or not less than 100 of
such registered shareholders can request the Company in writing to: (a)
give to shareholders of the Company entitled to receive notice of the
next general meeting notice of any resolution which may properly be
moved and is intended to be moved at that meeting; and (b) circulate
to shareholders entitled to have notice of any general meeting sent to
them any statement of not more than one thousand words with respect
to the matter referred to in any proposed resolution or the business to
be dealt with at that meeting.

The requisition signed by all the Requisitionists may consist of
several documents in like form, each signed by one or more of the
Requisitionists; and it must be deposited at the principal place of
business of the Company with a sum reasonably sufficient to meet
the Company’s relevant expenses, not less than six weeks before
the meeting in case of a requisition requiring notice of a resolution or
not less than one week before the meeting in the case of any other
requisition. Provided that an annual general meeting is called for a
date six weeks or less after the requisition has been deposited, the
requisition though not deposited within the time required shall be
deemed to have been properly deposited for the purposes thereof.

For any enquiry to the Board, shareholders may put forward a written
enquiry to the Company setting out details of contact (including
address and fax number etc.) by the following means:

Address: 19/F, 9 Des Voeux Road West, Hong Kong
Fax No.: 852-28179043

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties as set out below:

1. develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations;

2. review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management;

3. review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

4. develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees and directors; and

5. review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report under Appendix
14 to the Listing Rules.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B 1% SENER S

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
ASIA COMMERCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Asia
Commercial Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 36 to 134, which comprise
the consolidated and company statements of financial position as at
31st March 2013, the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal
control relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31st
March 2013, and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

EMPHASIS OF MATTERS

We draw attention in note 2 to the financial statements which indicate
that the Group incurred a loss attributable to owners of the Company
of HK$208,746,000 and net cash outflow from operating activities of
HK$56,094,000 for the year ended 31st March 2013 and the Group had
net debts of HK$150,969,000 as at 31st March 2013. Notwithstanding
the above, the consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on a going concern basis, the validity of which depends on the ability
of the Group and the Company to attain profitable and positive
cashflows from operations and the financial support from banks and
the controlling shareholder. The conditions, along with other matters
as set forth in note 2 to the financial statements, indicate the existence
of a material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt about the
Group’s and the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. Our
opinion is not qualified in respect of this matter.

CCIF CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 28th June 2013

Lam Cheung Shing
Practising Certificate Number P03552
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

meRmE

For the year ended 31st March 2013 #HE—-ZT—=F=A=+—HILFE

2013 2012
—E-=F —E—_F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FET FET
Turnover ] 5 1,098,593 1,036,249
Cost of sales $HE R AN (828,534) (741,421)
Gross profit EF 270,059 294,828
Valuation gains on investment properties wEMEZ HERE 17 7,792 33,201
Other revenue H Az 6 26,300 17,176
Distribution costs P2 1D (410,967) (328,033)
Administrative expenses THER (46,673) (54,488)
Other net loss HAthE18 558 7 (34,957) (4,435)
Finance costs B 75 B AR 9(a) (19,905) (8,977)
Loss before taxation MRBATE R 9 (208,351) (50,728)
Income tax FriS %t 11 (393) (10,042)
Loss for the year KEEEFIE (208,744) (60,770)
Attributable to: SHER
Owners of the Company AATEEA (208,746) (60,770)
Non-controlling interests FERRRER 2 -
(208,744) (60,770)
(Restated)
(E7)
Loss per share BREE 14
Basic (HK cents) B CGEM) (20.76) (6.12)
Diluted (HK cents) s OBW) (20.76) (6.12)

The notes on pages 44 to 134 form part of these financial statements.

FA4REF1B48 Z TR ISR Z R BB (D -

Details of dividends payable to owners of the Company attributable to
profit for the year are set out in Note 13.

EEBRAFERAZBEMTARGFEAZFEEB
B RAKIFE13 -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GERENER

For the year ended 31st March 2013 #HZ_—%

—=F=A=+—HIFE

2013 2012
—E-=F —E—_F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Loss for the year KEEEFIE (208,744) (60,770)
Other comprehensive (loss)/income AEEHMEE(FHFE) WE
for the year
Exchange differences on translation of WMEBING B N R B S Rk
financial statements of overseas EXCZERERE
subsidiaries (3,838) 9,481
Change in fair value reserve on revaluation SHAHEEEREZ
of available-for-sale investments ARERKEEZD 244 783
Surplus on valuation of land and buildings T REFHEZ RH
(Note 15(g)) (H1315(g)) 1,387 -
Total other comprehensive (loss)/income AEEEMEEE (BB), E
for the year (net of nil tax) (MBZTHE) (2,207) 10,264
Total comprehensive loss for the year AEEHAXEER (210,951) (50,506)
Attributable to: FER:
Owners of the Company EAREBA (210,953) (50,506)
Non-controlling interests JEER IR RS 2 -
(210,951) (50,506)
The notes on pages 44 to 134 form part of these financial statements. FAAEZF134 B 2 MBI I 3Rk 2 B RS 201D -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e MIFIRIRR

As at 31st March 2013 RZZ—=F=A=+—H

2013 2012
—F—=F —T-F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FET FET
Non-current assets kREBEE
Property, plant and equipment P - MBS RERE 15 42,230 49,660
Prepaid lease payments HEEMNRIE 16 20,874 21,128
Investment properties "EME 17 170,983 159,599
Available-for-sale investments ARHEZRE 19 6,300 6,056
Rental deposits and prepayments MEZES RFEMNRIE 26,971 49,142
267,358 285,585
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 20 569,071 596,594
Prepaid lease payments HEMEMNRIE 16 505 499
Trade and other receivables B 5 K E A EUEE K 21 93,328 95,785
Trading securities BEEEE 23 3,845 7,098
Pledged bank deposits BEFRITER 24 2,272 3,965
Cash and cash equivalents BekBEEEYD 24 116,760 86,146
785,781 790,087
Current liabilities REAE
Trade and other payables B 5 K E Al FE A BR R 25 207,876 172,859
Bank loans RITIEE 26 223,764 233,462
Convertible notes QRS 30 32,237 -
Loans from a director BEE2EX 27 14,000 65,000
Provision for store closure JE AR R 28 12,224 -
Current income tax payable BNEAFE B PS8 3,137 3,614
493,238 474,935
Net current assets REEEFHR 292,543 315,152
Total assets less current liabilities HWEERABER 559,901 600,737
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Rental received in advance FEUWAE & 2,117 2,192
Deferred tax liabilities REFIBEE 29 7,741 8,050
Convertible notes QY e 30 - 29,872
Other liabilities EmeE 3,016 12,307
12,874 52,421
Net assets EEFE 547,027 548,316
Capital and reserves R AR &
Share capital & A 31 273,373 68,343
Reserves 1 33 263,945 470,266
Equity attributable to owners FEBREQATAFEFA
of the Company 2R 537,318 538,609
Non-controlling interests FEIERR AR R = 9,709 9,707
Total equity ERHBE 547,027 548,316
Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28th June 2013 and signed on its behalf by:
RZE—=FNAZT/\AEEESRBLRERETE YA TIEEREES
Eav Yin Eav Ming Keong, Kinson
Bz LR E:
Director Director
EF 2
The notes on pages 44 to 134 form part of these financial statements. FAAF EE134H 2 W B L B 5 iRk w BB E S -
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

B FSAA IR R
As at 31st March 2013 RZ-Z—=F=HA=+—H
2013 2012
—E-=F —E—_F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
o FET FET
Non-current assets kREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries R BARZEE 18 270,229 -
Current assets REEE
Other receivables H b B UL AR X 21 282 271
Amounts due from subsidiaries GG 22 - 307,439
Cash and cash equivalents RekBE2EEY 24 65,455 40,367
65,737 348,077
Current liabilities FEBAE
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEAS B BB A Al FRIE 22 13,400 13,408
Convertible notes AR EE 30 32,237 -
Other payables H i FE A BR 3K 25 3,429 2,610
49,066 16,018
Net current assets REBEEFE 16,671 332,059
Total assets less current liabilities REERRBAES 286,900 332,059
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities EEHIBEEE 29 1,005 1,005
Convertible notes AR R R 30 - 29,872
1,005 30,877
Net assets EEFRH 285,895 301,182
Capital and reserves EXRHE
Share capital & 7 31 273,373 68,343
Reserves & 33 12,522 232,839
Total equity attributable FEREIQATAHEFA
to owners of the Company 2R 285,895 301,182

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28th June 2013 and signed on its behalf by:
RZE—ZFRAZT N\BREEESRBLRENE THATINEERREE

The notes on pages 44 to 134 form part of these financial statements.
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Director
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The notes on pages 44 to 134 form part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

meRERER

For the year ended 31st March 2013 #HE—-ZT—=F=A=+—HILFE

2013 2012
—E—-=F —E——F
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
M FET FET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REER
Loss before taxation bR T AT ES 1B (208,351) (50,728)
Adjustments for : FEEE
Valuation gains on investment properties TEYEZ HEKRE 17 (7,792) (33,201)
Unrealised loss on trading securities FHEEBZAERER 7 3,253 8,745
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary LE—FENEARES 7 - 458
Write-down of inventories, net FEZMR - FEE 20 21,056 3,527
Write-back of long outstanding payables BERBAREEERNRER
and accruals EEtBR (469) (5,480)
Impairment loss on other receivables H e AR SR B B 18 4 -
Impairment loss on trade receivable B SRR EEE 21 - 712
Bank interest income RITH B A 6 (216) (264)
Interest expenses F 2B 2 9 19,905 8,977
Depreciation e 15 32,161 15,810
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments THE B RIBE 16 499 452
Share-based payments expenses AR BER Z TR 8,850 12,663
Loss on write-off of rental deposits WEEH ERe RIEMNRIE
and prepayments ZEBE 8,172 -
Impairment of property, plant VI E - HEE R 7 and 15
and equipment A 7%15 2,350 -
Loss on write-off of property, plant MSE P - HES AR
and equipment Z B8 8,185 -
Provision for store closure IR 28 12,178 -
Exchange differences EHZERE (1,067) (838)
Changes in working capital EEEeH
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERD,EM) 5,019 (203,351)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and B 5 & E A FE
other receivables BRFUR D (3 0) 17,033 (33,393)
Increase in trade and other payables B 5 I H h & BR B hn 33,736 19,883
(Decrease)/increase in other liabilities Hiv B E D) /1 am (9,310) 12,307
Decrease in rental received in advance U BY 78 W AR 2 Rk (75) (76)
CASH USED IN OPERATIONS CRARZEERS (54,879) (243,797)
PRC Corporate Income Tax paid ERzHRBEMEMER (1,215) (15,029)
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING EARKEEK 2
ACTIVITIES R BE (56,094) (258,826)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REXK
Payment for purchase of property, SINAREWE M REE
plant and equipment (38,891) (58,543)
Payment for purchase of XNARBEREME
investment properties - (27,292)
Proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary HE W ERRERIEA 36 - 3,456
Compensation from write-off of property, MY E - e R
plant and equipment 2 BEE 1,235 -
Decrease/(increase) in pledged bank deposits = #K 4R 1717 ZUR 2, (1 10) 1,693 (3,965)
Bank interest income received B R 1T A B A 216 264
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING EARKREER Z2RESFERE
ACTIVITIES (35,747) (86,080)

jit o P S SR B A R A )
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
REMEMER

For the year ended 31st March 2013 #HE—-ZT—=F=A=+—HILFE
2013 2012
—E—-=F —E——F
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
B 5 FET FET
FINANCING ACTIVITIES il & E
Net proceeds from issuance BATH RIS F 508
of new shares 200,812 -
Proceeds from new bank loans %ﬁﬂ%ﬂ%%ﬁﬁ’a IE 274,189 318,102
Interest paid on loans from a director EERI M 2FE (3,248) (1,400)
Repayment of bank loans 1;5&?%71‘1“ (285,179) (90,808)
Interest paid on bank loans RITEEIMZFIE (12,553) (4,123)
Interest paid on convertible notes AR RES T ZFE 30 (939) (1,285)
Capital contribution from IR 2 EARBA
a non-controlling shareholder - 10,000
Proceeds from loans from a director WREEZERFEHRIE 21,000 80,000
Repayment of loans from a director EBREEEZEX (72,000) (15,000)
Dividend paid KRS - (6,834)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM EEXERBEETH 2
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BHEFE 122,082 288,652
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) ReRALEEY
IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS S GRd) B8 30,241 (56,254)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE FARERREEEY
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 86,146 140,520
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE EXgB o8 FH
CHANGES, NET 373 1,880

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE FRASRBREEEY
END OF THE YEAR 116,760 86,146

ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF CASH REeERREESEYERDN
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash at bank and on hand RITEREFERS 24 116,760 86,146
The notes on pages 44 to 134 form part of these financial statements. FBA4BEZFE134E 7 M BRI AT B Rk 2 B R EL 1D -
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GENERAL

Asia Commercial Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is an
investment holding company. Its subsidiaries are principally
engaged in trading and retailing of watches and property leasing.

The Company is a limited company incorporated in Bermuda
and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the registered
office and principal place of business of the Company are Canon’s
Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM12, Bermuda and 19th
Floor, 9 Des Voeux Road West, Hong Kong respectively.

These financial statements are presented in thousand of units
of Hong Kong dollars (HK$’000), unless otherwise stated. These
financial statements have been approved for issue by the Board of
Directors on 28th June 2013.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is also the functional currency of the Company.

GOING CONCERN

The Group incurred a loss attributable to the owners of the
Company of HK$208,746,000 (2012: HK$60,770,000) and net
cash outflow from operating activities of HK$56,094,000 (2012:
HK$258,826,000) for the year ended 31st March 2013 and had
decrease in net current assets of HK$22,609,000 (2012: decrease
in net current assets of HK$142,904,000) and net debt of
HK$150,969,000 (2012: HK$238,223,000) as stated in note 34(b)
to the consolidated financial statements as at 31st March 2013
respectively. In preparing these consolidated financial statements,
the directors of the Company have given careful consideration
to the impact of the current and anticipated future liquidity of
the Group and the Company and the ability of the Group and
the Company to attain profitable and positive cash flows from
operations in the immediate and longer term.

The ability of the Group to operate as a going concern is
dependent upon the availability of the banking facilities and
therefore it is important that the financial covenants are not
breached. Based on the current forecasts of the directors, the
directors anticipated that there is an uncertainty that the Group
might not able to meet certain financial covenants under a
banking facility agreement upon the next annual test of financial
covenants as at 31st March 2014. The directors will continue to
monitor the forecasts closely and test the financial covenants
on a regular basis. These conditions indicate the existence of
a material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s and the Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern
and therefore it may be unable to realise its assets and discharge
its liabilities in the normal course of business. Notwithstanding
the above, the directors considered that it is appropriate to adopt
the going concern in preparing these consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GOING CONCERN (Continued)

In order to strengthen the Group’s capital base and liquidity in the
foreseeable future, the Group has taken the following measures:

. the Group entered into a term loan facility agreement for
HK$150 million with Mr. Eav Yin, a director and controlling
shareholder of the Company for a period from 27th June
2013 to 30th September 2014;

. negotiating with banks for renewal and obtaining new
banking facilities;

. the directors of the Company have been taking various cost
control measures to tighten the costs of operations;

. the directors of the Company have reviewed the performance
of individual stores and plan to close non-profitable stores if
appropriate; and

. the Group has been implementing various strategies to
enhance the Group’s turnover.

Based on the cash flow projections of the Group and having taken
into account the available financial resources of the Group and
the above measures, the directors have concluded that the Group
and the Company is able to continue as a going concern and
to meet their financial liabilities as and when they fall due in the
foreseeable future.

Should the Group be unable to continue as a going concern,
adjustments would have to be made to restate the values of
assets to their immediate recoverable amounts, to provide for
any further liabilities which might arise and to classify non-current
assets and liabilities as current assets and liabilities respectively.
The effects of these potential adjustments have not been reflected
in these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. A summary of the significant accounting policies
adopted by the Group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
which are first effective or available for early adoption for the
current accounting period of the Group and the Company.
Note 4 provides information on initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to the
Group for the current and prior accounting periods reflected
in these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31st March 2013 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except that
the following assets and liabilities are stated at their fair
value as explained in the accounting policies set out below:

- investment property (see note 3(f)); and

- financial instruments classified as available-for-sale or
as trading securities (see note 3(g)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances,
the results of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty are
discussed in note 40.
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3.

ﬂ:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control
exists when the Group has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits
from its activities. In assessing control, potential voting rights
that presently are exercisable are taken into account.

The Group also assesses existence of control where it does
not have more than 50% of the voting power but is able to
govern the financial and operating policies by virtue of de-
facto control.

De-facto control may arise from circumstances where it does
not have more than 50% of the voting power but is able
to govern the financial and operating policies by virtue of
de-facto control.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances and transactions and any unrealised profits
arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full in
preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent
that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary
not attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in
respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those interests which would result
in the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation
in respect of those interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately from
equity attributable to the owners of the Company. Non-
controlling interests in the results of the Group are presented
on the face of the consolidated income statement and the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income as an
allocation of the total profit or loss and total comprehensive
income for the year between non-controlling interests and
the owners of the Company. Total comprehensive income
of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance (effective
from 1st January 2010 onwards). Loans from holders of
non-controlling interests and other contractual obligations
towards these holders are presented as financial liabilities in
the consolidated statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the
amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests within
consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative interests,
but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss
is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with
a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of
an investment in an associate.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, the interest
in subsidiaries is stated at cost less impairment losses (see
Note 3(i)), unless the investment is classified as held for sale
(or included in a disposed group that is classified as held for
sale).

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised
in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair values,
except that:
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3.

ﬂ:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

Business combinations (Continued)

° deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or
liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS
12 “Income Taxes” and HKAS 19 “Employee Benefits”
respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments relating to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangement of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
“Share-based Payment” at the acquisition date; and

° assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations” are
measured in accordance with that Standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after re-
assessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds
the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if any),
the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a
bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may be
initially measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of
measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction
basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are measured
at their fair value or, when applicable, on the basis specified
in another HKFRS.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

Business combinations (Continued)

Where the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes assets or liabilities resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value
and included as part of the consideration transferred in
a business combination. Changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that qualify as measurement
period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with the
corresponding adjustments against goodwill. Measurement
period adjustments are adjustments that arise from
additional information obtained during the measurement
period (which cannot exceed one year from the acquisition
date) about facts and circumstances that existed at the
acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value
of the contingent consideration that do not qualify as
measurement period adjustments depends on how
the contingent consideration is classified. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured
at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent settlement
is accounted for within equity. Contingent consideration
that is classified as an asset or a liability is remeasured at
subsequent reporting dates in accordance with HKAS 39
“Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”, or
HKAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets”, as appropriate, with the corresponding gain or loss
being recognised in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date
when the Group obtains control) and the resulting gain or
loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts arising
from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date
that have previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss where such treatment
would be appropriate if that interest were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement
period (see above), or additional assets or liabilities are
recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts
and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that, if
known, would have affected the amounts recognised at that
date.
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3.

ﬂ:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

Other investments in debt and equity securities

The Group’s and the Company’s policies for investments
in debt and equity securities, other than investments in
subsidiaries, are as follows:

Investments in debt and equity securities are initially stated
at fair value, which is their transaction price unless fair value
can be more reliably estimated using valuation techniques
whose variables include only data from observable markets.
Cost includes attributable transaction costs, except
where indicated otherwise below. These investments are
subsequently accounted for as follows, depending on their
classification:

Investments in securities held for trading are classified
as current assets. Any attributable transaction costs are
recognised in profit or loss as incurred. At the end of each
reporting period the fair value is remeasured, with any
resultant gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. The
net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss does not include
any dividends or interest earned on these investments as
these are recognised in accordance with the policies set out
in Note 3(s).

Dated debt securities that the Group and/or the Company
have the positive ability and intention to hold to maturity are
classified as held-to-maturity securities. Held-to-maturity
securities are stated at amortised cost less impairment
losses (see note 3(i)).

Investments in equity securities that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot
be reliably measured are recognised in the statement of
financial position at cost less impairment losses (see Note

3(1).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

Ui

Other investments in debt and equity securities
(Continued)

Investments in securities which do not fall into any of
the above categories are classified as available-for-sale
securities. At the end of each reporting period the fair
value is remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss being
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the fair value reserve, except foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from changes in the
amortised cost of monetary items such as debt securities
which are recognised directly in profit or loss. Dividend
income from these investments is recognised in profit or loss
in accordance with the policy set out in Note 3(s) and, where
these investments are interest-bearing, interest calculated
using the effective interest method is recognised in profit or
loss in accordance with the policy set out in note 3(s). When
these investments are derecognised or impaired (see Note
3(i)), the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from equity to
profit or loss.

Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date the
Group and/or the Company commits to purchase/sell the
investments or they expire.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are
owned or held under a leasehold interest (see Note 3(h)) to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation. These
include land held for a currently undetermined future use and
property that is being constructed or developed for future
use as investment property.

Investment properties are stated at fair value, unless they
are still in the course of construction or development at the
end of the reporting period and their fair value cannot be
reliably determined at that time. Any gain or loss arising from
a change in fair value or from the retirement or disposal of
an investment property is recognised in profit or loss. Rental
income from investment properties is accounted for as
described in Note 3(s).

When the Group holds a property interest under an operating
lease to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation,
the interest is classified and accounted for as an investment
property on a property-by-property basis. Any such property
interest which has been classified as an investment property
is accounted for as if it were held under a finance lease (see
Note 3(h)), and the same accounting policies are applied to
that interest as are applied to other investment properties
leased under finance leases. Lease payments are accounted
for as described in Note 3(h).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(9)

Other property, plant and equipment

The following items of property, plant and equipment are
stated in the statement of financial position at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see Note

3(i)):
- buildings;
- other items of property, plant and equipment.

If an item of property becomes an investment property
because its use has changed as evidenced by end of owner-
occupation, any difference between the carrying amount and
the fair value of that item at the date of transfer is recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in property
revaluation reserve. On the subsequent sale or retirement of
the asset, the relevant revaluation reserve will be transferred
directly to retained profits.

Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items. Cost may
also include transfers from equity of any gains/losses on
qualifying cash flow hedges of foreign currency purchases of
property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount
of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are recognised in profit or loss during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
an item of property, plant and equipment are determined as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised in profit or
loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Construction in progress comprises direct costs of
construction during the period of construction and
installation. Capitalisation of these costs ceases and the
construction in progress is transferred to the relevant class
of property, plant and equipment when substantially all
of the activities necessary to prepare the assets for their
intended use are completed. No depreciation is provided in
respect of construction in progress until it is completed and
substantially ready for its intended use.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R §5 ER R B 5F

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h) Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset
or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment
or a series of payments. Such a determination is made based
on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is
regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form

of a lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the Group are classified as operating leases, with the

following exceptions:

- property held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment
property is classified as investment property on a
property-by-property basis and, if classified as an
investment property, is accounted for as if held
under a finance lease (see Note 3(h)); and

- land held for own use under an operating lease,
the fair value of which cannot be measured
separately from the fair value of a building situated
thereon at the inception of the lease, is accounted
for as being held under a finance lease, unless the
building is also clearly held under an operating
lease. For these purposes, the inception of the
lease is the time that the lease was first entered
into by the Group, or taken over from the previous

lessee.

(i)  Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under
finance leases, the amounts representing the fair value
of the leased asset, or, if lower, the present value of the
minimum lease payments, of such assets are included
in property, plant and equipment and the corresponding
liabilities, net of finance charges, are recorded as
obligations under finance leases. Depreciation is
provided at rates which write off the cost of the assets
over the term of the relevant lease or, where it is likely
the Company or Group will obtain ownership of the
asset, the life of the asset, as set out in Note 3(g).
Impairment losses are accounted for in accordance with
the accounting policy as set out in Note 3(i). Finance
charges implicit in the lease payments are charged
to profit or loss over the period of the leases so as to
produce an approximately constant periodic rate of
charge on the remaining balance of the obligations for

each accounting period.

54| Asia Commercial Holdings Limited

3.

FE2E5ECR (18)
(h HE&E=E

WAEBERER T —HL (21 —AE
%Q%)ﬂﬁéﬁ%iﬁ%,ﬂﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ% RHEBE
HHHEE - LI — RIS RSER R

TR -

Az BR® e s TE o ORE TS

BRUZLH 2 ABPMETZFHEmEL - B
THWHHZK}#I%E /ﬁﬁEfﬁ ﬁ/ﬁ ©

(i)

(i)

AEEBEEEZ DH

HRAEBEAREFABEZEE -
MAEFHEERZBASI AR ED
WOEBBREAEE EH2EERS
PEANRERERSE WHETS
BHAEZBABH AR ML HER
EAREE EIJ”*E?%%@%%ES » HEBIS
FRIT -

- KEHEBTEBEZYE W
AEREWMEZTEE  UZREARNY
HHESNBRIREWE  ME
NERILEWE ALBAEME
HNETHEBEZYWEAR (AW
3h) i &

- ITHUKEHEEHIESR - BE
FHERERRRBEEAREEE
REFNEZEYN QR ED FAT
imii‘ﬁmiﬁzmﬂﬁfﬂ ERARR

R EBEWMMUKEEHERA
E’\J@ﬁ%ﬁ??]\ oRtMtmE - HE
HFBREHEEEANEBE RG]
AR - 3B AR A A
Wi o

UBEHENEZEE

EAEBEREHEWEEEEME
MEBEEZ AR EHEXREEESR
ZREZBIRE - BIADE - BFR
wELREBAENRBREER) LT
1EREHEEF - S FE3(g)PTEL -
FERNBEHEEERAHREEN
RER 2 #8H (EARRHAEEBE
CEVSBEEMARE) BMIEEEK
RZLEERGFE - HE%ET&WER(')@T
e BRFAE -HESEME
Zﬁﬂﬁéﬁlhﬁ’\fﬁhﬁﬁfﬁﬁ)\ﬁm
EE ST HEEEETAGIARE ZE
EMELEME - AREERNEEE
SRR B EENR -

F‘H:i N

=
e
i



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h) Leased assets (Continued)

(iii)

Operating lease charges

The Group leases retail stores and office facilities.
Most leases provide for monthly fixed minimum rentals
or contingent rentals based upon sales in excess of
stated amounts and normally require the Group to
pay insurance, common area maintenance costs and
other occupancy costs. The Group recognizes rent
expense for leases that include scheduled and specified
escalations of the minimum rent on a straight-line basis
over the base term of the lease. Any difference between
the straight-line rent amount and the amount payable
under the lease is included in other liabilities in the
consolidated statement of financial position. Contingent
rental payments are expensed as incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating
lease and is presented as “prepaid lease payments”
in the consolidated statement of financial position, is
amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of the
lease term except where the property is classified as an
investment property (see note 3(f)).

() Impairment of assets

(i)  Impairment of investments in debt and equity securities

and other receivables
Investments in debt and equity securities and other
current and non-current receivables that are stated at
cost or amortised cost or are classified as available-for-
sale securities are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to determine whether there is objective evidence
of impairment. Objective evidence of impairment
includes observable data that comes to the attention
of the Group about one or more of the following loss
events:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtors;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; and

- a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of an investment in an equity instrument below its
cost.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

() Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)  Impairment of investments in debt and equity securities
and other receivables (Continued)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
determined and recognised as follows:

For investments in subsidiaries, the impairment
loss is measured by comparing the recoverable
amount of the investment with its carrying amount
in accordance with note 3(i)(ii). The impairment
loss is reversed if there has been favourable
change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount in accordance with note 3(i)

(ii).

For unquoted equity securities carried at cost,
the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the carrying amount of the financial asset
and the estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset where the effect of discounting is
material. Impairment losses for equity securities
carried at cost are not reversed.

For trade receivables and other financial assets
carried at amortised cost, impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate
(i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition of these assets), where the effect
of discounting is material. This assessment is
made collectively where these financial assets
share similar risk characteristics, such as similar
past due status, and have not been individually
assessed as impaired. Future cash flows for
financial assets which are assessed for impairment
collectively are based on historical loss experience
for assets with credit risk characteristics similar to
the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss.
A reversal of an impairment loss shall not result in
the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that which
would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years.
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3.

ﬂ:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

U]

Impairment of assets (Continued)

Impairment of investments in debt and equity securities

and other receivables (Continued)

- For available-for-sale securities, the cumulative
loss that has been recognised in the fair value
reserve is reclassified to profit or loss. The
amount of the cumulative loss that is recognised
in profit or loss is the difference between the
acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment
and amortisation) and current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that asset previously
recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss
in respect of available-for-sale equity securities
are not reversed through profit or loss. Any
subsequent increase in the fair value of such
assets is recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Impairment losses in respect of available-for-sale
debt securities are reversed if the subsequent
increase in fair value can be objectively related
to an event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised. Reversals of impairment losses
in such circumstances are recognised in profit or
loss.

Impairment losses are written off against the

corresponding assets directly, except for impairment

losses recognised in respect of trade debtors included
within trade and other receivables, whose recovery is
considered doubtful but not remote. In this case, the
impairment losses for doubtful debts are recorded using
an allowance account. When the Group is satisfied
that recovery is remote, the amount considered
irrecoverable is written off against trade debtors directly
and any amounts held in the allowance account relating
to that debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously charged to the allowance account
are reversed against the allowance account. Other
changes in the allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off directly are
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R §5 ER R B 5F

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
() Impairment of assets (Continued)
(i) Impairment of other assets
Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to identify
indications that the following assets may be impaired
or an impairment loss previously recognised no longer

exists or may have decreased:

- property, plant and equipment;

prepaid lease payments; and

rental deposits and prepayments

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair value less costs to sell and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. Where
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

- Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
if the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating units are
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill allocated to the cash generating unit
(or group of units) and then, to reduce the carrying
amount of the other assets in the unit (or group of
units) on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying
value of an asset will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less costs to sell, or value in
use, if determinable.
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3.

ﬂ:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

U]

1)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i) Impairment of other assets (Continued)

- Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.
(i) Interim financial reporting and impairment
Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Group
is required to prepare an interim financial report in
compliance with HKAS 34, Interim Financial Reporting,
in respect of the first six months of the financial year.
At the end of the interim period, the Group applies the
same impairment testing, recognition, and reversal
criteria as it would at the end of the financial year (see
Note 3(i)(i) and (ii)).

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on a first-in, first-out basis and
comprises all costs of purchase, cost of conversion and
other cost incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and all
losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the
period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any
reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognised as
a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k)

U]

(m)

(n)

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair
value and thereafter stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts, except where the receivables are interest-
free loans made to related parties without any fixed
repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at cost
less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts (see Note

3(1).

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated
at amortised cost with any difference between the amount
initially recognised and redemption value being recognised in
profit or loss over the period of the borrowings, together with
any interest and fees payable, using the effective interest
method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities measured in
accordance with note 3(r)(i), trade and other payables are
subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
having been within three months of maturity at acquisition.
Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group’s cash management are also
included as a components of cash and cash equivalents for
the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows.
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3.

ﬂ:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(o)

(p)

Convertible notes

Convertible notes that can be converted to equity share
capital at the option of the holder, where the number of
shares that would be issued on conversion and the value of
the consideration that would be received at that time do not
vary, are accounted for as compound financial instruments
which contain both a liability component and an equity
component.

At initial recognition the liability component of the convertible
notes is measured as the present value of the future interest
and principal payments, discounted at the market rate of
interest applicable at the time of initial recognition to similar
liabilities that do not have a conversion option. Any excess
of proceeds over the amount initially recognised as the
liability component is recognized as the equity components.
Transaction costs that relate to the issue of a compound
financial instrument are allocated to the liability and equity
components in proportion to the allocation of proceeds.

The liability component is subsequently carried at amortised
cost. The interest expense recognised in profit or loss on
the liability component is calculated using the effective
interest method. The equity component is recognised in
the convertible notes equity reserve until either the note is
converted or redeemed.

If the note is converted, the convertible notes equity reserve,
together with the carrying amount of the liability component
at the time of conversion, is transferred to share capital and
share premium as consideration for the shares issued. If the
note is redeemed, the capital reserve is released directly to
retained profits.

Employee benefits

(i)  Short term employee benefits and contributions to

defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in
the year in which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred
and the effect would be material,

stated at their present values.

these amounts are
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(p)

Employee benefits (Continued)

(i)

(ifi)

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a share option reserve within equity. The
fair value is measured at grant date using the binomial
lattice model, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted. Where
the employees have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to the share options,
the total estimated fair value of the share options is
spread over the vesting period, taking into account the
probability that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options
expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment
to the cumulative fair value recognised in prior years
is charged/credited to the profit or loss for the year
under review, unless the original employee expenses
qualify for recognition as an asset, with a corresponding
adjustment to the share option reserve. On vesting
date, the amount recognised as an expense is adjusted
to reflect the actual number of share options that vest
(with a corresponding adjustment to the share option
reserve) except where forfeiture is only due to not
achieving vesting conditions that relate to the market
price of the Company’s shares. The equity amount is
recognised in the share option reserve until either the
option is exercised (when it is transferred to the share
premium account) or the option expires (when it is
released directly to retained profits).

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when, and only
when, the Group demonstrably commits itself to
terminate employment or to provide benefits as a result
of voluntary redundancy by having a detailed formal
plan which is without realistic possibility of withdrawal.
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3.

ﬂ:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

Income tax

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from “profit before tax” as
reported in the profit or loss because of items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised
for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are only
recognised to the extent that its is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits
of the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the
asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities
and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow
from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end
of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities. Current and deferred tax
is charged or credited to profit or loss, except to the extent
that they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(r) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent
liabilities

(i)

(i)

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the
issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments
to reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the
“holder”) for a loss the holder incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the terms of the debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the
fair value of the guarantee (being the transaction
price, unless the fair value can otherwise be reliably
estimated) is initially recognised as deferred income
within trade and other payables. Where consideration
is received or receivable for the issuance of the
guarantee, the consideration is recognised in
accordance with the Group’s policies applicable to
that category of asset. Where no such consideration
is received or receivable, an immediate expense is
recognised in profit or loss on initial recognition of any
deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as
deferred income is amortised in profit or loss over
the term of the guarantee as income from financial
guarantees issued. In addition, provisions are
recognised in accordance with Note 3(r)(ii) if and when
(i) it becomes probable that the holder of the guarantee
will call upon the Group under the guarantee, and (ji)
the amount of that claim on the Group is expected to
exceed the amount currently carried in trade and other
payables in respect of that guarantee i.e. the amount
initially recognised, less accumulated amortisation.

Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group or the
Company has a legal or constructive obligation arising
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where
the time value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditure expected
to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

U]

(s)

Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent
liabilities (Continued)

(iii)  Onerous contracts

Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are
recognised and measured as provisions. An onerous
contract is considered to exist where the Group has a
contract under which the unavoidable costs of meeting
the obligations under the contract exceed the economic
benefits expected to be received from the contract.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue
and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is
recognised in profit or loss as follow:

Sales of goods are recognised when goods are delivered and
the customer has accepted the goods and related risks and
rewards of ownership. Revenue excludes value added tax or
other sales taxes and after deducting of any trade discounts.

Revenue from provision of services is recognised when
services are provided.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when
it is probable that the economic benefits, will flow to the
Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably.
Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over
the periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Contingent rentals are recognised as income in
the accounting period in which they are earned.

Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised
when the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been
established. Dividend income from listed investments is
recognised when the share price of the investment goes ex-
dividend.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

3.

®

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and
losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair
value was determined.

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Statement of financial position items are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the closing foreign exchange rates ruling
at the end of the reporting period. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in equity in the exchange
reserve.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of
the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified to
profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal of a subsidiary that does not
result in the Group losing control over the subsidiary, the
proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences
are re-attributed to non-controlling interests and are not
recognised in profit or loss. For all other partial disposals,
the proportionate share of the accumulated exchange
differences is reclassified to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(u)

(v)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for
its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of
that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period
in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost
of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the
asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially
all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for
its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.

Related parties

(a) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;
(ii)  has significant influence over the Group; or
(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or the Group’s parent;

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others);

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member);

(i)

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third

party;
(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R §5 ER R B 5F

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(v) Related parties (Continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies: (Continued)

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vil A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent

of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the

entity.

(w) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified from
the financial information provided regularly to the board
of directors of the Company for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.

4. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs

The Group and the Company had early applied the Amendments
to Hong Kong Accounting Standard (“HKAS”) 12 “Income Taxes”,
in respect of the recognition of deferred tax on investment
properties carried at fair value under HKAS 40 “Investment
Property” since the financial year beginning on 1st April 2011. In
the current year, the Group and the Company have applied the
Amendments to Standard issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) that are relevant to its
operations and effective for the financial year beginning on 1st
April 2012. The adoption of the Amendments to Standard had no
material effect on the results and financial position of the Group or
the Company for the current and/or prior accounting years.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TURNOVER

The principal activities of the Group are trading and retailing of

watches and property leasing.

Turnover represents the gross proceeds received and receivable
derived from the sale of watches and property leasing and is

summarised as follows:

5. EX®

&

B §5 ER R B 5F

AEEZITEXBREZFEFRTEARYEE

BEENEENE RN EEE 2 CWRER 2 8
WE BEMT

2013 2012
—E-—=F —E—_F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Sales of watches fBIRIHE 1,094,047 1,032,380
Gross rental income from investment properties HREREMEZHLSERA 4,546 3,869
1,098,593 1,036,249
OTHER REVENUE 6. Hfthlxz
2013 2012
—E-=F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Bank interest income RITH B UA 216 264
Total interest income on financial assets not FBERBRRANERENSREE
at fair value through profit or loss FTEE £/ F) B UL A 458 216 264
Show window rental income F 21| 48 A A LA 3,532 2,788
Promotion income HE WA 4,612 -
Advertising income EElA 2,032 974
Customer services income and others BEERS WA REM 15,908 13,150
26,300 17,176
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

7. OTHER NET LOSS 7. Hithgrigisea
2013 2012
—E—=fF —E-F
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Unrealised loss on trading securities FHEBEBEAEBLREIE 3,253 8,745
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary (Note 36) HE—RNB AR EE(Ai7F36) - 458
Impairment loss of property, Y WERZEREEBS
plant and equipment (Note 15(b)) (B7#15(b)) 2,350 -
Store closure costs (Note) IEH A RN (B 5E) 16,406 -
Provision for store closure (Note 28) JE A B AE (B i£28) 12,178 -
Impairment loss on trade receivables B 5 EWEFRERE - 712
Impairment loss on other receivables H fth & W BR FORUE 5 18 4 -
Write-back of long outstanding REIREEZEERMNER
payables and accruals REESTER#ED (469) (5,480)
Others H 1,235 -
34,957 4,435
Note: Hat -
The store closure costs include loss on write off of leasehold improvements i 868 i S5 P S B A A AR B ) 25 5 8 TRk 11,592,00008
and equipment of HK$1,592,000, write off of construction in progress TLZ 18 - WEH e 726,593,000/ 70 ¢ R EHTE & 1%
of HK$6,593,000 and write off of rental deposits and prepayments and ERIENFIE  REESREANEER LEERO 2 RE
compensation totalling of HK$8,221,000 for early termination of operating £ 2£8,221,000/8 7T °
leases upon closure of stores.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group manages its business by divisions. In a manner
consistent with the way in which information is reported
internally to the board of directors of the Company, being the
chief operating decision maker (“CODM”) for the purposes of
resource allocations and performance assessments, the Group
has presented two reportable segments: (i) sale of watches and (ii)
properties leasing. No operating segments have been aggregated
to form these two reportable segments.

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the CODM monitors
the results, assets and liabilities attributable to each reportable
segment on the following bases:

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same
as the Group’s accounting policies described in note to the
financial statements. Segment profit/(loss) represents the profit
earned by/(loss) from each segment without allocation of central
administration costs such as those finance costs and corporate
costs which cannot be meaningfully allocated to individual
segment. This is the measure reported to the CODM for purposes
of resource allocation and performance assessment.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable segments
with reference to sales generated by those segments and the
expenses incurred by those segments or which otherwise arise
from the depreciation and amortization of assets attributable to
those segments.

The revenue from external parties reported to the CODM is
measured in a manner consistent with that in the consolidated
income statement.

All assets are allocated to reportable segments other than
available-for-sale investments and other corporate assets.

All liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other than
current income tax payable, deferred tax liabilities and borrowings
not attributable to individual segments and corporate liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 5 SRR Bt 5T
8. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 8. LB (&)
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue, results, assets LXT?%@EE AREBREDE &I - 3
and liabilities by operating segment. CEBENRBEZON
2013
L
Sale of Properties Segmental
watches leasing total  Unallocated Total
EHHE HENE APEE AELE @t
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET FET
External revenue Bz 1,094,047 4,546 1,098,593 - 1,098,593
Turnover (Note) EEB (W E) 1,094,047 4,546 1,098,593 - 1,098,593
Operating profit/(loss) LEER/ (B1B) (158,495) 3,593 (154,902) (6,595) (161,497
Valuation gains on investment REWMEZ HEMNE
properties - 7,792 7,792 - 7,792
Interest income FIEMA 161 - 161 55 216
Other net loss HtEEFE (31,704) - (31,704) (3,253) (34,957)
Finance costs BRRA (16,148) (453) (16,601) (3,304) (19,005)
Segment results DEEE (206,186) 10,932 (195,254) (13,097) (208,351)
Income tax FriEH (393)
Loss for the year AEEEE (208,744)
Provision for store closure R ERE 12,178 - 12,178 - 12,178
Impairment loss of property, plant ME  BERRE
and equipment REER 2,350 - 2,350 - 2,350
Loss on write off of property, plant 1% 2 K&
and equipment MEER 8,185 - 8,185 - 8,185
Loss on write off of rental deposits ~ & &% LI HE
and prepayments HisHEE 8,173 - 8,173 - 8,173
Write-down of inventories MREE 21,056 - 21,056 - 21,056
Impairment loss of other receivables  H {1 e Y bR ZUR B B 2 4 - 4 - 4
Depreciation and amortisation HEREH 32,148 512 32,660 - 32,660
Segment assets AHEE 803,237 177,337 980,574 66,265 1,046,839
Available-for-sale investments AHHEZRE 6,300
Total assets BEE 1,053,139
Additions to non-current segment AREHRERHH
assets during the reporting period BEZEN 45,184 7 45,191 - 45,191
Segment liabilities NEEE 438,199 20,859 459,058 36,176 495,234
Current income tax payable BV EA JE 4 PR 1S 70 3,137
Deferred tax liabilities EEHEEE 7,741
Total liabilities BERE 506,112

Note: There were no inter-segment sales during the year ended 31st March

2013.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

87t #5 #R 2= Bff 5
8. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 8. PIPLE (@)
2012
—ZE-CF
Sale of Properties Segmental

watches leasing total Unallocated Total

BHREE HEMZE 72 Et AENE @t

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000

FHET FHET FHET FET FHET

External revenue oMz 1,032,380 3,869 1,036,249 - 1,036,249

Turnover (Note) EEB (W E) 1,032,380 3,869 1,036,249 - 1,036,249

Operating (loss)/profit % (58) /%7 (64,223) 1,798 (62,425) (8,356) (70,781)

Valuation gains on investment BREMEZHEKR

properties - 33,201 33,201 - 33,201

Interest income FLEUA 263 - 263 1 264

Other net loss HERFE 4,022 288 4,310 (8,745) (4,435)

Finance costs BBRA (4,789) (734) (5,523) (3,454) (8,977)

Segment results DL (64,727) 34,553 (30,174) (20,554) (50,728)

Income tax FrEH (10,042)

Loss for the year AFEEBE (60,770)

Impairment loss on trade receivables & 5 & FUREE & 712 - 712 - 712

Write-down of inventories WAFE 3,527 - 3,527 - 3,527

Depreciation and amortisation MEREH 15,775 487 16,262 - 16,262

Segment assets SBEE 858,690 162,435 1,021,125 48,491 1,069,616

Available-for-sale investments AfRHEZRE 6,056

Total assets BEE 1,075,672
Additions to non-current segment AREHRETRHH D

assets during the reporting period BEZEN 85,921 27,418 113,339 - 113,339

Segment liabilities PHEE 455,265 20,403 475,668 40,024 515,692

Current income tax payable ENEE AT SR 3,614

Deferred tax liabilities EREREER 8,050

Total liabilities ZafE 527,356

Note: There were no inter-segment sales during the year ended 31st March Mg N8B E-_E——F=-A=+—HIFEHHEHTE
2012. DEBEHE -

=
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

8. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 8. NERS (&)
(a) Geographic information (a) KEHERER

The following is an analysis of geographical location of (i) the AT AR EE R INDE P 2 W (i) A
Group’s revenue from external customers and (i) the Group’s SECERDEEARBNT - BPL&EME
non-current assets as specified below. The geographical 2ZERERBIEYEX 2R - AEE
location of customers is referred to the location at which the IMBEEBREYE WERIH - HER
services were provided or the goods delivered. The Group’s B REMELBEELRS RBENHKIE -
non-current assets include property, plant and equipment, KEWE CIERBEERENEEZ BRI
prepaid lease payments, investment properties and rental BHEE R o

deposits and prepayments. The geographical locations of
non-current assets are based on the physical location of the

assets.
Revenues from
external customers Non-current assets
REMBEF ZWEH ERBEE
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=F —T——-—F =ZE—-=F —E——F
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FHET
The People’s Republic of R ARKEFME -
China, excluding Hong Kong FEBRIN 713,516 801,268 102,458 105,290
Hong Kong (place of domicile) HE(REH) 380,347 228,546 140,044 156,249
Switzerland It 4,717 6,370 18,556 17,990
Others Hh 13 65 - -
1,098,593 1,036,249 261,058 279,529
(b) Information about major customers (b) EAREEEZFER
For the year ended 31st March 2013 and 2012, no revenue REZE-_FE——FER-_FT—=F=AF=+—
derived from transactions with a single customer represented HIEFE #RXZHABZHRELIBEE—R
10% or more of the Group’s total revenue. FIEEBEMRIEEI0%IA L -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERR B EE

9. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION

Loss before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

(@) Finance costs

9. [RiRAIRIE

(a) BEFERETR

BRERIERENGR GIA) LA TEE :

2013 2012
—E-=F —EF—=
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Interest on bank borrowings wholly ARRAFRNEHBEEZ
repayable within five years RITERFE 13,353 4,123
Interest on convertible notes AR EER A 3,304 3,454
Interest on loans from a director EEERAE 3,248 1,400
Total interest expenses on financial FERBREANBERENS M
liabilities not at fair value through BEMELENTEXZ LB
profit or loss 19,905 8,977
(b) Staff costs (b) SIpK
2013 2012
—E-=F —T—=
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Salaries, wages and other benefits Fe IERHEMBER
(including directors’ fee and emoluments (BRESFHS KBS
(Note 10)) (HtiE10)) 97,014 93,235
Share-based payments expenses LARR 17 B B 7 2 K 8,850 12,663
Retirement benefits scheme contribution RIKTR A E &I AR 844 574
106,708 106,472
(c) Otheritems (c) Hfth1aB
2013 2012
—E—=fF —E-F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FETT
Rental receivable from investment REYMERKHENBREES S
properties less direct outgoings 86,0007 T (=T ——4F ¢
of HK$86,000 (2012: HK$201,000) 201,0005% 7T.) (4,460) (3,668)
Net exchange loss N B8 F5E 96 1,327
Auditors’ remuneration % 6T B &
Audit services ZE R 1,621 1,110
Other services E Bk 75 617 318
Depreciation for property, plant and Y WBERBETE
equipment 32,161 15,810
Amortisation for prepaid lease payments TETEN B H 499 452
Impairment loss on trade receivables B ZREBERFRERSE - 712
Impairment loss on other receivables e W AR ORI E B 18 4 -
Operating lease rentals in respect of HEMEZKERE
rented premises e
— Minimum rentals —&EfAe 209,857 153,877
- Contingent rentals —s R 10,167 18,044
220,024 171,921
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses R /AR X 2 17 &R A 828,534 741,421

pt!

AREEE2FEW
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND INDIVIDUALS WITH 10. EEMERESHEAL
HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

(i) Directors’ remuneration (i) =ESB#ME
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 of REFEBARKIFEIIHEE2ESHE
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows: m
2013
—E-=F
Employer’s
contribution
Allowances to retirement
Directors’ Basic and other benefit Share-based
fees salaries benefits scheme Sub-total payments Total
BER BUEA HRABRER
EzHe ExFe EEA HEETHX At PAE @zt

HK$'000 HK$:000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$:000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEr FEr FEr FEr FiEr FER FER

(Note)
(#i)
Executive Directors y17E3
Eav Yin BE 238 4,175 993 - 5,406 642 6,048
Eav Ming Keong, Kinson L 238 2,099 624 14 2,975 481 3,456
Duong Ming Chi, Henry BRE - - - - - - -
André Francois Meier André Francois Meier - 4,964 - 16 4,980 2,287 7,267
476 11,238 1,617 30 13,361 3,410 16,771
Independent Non-executive Directors BUKHTES
Lai Si Ming BER 238 - - - 238 80 318
Wong Wing Yue, Rosaline IAF 238 - - - 238 80 318
Lee Tat Cheung, Vincent TER 238 - - - 238 80 318
714 - - - 714 240 954
1,190 11,238 1,617 30 14,075 3,650 17,725

i

1

§ 4

i

EHARAE

e

SRS
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERR B EE

10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND INDIVIDUALS WITH 10. ESMMERESME AT (8)
HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(i) Directors’ remuneration (Continued) (i) =B (E)
2012
5%
Employer's
contribution
Allowances  to retirement
Directors’ Basic and other benefit Share-based
fees salaries benefits scheme Sub-total payments Total
2R BB DR BER
R0k X5 EtRT HEEEEN NGt PANE @t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET THET TET TET TET TET

(Note)
(i)
Executive Directors HnEs
Eav Yin BE 238 3,875 2,151 - 6,264 1,105 7,369
Eav Ming Keong, Kinson Lk 238 1,959 1,331 12 3,540 828 4,368
Duong Ming Chi, Henry HRE
(appointed on 7th July 2011) (R=Z——F+tA+A
EZf) - = - - - - -
André Francois Meier André Francois Meier
(appointed on 26th October 2011) (R=E——%1A
—+ HEZA) - 3,060 - 9 3,069 1,206 4275
Au Shiu Leung, Alex BER
(resigned on 7th July 2011) (M=E——FtA+H
BT 64 860 - 5 929 - 929
540 9,754 3,482 26 13,802 3,139 16,941
Independent Non-executive Directors BUHTES
Lai Si Ming BEH 238 - - - 238 138 376
Wong Wing Yue, Rosaline IR 238 - - - 238 138 376
Lee Tat Cheung, Vincent TEK 238 - - - 238 138 376
714 - - - 714 44 1,128
1,254 9,754 3,482 26 14,516 3,553 18,069

Note: HaE -

1)  There was no arrangement under which a director waived or 1) FRAUEEREFHAEXRAERREAME 2R
agreed to waive any emoluments during the year (2012: Nil). B(ZE—ZF: %) -

2)  During the year, no emolument was paid by the Group to the 2) FA-AEEUEIZMNFESEERRSIEM
directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or AR IMARE B R @ SKIERBEBAEZ M
as compensation for loss of office (2012: Nil). & (ZF—ZF :F) o

3)  During the reporting period, the Company paid HK$3,137,000 3) MAREHA - ARQAF X 8,137,0000% T
(2012: HK$2,915,000) for directors’ accommodation which is T — 429150008 0) REEZ1E
included in allowances and other benefits. EEEEREMET -

4)  As at 31st March 2013, the directors held share options under 4) RZZE—Z=ZF=ZA=+—H EFRELF
company’s share option scheme. The details of the share ERETEISAERE BREFBERES
options are disclosed under the paragraph “share option GRS 2 R 25T E | BB R Mi5E32(a)+F
scheme” in the report of the directors and Note 32(a). B -

ﬂ
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND INDIVIDUALS WITH 10. ESMMERESME AT (8)
HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(ii) Individuals with highest emoluments (i) E=MEAL
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, three AfimmHALTH = (ZE—=—F: 0
(2012: four) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed i) EE 2B &AM FE106)4H 5 o Hah=fL
in Note 10(j). The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of SRERE(ZE——F: —f)ATEARAZ
the other two (2012: one) senior management is as follows: e @zEmT :
2013 2012
—E—-=F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FETT
Basic salaries, allowances and other BEA¥F &  EMREMBEF
benefits 3,000 1,772
Performance related incentive payments FB REIRIA 97 2,956
Employer’s contribution to retirement RRAE T Bl F R
benefit scheme 28 12
Share-based payment expense LARR 19 B B/ 2 45K 307 465
3,432 5,205
The emoluments of the remaining two (2012: one senior BT UEfErRE(—E——F: —(UAaREr"
management) senior management with the highest B)SSH AT ZHMENF T3 &EE

emoluments are within the following bands:

Number of individuals

A"
2013 2012
—E—-=F —F—_F
HK$1,000,001 - HK$1,500,000 1,000,001/% 7T - 1,500,000/ 7T 1 -
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,001/ 7t - 2,500,000/%8 7T 1 -
HK$5,000,001 - HK$5,500,000 5,000,001/ 7t - 5,500,000/ 7T - 1
2 1
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11.

ﬂ:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

B §5 ER R B 5F

1. REWNEEAZFRSH

2013 2012
—E-=F —E—_F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET

Current tax BVHAT: 18
PRC Corporate Income Tax Rl EFTIS 654 10,439

Under-provision in respect of prior years NEFERETRE

PRC Corporate Income Tax R EEFTEH 48 230
702 10,669

Deferred tax EER IR
Current year KEE (309) (627)
393 10,042

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of Bermuda and the British
Virgin Islands, the Group is not subject to any income tax in these
jurisdictions.

No Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided for in the
consolidated financial statements as the Group did not have any
estimated assessable profits subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax for
the years ended 31st March 2013 and 2012.

Taxation for PRC subsidiary companies is provided at the current
rate of 25% (2012: 25%).

The subsidiary in Switzerland is subject to Switzerland Profits Tax
at the rate of 24% (2012: 24%). No Switzerland Profits Tax has
been provided for in the consolidated financial statements as the
Group did not have any estimated assessable profits subject to
Switzerland Profits Tax for the years ended 31st March 2013 and
2012.

BREARENEBREZESNRREER A&
BELEREEERBEAHMBIMAESH -

AR AEAREHE T —FR - T—=F=A
T+ AU EEESAMBERRITER G
ERFER MY ERBEFESRIELEE -

FENBARZRBLUEE ZIRITHEAE25% (=
T— T 25%) (EH B -

RisT 2B AR TREREAR24% (ZE—=
F:24%) REE-ZT——_FR-_FT—=F=
A=+—BLFE BRAEETEZKITFE
MEE 2 EMEFERTET - BURB IR T FE
MRRE M HREA P EE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

11.

12.

13.

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

(Continued)

Reconciliation between tax expenses and accounting loss at

applicable tax rates:

11.

REWmETAZPRIE

S (48)

BIARX EEtBRIZERARERAE 2 Bk

2013 2012
—E-=F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
(Restated)
(E51)
Loss before taxation BBl Al ES 1B (208,351) (50,728)
Notional tax on loss before taxation, }Tzﬁﬂi%ﬁ’]ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬂé # i A
calculated at the tax rates applicable to EAHEORBIAIEE
losses in the countries concerned Z%R 3 (45,058) (7,673)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses ERE ETENBZ X ﬁZ%Ri‘%E“ 34,979 13,368
Tax effect of non-taxable income ERMFEETITARAB WA ZE B E (5,109) (7,564)
Tax effect of unused tax losses not recognised KRWHERZ RKEAHEBBZHETE 12,562 9,419
Tax effect of deductible temporary REERZANB I ERER
difference not recognised BT E 4,461 2,262
Tax effect of utilisation of unused tax losses FRAREFERACMEEER MG E 9) -
Government subsidy S #8 Bh (1,481) -
Under-provision in prior years NEFERETR 48 230
Actual tax expenses ERBEES S 393 10,042
There was no income tax relating to components of other BE—_E2——Eh-_FE—=F=Z/A=+—HIF
comprehensive (loss)/income for the years ended 31st March 2013 ﬁ TEAEAMEE (BE) WHEBEEKRD 2
and 2012. FRiG# -
LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY 12. BEBIRHRASIBEAZEIR
The consolidated loss attributable to the owners of the Company BERRAAREEAZEAERETR BRI B &
includes a loss of HK$224,949,000 (2012: HK$50,879,000) which AR TS 5 2 224,949 00058 7T 2 18 (—
has been dealt with in the financial statements of the Company. = —— 14 : 50,879,000 ;T 2@ F) ©
DIVIDENDS 13. I2a
The directors do not propose any payment of final dividend for the EEfERRRHEE—_E—==A=+—H1F

year ended 31st March 2013.

A final dividend of 0.2 HK cents per share, totaling HK$6,834,000
for the year ended 31st March 2011 was paid in October 2011.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14. LOSS PER SHARE

H

(a)

Basic loss per share

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on loss
attributable to owners of the Company of HK$208,746,000
(2012: HK$60,770,000) and the weighted average number of
1,005,677,000 ordinary shares (2012: 993,148,000 ordinary
shares) in issue during the year. The weighted average
number of ordinary shares used in the calculation of basic
loss per share for the year ended 31st March 2012 has
accounted for the share consolidation which was effective
from 8th January 2013 and the rights issue completed in
February 2013.

(b) Diluted loss per share
Diluted loss per share is equal to the basic loss per share
for the years ended 31st March 2013 and 2012 because the
outstanding convertible notes had an anti-dilutive effect on
the basic loss per share.
The share option had no dilutive effect because the average
market price of ordinary shares did not exceed the exercise
price of the share option for the years ended 31st March
2013 and 2012.

HRIEER

B §5 ER R B 5F

14. BIREI8

(a)

(b)

BREBKRGEA

BREAEBEENDERAAREAELEIE
208,746,00058 7T (—Z— — 4 : 60,770,000
HBIL) - A KRR F R E 1T 21,005,677,000
A% i AR A0 E 15 (_f—_¢
993,148,000/ F@A%) 51 & - AIEEtHE
*%—:ﬁiﬂﬂr—aﬁ%rsﬂxgmﬁ

Bz TR mEFESE - Equ)\ —=F
—ANBERZBRNHEHRRZ :i:
R e 2 i
BIREHEEE
REBE-_E——FR-_E—=F=A=1+—

FLFESREESERESERERERNE
8 AARARTRZAREZELSEREAR
EBEEREETE -

BREYTEESYE EDAELE xZii’j
mSERITERBE T —FR-_F—=
FZA=t—-HIFEZBRE ?§1E°

Annual Report 2013 |81



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 5 ER 2R Bf 5
15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. ¥A% - IR E Rk
(a) The Group (a) HEE
Furniture, Leasehold  Machinery
Land and fixtures and improve- and Motor Construction
buildings fittings ments  equipment vehicles in progress Total
HE R HE B
THRER REE  NEEE R#f "E  HEBIRE aa
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FEx FET FET FEx FET FET
At 1st April 2011 RZE——EmA—-A
Cost AR 8,365 3,259 43,972 23,522 2,885 - 82,003
Accumulated depreciation 2iiE (2,584) (2,251) (33,884) (17,051) (1,601) - (57,371)
Carrying amount FHFE 5,781 1,008 10,088 6,471 1,284 - 24,632

Year ended 31st March 2012 E-CEZR-T-HIEEFE

Opening carrying amount HOEREFE 5,781 1,008 10,088 6,471 1,284 - 24,632
Translation differences BEEE 93 1 223 191 - - 508
Additions NE 2,455 75 20,939 2,696 - 11,380 37,545
Transfer from investment BNERE

properties (Note 17) &R (Wit17) 2,785 - - - - - 2,785
Depreciation charge FEZM (592) (464) (11,567) (2,671) (516) - (15,810)
Closing carrying amount HAERHFE 10,522 620 19,683 6,687 768 11,380 49,660
At 31st March 2012 RZE-Z£=f=1-H
Cost KAE 17,509 3,338 62,656 25,535 2,885 11,380 123,303
Accumulated depreciation 2iE (6,987) (2,718) (42,973) (18,848) 2,117) - (73,643)
Carrying amount FRFE 10,522 620 19,683 6,687 768 11,380 49,660

Year ended 31st March 2013 TE-ZEZAZ+-RAILEE

Opening carrying amount HEEFE 10,522 620 19,683 6,687 768 11,380 49,660
Translation differences BEZE (304) - (146) (187) - 433 (204)
Additions NE - 66 4,788 2,943 - 31,094 38,891
Transfer B - - 36,314 - - (36,314) -
Transfer to investment BRENERE

properties (Note 17(f) and 15(g)  (H/&£17(9%15(g) (2,186) - - - - - (2,186)
Write off Lt - - (2,308) (19) - (6,503) (9,420)
Impairment (Note 15(h)) BB (W 150) - - (2,310) (40) - - (2,350)
Depreciation charge HESH (319) (392)  (27,373) (3,562) (515) - (@2161)
Closing carrying amount WREEFE 7,713 294 28,148 5,822 253 - 42,230
At 31st March 2013 RZE-=5=f=1-H
Cost KA E 10,352 3,406 94,199 27,469 2,885 - 138,311
Accumulated depreciation 2E (2,639) (3,112 (66,051) (21,647) (2,632) - (96,081)
Carrying amount FRFE 7,713 294 28,148 5,822 253 - 42,230
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

ﬂ:

(b)

(d)

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-

line basis at the following rates per annum:

Freehold land and construction in progress are not depreciated

Leasehold land 2% or over the remaining
terms of the leases, if shorter

2 - 4% or over the remaining
lease period, if shorter

15-20%

5 -50% or over the remaining
lease period, if shorter

20 - 50%

20%

Buildings

Furniture, fixtures and fittings
Leasehold improvements

Machinery and equipment
Motor vehicles

The analysis of the carrying amounts of land and buildings is
as follows:

15. % - BB R

(b)

(c)

B §5 ER R B 5F

(48)

ME - BB RREUNBRERTINFEFE
wE:

KAEH T W RAER TR T RITE

HELH 2%k LA & T F H
(BB E B%E)

gF 2 - A% BT
FH (UAREE BE)

RE -REREE 15-20%

THEWmERE 5-50% L ALABT
FH(UAREE B%E)

2SR A 20 - 50%

RE 20%

THRETFZHREEIFTAOT

The Group
rEE
2013 2012
—E—-=F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Land and buildings THREF
In Hong Kong REB
Long-term leases REBHEE 841 935
Outside Hong Kong BB SN
Medium-term leases FHIEE 2,374 2,402
Freehold KA FERE 4,498 7,185
7,713 10,522

Freehold land owned by the Group is located in Switzerland,
which has an unlimited useful life and therefore is not
depreciated. The carrying amount of the land as at 31st
March 2013 is HK$4,498,000 (2012: HK$7,185,000).

The land and buildings owned by the Group are located in
the PRC, Hong Kong and Switzerland.

At 31st March 2013, land and buildings of HK$3,198,000
(2012: HK$3,319,000) were pledged as securities for bank
loans as detailed in Note 37.

The land and buildings with carrying amount of
HK$2,186,000 transferred to investment properties during
the year were revalued at HK$3,573,000. The revaluation
surplus of HK$1,387,000 in respect of the land and buildings
upon the transfer were recognised in other comprehensive
income.

HASEREAKARE LRt - %
BARHRZERFHRALTTIHE - R =
T-=FZA=+—R LtHZEESES
4,498,000/% 7T (= F — — % : 7,185,000/8
7T)

MAKEER 2 LW REFHURTE - F
BNt -

WZZT—=fF=ZA=+—H 3,198,000/
T2 REF(ZZT— 4 3,319,000/8
L) EEBIBTTERZIER  FEHENME
37

FN - BRA{E2,186,000/8 T 2 T i M iEF
EBEREIEME S AS,573,0008 T o
8 0% B b 1 i )2 2 R E 1 A #31,387,00078
TEEMEE RS ER -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R §5 ER R B 5F

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

(h) During the year ended 31st March 2013, the Group
recognised an impairment loss of HK$2,310,000 on leasehold
improvements as a store was closed subsequent to the
reporting period by early termination of tenancy agreement.
The directors are of the opinion that the recoverable amount
of the balance was less than its carrying amount.

15. % ~ BBz HE (68)

(h REBE-ZT-—=F=ZA=+—HILFE H
REEREDRREBRILEEAEREM

mE - AEBEHEMERERES

R (B 5 18

2310 00087 - EER A A E SR

BHRENEERmEHE -

16. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS ST %E
The Group
rEE
2013 2012
—E-—=F —E—_F
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
At 1st April RMA—H 21,627 1,087
Translation difference BREZ®E 251 (6)
Additions NE - 20,998
Amortisation o (499) (452)
At 31st March R=A=+—H 21,379 21,627
The Group’s prepaid lease payments comprise: AEBZHEBRNRIERE
HK$°000 HK$’000
FETT FET
Long-term leases in Hong Kong REAZRBPHAE 1,075 1,080
Medium-term leases in the PRC RhEzhHEE 20,304 20,547
21,379 21,627
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Analysis for reporting purposes as: HRIEB DT -
Current portion BB 505 499
Non-current portion JERBNEB D 20,874 21,128
21,379 21,627
At 31st March 2013, certain prepaid lease payments of RZE—=ZF=ZA=+—H BEFTEAE
HK$20,833,000 (2012: HK$21,081,000) were pledged as securities 20,833,000/ 7T (—ZF — 4% : 21,081,000/ 7T)
for bank loans as detailed in Note 37. WEEBEMNRBERITEFER - FBHAME
37 °
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17.

ﬂ

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt F5 R 2R BT 5
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 17. BEWE
The Group
AEH
2013 2012
—E-=F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
At valuation HESE

At 1st April RnMA—A 159,599 105,746
Translation difference MEERE 19 420
Acquisitions g - 27,292
Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 36) HE—HEWE R R (#:#36) - (4,275)
Transfer from/(to) land and buildings (Note 15(g)) 8w ~(Z) Lt MEF (K:£15()) 37573 (2,785)
Fair value gains DA B 7,792 33,201
At 31st March R=A=+—H 170,983 159,599

The Group’s property interests held under operating leases to
earn rentals are measured using the fair value model and are
classified and accounted for as investment properties.

At 31st March 2013, certain investment properties of
HK$151,676,000 (2012: HK$144,827,000) were pledged as

securities for bank loans as detailed in Note 37.

The carrying amount of investment properties held by the Group

AEBZEHERTHANDERERARRES D
RAAAEENGE  UOBRRAREDENLR -

R—_ZE—=Z=F=Z/A=Z=+—HB HTEE
151,676,000/ 7T (— = ——4F : 144,827,000/ 7T)
I EMERIERITETIIF - 5K 37 -

REBR _E——FR_ET—=F=A=+—H

at 31st March 2013 and 2012 comprises: I EYEZERESE
The Group
REE
2013 2012
—E—-=F —EF—_F
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
In Hong Kong, held on: ERBZREEE
- Long leases 126,600 120,000
Outside Hong Kong, held on: FERB LA
- Medium leases FREFEE 27,476 27,137
- Long leases REEE 6,606 5,946
- Freehold KA 10,301 6,516
44,383 39,599
170,983 159,599
TEEER
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

17. INVE

STMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

The Group’s investment properties outside Hong Kong with carrying
amount of HK$4,821,000 (2012: HK$4,317,000) are registered under
the name of other persons in trust for the Group.

At 31st March 2013 and 2012, the Group’s investment properties in
the PRC were valued by DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited, a firm of
independent valuer who holds a recognised and relevant professional
qualification and has recent experience in the location and category
of properties being valued on an open market basis calculated by
reference to recent market transactions in comparable properties.

At 31st March 2013, the Group’s investment properties in Hong
Kong were valued by DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited (2012: DTZ
Debenham Tie Leung Limited and Prudential Surveyors International
Limited), the firms of independent valuers who hold a recognised
and relevant professional qualification and have recent experience
in the location and category of properties being valued on an open
market basis calculated by reference to recent market transactions in
comparable properties.

At 31st March 2013 and 2012, the Group’s investment properties in
Switzerland were valued by Pierre Berset S.A., a firm of independent
valuer who holds a recognised and relevant professional qualification
and has recent experience in the location and category of properties
being valued on an open market basis calculated by reference to net
rental income allowing for reversionary income potential.

As at 31st March 2013, the valuation gain on investment properties
amounting to HK$7,792,000 (2012: gain of HK$33,201,000) is
recognised in the consolidated income statement.

The fair value of the properties transferred from property, plant and
equipment at the date of transfer had been arrived at on the basis of
a valuation carried out on that date by Pierre Berset S.A., a firm of
independent valuer who holds a recognized and relevant professional
qualification and has recent experience in the location and category
of properties being valued on an open market basis calculated by
reference to net rental income allowing for reversionary income
potential.

18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

17. 88

Byat -

(a)

(b)

ZEE )]

IR B AL E S LA [ BR T % 584,821,000 7T
(ZZF——4 4,317,000 7T) 2 L EWE Ty A H
AREEETAZEMATETER -

R-B-——FER-_FT—=%=A=+—H K&
BN PRECREVERRBERITRABEEE
EARERRENTSHZERER B BEEE
1IDTZEE AT HRARSERBMBER S
MEFEW IR AFMISEEGE -

R-ZE—Z=ZF=ZA=1+—HB AEEEEBZKR
EMEHBAERATREBEXERUARESRRA
ITHIZ RIS R 2 B B XM ETDTZEERT
BERAB(ZE—ZF : DTZBERITERAFA R
Prudential Surveyors International Limited) 2%

TSRS L MEFE TR ARMIGEE
518 -
RZE-—ZFR-ZF-=F=ZA=+—H8 X%&§

Eiﬁj:Z&éf?@%Bﬂ%ﬁ%ﬂ&*ﬁEﬁiii%;ﬁ*%
LREARATHZENER B EEMGEET
Pierre Berset S.AX#EFH & WA Z A& H A
BARMSEEGE -

RZTE—=F=ZA=+—8 6 KFZXER
ZHREYMELERE A7,792,0008 T (=T —=
F : f2533,201,000/8 7T) ©

FL%EI%EH%% BERIEBEREMEZD
THELEESR  ARBARIRIEEEEER - UK
HEAEBANTHZMEBNCH 2B EEGKET
Pierre Berset S.AKEFH A ZWAE NG
HWIR AR S EEGERET 2 HEABER -

18. IRMEABZIRE

The Company

AT
2013 2012
—E-=F —E—C_F
HK$°000 HK$°000
TR TET
Unlisted shares, at cost LMkt - AR 320,837 320,837
Less: impairment loss R REEE (320,837) (320,837)
Amounts due from subsidiaries JEU M B A B FRI8 1,194,688 -
Impairment loss recognised TR (B B 18 (924,459) -
270,229 -
The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free FE U T B A B S IE A L %E\&fgﬁﬂ%g@—
and not expected to be recovered within one year. In the opinion FERULE o é%ﬁ’\]%ﬁmﬁ C REULH B A T
of the directors, the amounts due from subsidiaries are considered BB ABUSERKMEB AT - Ft e ;E;é_.,z]gi

as q

classi

uasi-investments in the subsidiaries and therefore are
ified as non-current assets in the current year.
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18.

H

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

In prior years, due to the poor operating performance of the
relevant subsidiaries, the carrying amount had been impaired
by approximately HK$320,837,000 through the recognition
of impairment losses. After considering the poor operating
performance of the relevant subsidiaries, the directors of the
Company are of the opinion that investment cost of these
subsidiaries would not have significant value to the Group and
such amount has already been fully impaired in prior years, and
impairment loss should not be reversed.

As at 31st March 2013, the amounts due from subsidiaries were
unsecured and repayable on demand. Except for an amount of
approximately HK$20,162,000 with interest charged at prevailing
prime rate less 2% per annum, the remaining balance were non-
interest bearing.

Impairment losses amounting to approximately HK$207,384,000
were made during the year ended 31st March 2013 due to the
poor operating performance of certain subsidiaries.

18.

B §5 ER R B 5F

RIEASZRE ()

RBEFE REBEMBARKERREXRE B
Bt E BR M B 7 52 5 (8 85 18 49320,837,000/% T °
ZRAEMBARKCERARE  AARERER
B RZENBARIZRERAKR TG AAEERT
REMEREE ZERERBEFEEHEZH
BB IE A N R o

RZTE—=ZF=ZA=Z+—8 EBERHBAA
REAERBTERERGEE - BRAHEY
20,162,000/ 12 & KRB B EF2% T EFE
Oh EBRIBARE °

REE-Z-—=ZF=A=+—HIFEEEZR
EER S #A2207,384,0008 7T » JHEE THIE
NRMEERERE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

18.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries
which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the

Group.

Place of
incorporation or
establishment
or registration/

Paid up
issued ordinary
share capital/

18. RME AT ZIRE (&)

UTF&IBELEYE
S POETR

Proportion of
nominal value of
issued share capital/
registered capital

AEEXE BEXAB

Name of subsidiary operation registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
EMBK LS EACROEE ERAMBERTRE/
WEAREE T BE/ERER ZREAEEZEALL TEER
Directly Indirectly
H# k3
AC (Overseas) Limited British Virgin Islands HK$10,000 100% - Investment holding
EBEAHES 10,0007 7 100% - RERR
Juvenia Montres S.A. Switzerland SFr.1,875,000 - 100% Assembling and
Kt 1,875,000 5% 5 marketing of gold and
jewellery watches
- 100% ERMEHEERERR
BEAERA (LB ES People’s Republic HK$150,000,000 - 100% Watch trading
BRRA of China*
REARAME 150,000,000/ T - 100% BRES
Time City (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong HK$3,000,000 - 100% Watch trading
BEERM (BE)ERAF B 3,000,000 7T - 100% #EHRES
Juvenia (Hong Kong) Company Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 - 100% Brand development and
Limited watch trading
B2 (FR)BRAR B 5,000,000/ 7T - 100% mEERREERES
Accord Watch & Jewellery Hong Kong HK$3,500,100 = 100% Brand development and
(International) Limited watch trading
Ve EHHE (HR)BRAR BB 3,500,1007% 7T - 100% Mg ERERERE S
Asia Commercial Property British Virgin Islands/ US$1 100% - Property holding and
Holdings Limited Hong Kong investment
RBRAHE/BE 1% 100% - NEBERRE
MGEEEERKEARDLA People’s Republic RMB1,000,000 - 100% Watch trading
of China*
REARAME 1,000,000 A & % - 100% BRES
Wakmann Watch (International) Hong Kong HK$20,000,000 - 50% Brand development and
Company Limited (Note) watch trading
F 8 BIRERRA (M) Bk 20,000,000/ 7T - 50% mEERRERE S
* Registered under the laws of The People’s Republic of China as a * REPEAREMBZZAMAEEZEINERE -
wholly foreign-owned enterprise.
# Registered under the laws of The People’s Republic of China as a # BEPFEAREMBEEZSMAERAGE -
domestic enterprise.
Note: The Group holds 50% of the issued and paid-up capital of Wakmann MeT: AEEFERREBEEERAR ([He2])50%

EETEBREAR -RE-_F-——F=A=+—
AzwzahmE AEmEfRreE8ETR A
BRoo Bt AEEZEG R E RBREAWER

Watch (International) Company Limited (“Wakmann”). Under the
supplementary agreement dated 31st March 2012, the Group
controls the composition of the board of directors of Wakmann.

Therefore the Group controls Wakmann and classified it as Al e
subsidiary.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt F5 R 2R BT 5
19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 19. O HEZIZE
The Group
AEH

2013 2012

—E—-=F —ET——F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Investments in "ER
Club debentures, net SHES  FE 6,300 6,056

20.

ﬂ

The club debentures are measured at fair value. Fair value of
the club debentures has been determined by reference to the
bid price quoted in an active market. The increase in carrying
amount of HK$244,000 for the year ended 31st March 2013 (2012:
HK$783,000) was due to the increase in their fair values.

EMEFRAREFE  WEMESFZARETD

2EMSLZ2EEMEE #HE2-_T—=F=A
=+—HIEFE - REIRAELE244,0007%8
T (ZZ——4 :783,00087t) r NEAEEM
ZARE -

INVENTORIES 20. F&
The Group
AEH
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FETT
Watches k=
Raw materials R4 # 102,794 95,672
Work in progress F RN 507 2,824
Finished goods UK 533,111 544,383
636,412 642,879
Less: write-down of inventories B T EMOR (67,341) (46,285)
569,071 596,594
At 31st March 2013, certain inventories of HK$136,244,000 (2012: R-ZE—=F=A=+—H ' 136,244,000/ L2
HK$159,611,000) were pledged as securities for bank loans as EFFE(ZZE—=F :159,611,000/% L) 2 & 1F
detailed in Note 37. ERBITERMER - FHIBH M FE37 -

The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an
expenses and included in profit or loss is as follows:

ERABAXLIABRZEFESRZOMMT

The Group
AEE

2013 2012
—E—=fF —E-F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Carrying amount of inventories sold HEGFEZEREEE 807,478 737,894
Write-down of inventories T EMOR 21,056 3,527
828,534 741,421
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R §5 ER R B 5F

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

21. SAREDEIRER

The Group The Company
AEE AATF

2013 2012 2013 2012
—E—-=F T F —E-=F —E——F
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FEIT
Trade receivables 5 RUIE K 28,495 47,467 = -
Allowance for doubtful debts AR = = = -
28,495 47,467 - _
Other receivables ot UL AR 5K 3,990 1,950 - -
Loans and receivables B 3R e Uk BR 3R 32,485 49,417 = -
Deposits and prepayments Re KB FHIE 60,843 46,368 282 271
93,328 95,785 282 271

The Group allows credit period of ranging from cash on delivery to
90 days to its customers. The aging analysis of trade receivables
of HK$28,495,000 (2012: HK$47,467,000) at the end of the

AEERTHEEHIEKREORZEER-
RBEHR BEXZAH2ZEHEKRER
28,495,000 7T (=& — — 4 : 47,467,000/ 7T)

reporting period based on invoice date is as follows: ZEREANWMT
The Group
EEE
2013 2012
—E—=fF —E-F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Trade receivables B 5 EWERR
Up to 90 days BNEBZ=90H 22,583 45,647
91 to 180 days 91%2180H 3,137 174
181 to 365 days 181£365H 2,648 1,429
Over 365 days 365H LA £ 127 217
28,495 47,467
Representing: A -
Trade receivables B S EWERR
— Third parties —%=h 26,570 40,284
- Related companies —FEQ A 1,925 7,183
28,495 47,467

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other receivables
at 31st March 2013 and 2012 approximate their fair values.

The carrying amount of 68% (2012: 91%) of the Group’s trade
receivables are denominated in Renminbi.

All of the trade receivables and other receivables are expected to
be recovered or recognised as expenses within one year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(a)

Impairment of trade receivables

Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables are

recorded using an allowance account unless the Group is
satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote, in which
case the impairment loss is written off against trade

receivables directly (see Note 3(i)(i)).

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts during the
reporting period, including both specific and collective loss

component, is as follows:

21.

B §5 ER R B 5F

SARHth EUIRR (&)

(a) BRAEUERRIEE

FEMBR 2 AR B A B B AR FC SR~ RIEAS
SEAELKREFKE A REEERN - X
AT REBRKERHEESBRKER (R
BT EE3()()) <

RBEHRREREZED (BREFERE
R T

i

The Group
AEHE

2013 2012
—E-=F —E—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
At 1st April R A—AH - -
Impairment loss recognised BERRZBEERE - 712
Uncollectible amounts written off R AR 8 - (712)
At 31st March R=A=+—H - -

At 31st March 2012, the Group’s trade receivables of
HK$712,000 were individually determined to be impaired.

RN-_E——FZA=+—H AELEE5E
Uy BE $712,000/8 7T B B R T RLE °

(b) Trade receivables that are not impaired (b) HEiR{AZSAMUERR
The aging analysis of the trade receivables that are neither RIREIE A - BREE R R B R IERE L
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired, based BHRUBEFRRATOT :
on due date, are as follows:
The Group
rEH
2013 2012
—E-=F —E—_F
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Neither past due nor impaired N 48 780 HA SO B 22,583 45,647
Less than 90 days past due i1 HE > 7290 H 3,137 174
91 to 180 days past due #HI91=180H 2,648 1,429
Over 181 days past due #EI181H A £ 127 217
5,912 1,820
28,495 47,467
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 21. SERHEhEUER (&)

(b) Trade receivables that are not impaired (Continued)

Trade receivables are due within 90 days from the date of
billings. Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a wide range of customers for whom there was no
recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
management believes that no impairment allowance is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been
a significant change in credit quality and the balances are
still considered fully recoverable. The Group does not hold
any collateral over these balances.

22. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) SUBSIDIARIES

(b) HEifi{A2 S 2MUERR (68)

B o RN Z R RE A RLI0RA AR - £
EARNIREZLEZERERERERSZ Y
EAMRFEEZEPA

BAHEEREZERERESRBILIEP
B REEPEAKBEZERCHRY -
RIBBERSR BEERS RTHEHBEA
FHRERE  NENEEEART BEAE
8 BESDEGFET 2EE - REET
ERUEERTAEMERR -

22. MUY (FEfT) BB A S FR1A

The Company

VNN
2013 2012
—E-=F —E—_F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
(a) Amounts due from subsidiaries (a) FE WP B A Bl FE - 1,024,514
Impairment loss recognised B R - (717,075)
- 307,439
(b) Amounts due to subsidiaries (b) FE A BT BB 2 A1 FR 13,400 13,408

As at 31st March 2012, the amounts due from subsidiaries were
unsecured and repayable on demand. Except for an amount of
approximately HK$19,567,000 with interest charged at prevailing
prime rate less 2% per annum, the remaining balance were non-
interest bearing.

Impairment losses amounting to approximately HK$28,299,000
were made during the year ended 31st March 2012 due to the
poor operating performance of certain subsidiaries.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

87t #5 #R 2= Bff 5
23. TRADING SECURITIES 23, BEES
The Group
rEE

2013 2012

—E—-=F —ET——F

HK$°000 HK$°000

FET FET

Listed equity securities at fair value ITHEFZARE - BE
- in Hong Kong 3,845 7,098

24.

ﬂ:

The fair value of listed equity securities is based on their closing
bid price at the end of the reporting period.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

EWES

24. RERNESEN

ZRREARRERRAWTZEANE

The Group The Company
rEE NN
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E—-=F T F —E-=F —E—_F
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET FETT FET
Cash at bank and on hand RITFERRFHERS 119,032 90,111 65,455 40,367
Less: pledged bank deposits R EEFRITIER
(Note 37) (H12£37) (2,272) (3,965) - -
Cash and cash equivalents in RirE M Bk & &
the consolidated statement of FEREREBRIT
financial position and the MWiRE RS EEY
consolidated statement
of cash flows 116,760 86,146

The Group’s cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank and
in hand of HK$42,482,000 (equivalent to RMB34,016,000) held in
the PRC as at 31st March 2013 (2012: HK$38,103,000 (equivalent
to RMB30,890,000)).
balance into foreign currencies and the remittance of such

The conversion of RMB denominated

foreign-currency denominated bank balances and cash out of the
PRC are subject to the relevant rules and regulations of foreign
exchange control promulgated by the PRC government.

Cash at banks carry interest at market rates which range from
0.001% to 0.44% (2012: 0.01% to 0.5%) per annum. The bank
balances are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent
history of default.

RZE—=ZFZA=Z+—BAEEEHER
WrRERBSEVRERTIERFERS
/342,482,000/% 7T (#H% 734,016,0007T A &
¥)(=—Z— =4 :38,103,000/8 5t (HER
30,890,000;t ARY)) - AR EABERSE
INE RZSINETENRITERE S R P E A
ZER  ZERBEBTEMGRINEERIENRE
BRARE -

RRAZRLRTEAEI S WEN TRE
B0.001%%E0.44% 2 (ZZ——F : 0.01% =
0.5%) * RITEBRT RN BIELTENLH IS
BRBHET -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt ¥ ¥R 2R Bff 5
25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 25. B RH fih [E {8 =k
The Group The Company
rEE NN
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=F —Z—-F —E-=F —ZE—-F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FEr FET FET
Trade payables B SRR 45,702 41,844 - -
Other payables and accrued HMENRRKESER
charges 49,933 37,746 3,429 2,610
Financial liabilities measured LA E e BE
at amortised cost 95,635 79,590 3,429 2,610
Rental received in advance B S 75 75 - -
Deposits received Bz 3,496 2,194 - -
Other tax payable EfhEMAEIE 108,670 91,000 - -
207,876 172,859 3,429 2,610
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other payables at E(\: ——FRZE—=ZF=ZA=+—HBAX%EH
31st March 2013 and 2012 approximate their fair values. BN EMEMNERZEREEEARBEMEE -
All of the trade and other payables are expected to be settled FMEEME S REMENEREAAR —FRNEE
or recognised as income within one year or are repayable on KR ABUWA - HIEBEREE -
demand.
The carrying amounts of the trade payables of the Group are AEFEENESRERCEAEEIENUARKTE -
mainly denominated in Renminbi.
The aging analysis of trade payables based on date of receipt of RNBEEKR  BERIINERZEHZENE 5B
goods as at the end of the reporting period is as follows: WO -
The Group
rEE
2013 2012
—E—=F —E—_F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Trade payables Z 5 TR
Up to 90 days BN EBZ=90H 43,003 34,784
91 to 180 days 91%180H 137 5,633
181 to 365 days 181£365H 860 95
Over 365 days 365H A £ 1,702 1,332
45,702 41,844
Representing: A -
Trade payables Z 5 ERTIRK
- Third parties —£= E 45,686 36,626
- Related companies *EE 16 5,218
45,702 41,844
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B §5 ER R B 5F

26. BANK LOANS 26. WRiTES
The Group
AEHE
2013 2012
—E—-=F —ET——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Bank loans WITIEE
- secured — B 136,398 153,436
- unsecured — A 87,366 80,026
223,764 233,462
The analysis of the carrying amount of bank loans are as follows: RITERZEESEITWT -
The Group
rEE
2013 2012
—E—-=F —E—_F
HK$°000 HK$°000
FETT FHET
Current liabilities mBEE
Portion of bank loans due for repayment —FREEERZ D
within one year IRITER 93,668 47,955
Portion of bank loans due for repayment within ~ —FRE|HEEILDRITZER
one year which contains a repayment on H A8 #5122 SO IR
demand clause 55,836 74,087
Portion of bank loans due for repayment —FIRINEEER 2 M5 RT
after one year which contains a repayment ERHBEREX
on demand clause (note i) BRAER(AT #i) 74,260 111,420
223,764 233,462

m
A
ll
ﬂ}
<[:{?
B
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26. BANK LOANS (Continued)

26.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

At 31st March 2013, the bank loans were due for repayment as ——FZA=+—H HHEEZRTE
follows: m
The Group
rEHE
2013 2012
—E—-=F —EF—_F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Portion of bank loans due for repayment —FRIBPEREZ
within one year RITE M 149,504 122,042
Bank loans due for repayment —FRIBERECRITER
after one year (note ii): (Bt azii) -
After 1 year but within 2 years —FEEMFRN 37,160 37,160
After 2 years but within 5 years MERBRERAFA 37,100 74,260
74,260 111,420
223,764 233,462
Note: W
i) None of the portion of bank loans due for repayment after one year i) —FRIHEERRTERMESMEBIERFE X
which contain a repayment on demand clause and that is classified as BHRERXREDEAEHR—FERNEBEZRHAE

a current liability is expected to be settled within one year.

ii) The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates as
stipulated in the respective loan agreements.

The bank loans are carried at amortised cost.

The effective interest rates (which are also equal to contracted
interest rates) on the Group’s bank loans are ranged from 2.90%
t0 7.21% (2012: 3.63% to 9.00%) per annum.

As at 31st March 2013, the secured bank loans were secured
by (i) pledged of assets as disclosed in note 37, (ii) corporate
guarantees given by the Company (iii) assignment of dividends
payable by BEEEM (L) EHERAE and shareholder’s
loans of BImEFRM (F/8) EHEMAA advanced or to be
advanced by Time City (Hong Kong) Limited and (iv) assignment of
rental income from certain investment properties.

As at 31st March 2013, the unsecured bank loans of
HK$18,676,000 (2012: HK$Nil) is guaranteed by the bank deposit
of HK$3,900,000 owned by a director, Mr. Eav Yin and corporate
guarantees from the Company and certain subsidiaries.
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27.

28.

ﬂ:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LOANS FROM A DIRECTOR

During the year ended 31st March 2012, a subsidiary of the Group
borrowed loans of HK$80,000,000 from a director, Mr. Eav Yin.
The loans are unsecured, bearing interest at the Hong Kong dollar
prime rate as quoted by the Hong Kong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited (“HSBC”) plus 1% per annum and repayable
on demand. The Group made repayments of HK$15,000,000
during the year ended 31st March 2012 and the balance of loans
outstanding as at 31st March 2012 amounted to HK$65,000,000.
During the year ended 31st March 2013, the Group borrowed
additional loans of HK$21,000,000, made further repayments of
HK$72,000,000 and the balance of the loans outstanding as at
31st March 2013 amounted to HK$14,000,000.

PROVISION FOR STORE CLOSURE

B §5 ER R B 5F

27. EFEZER

RZE—ZF=ZA=+—HIFEHH £5H
BB A Rl & A — & E = 151258 480,000,000% 7T
ZER  ZERWEIKIF - LAF B LIGE LR
(MELRITDREZABLHZEZEMNENFEE1%
AR -R-E-——F-ZA=-+—HILFEHM
NEEEB EiE15,000,0008 70 kR T ——F
= A=+—HZ KEEEFKE % 565,000,000
BT RBE_FE—=F=ZA=Z=+—HILFE
R AN EE A FESNY21,000,00078 T E
#— 5 (EiE72,000,0008 TR T —=F= A
= +—HZREEENHRTA14,000,000% T

o

28. [GifSFERA

The Group
rEE

2013 2012
—E—-=F —ET——F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
At beginning of the year REH) - -
Provisions made during the year FRIEL BB 12,178 -
Exchange difference ERER 46 -
At end of the year REKE 12,224 -

The provision for store closure was made in connection with the
close of various retail stores including the compensation to be
paid to landlords and onerous lease contracts.

RERERTANTEEHEREXNTELIR
FEMEEAHZHEMFLNERERXERE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

29. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 20, IEEiRIEGE
(a) Deferred tax liabilities recognised (a) PRERAZIEEZEREGE
The components of deferred tax liabilities recognised in the WEMERMBRARFERBELERIES
statement of financial position and the movements during the BEZHEKIBH RESEMOT :

reporting period are as follows:

The Group The Company
r&H b
Equity Equity
Revaluation of Revaluation component component
available-for-  of investment  of convertible of convertible
sale investments properties notes Total notes
BTt Bt THRREE TEREE
HEZRE RENE EREBH Ek ERHH
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET FET TET TET
(Restated) (Restated)
(E51) (E51)
Deferred tax arising from: BRESRELERE :
At 1st April 2011 RZE——4MmA-A 870 7,163 1,904 9,937 1,904
Credited to consolidated income STAFERER
statement (870) 243 - (627) -
Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 35) & —RB AR (H235) - (361) - (361) -
Credited to equity SARE - - (899) (899) (899)
At 31st March 2012 W_F-—F=ZA=+-H - 7,045 1,005 8,050 1,005
At 1st April 2012 W-Z-—-#mA—-AH - 7,045 1,005 8,050 1,005
Credited to consolidated income AGE N AR
statement - (309) - (309) -
At 31st March 2013 W-E-ZFzZA=+-H - 6,736 1,005 7,741 1,005
(b) Deferred tax assets not recognised (b) RERZIEERAEGE
The Group has allowable tax losses arising in Hong Kong AREBEBEBELE A ETSETBEERD
of approximately HK$452,594,000 (2012: HK$396,989,000) /452,594,000 L  TER —NNEFE
which are mainly arisen prior to the capital restructuring in REMFEE (ZF— 4 : 396,989,000/%
1997, that are available for offsetting against future taxable JC)  ATRREEEBRELEN A RIKRKER
profits of the companies in which the losses arose. Deferred T A o FRR R s FI S e /B T8 ORI - #R
tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these ERUHEEERAELETIREE - RIBRT
losses due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. BBEp - HIBEETgBH -
The tax losses do not expire under the current tax legislation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (Continued)

30.

ﬂ:

(c) Withholdings tax

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law which took
effect from 1st January 2008, a 5% or 10% withholding
tax was levied on dividends declared to foreign enterprise
investors from PRC effective from 1st January 2008. A
lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax
treaty arrangement between the PRC and the jurisdiction
of the foreign enterprise investors. On 22nd February 2008,
Caishui (2008) No. 1 was promulgated by the PRC tax
authorities to specify that dividends declared and remitted
out of the PRC from the retained earnings as at 31st
December 2007 determined based on the relevant PRC tax
laws and regulations are exempted from the withholding
tax. No deferred tax liabilities have been recognised, as the
Company controls the dividend policy of the subsidiaries
of the Group in PRC and it has been determined that it
is probable that the profits earned by the Group’s PRC
subsidiaries for the period from 1st January 2008 to 31st
March 2013 will not be distributed in the foreseeable future.

CONVERTIBLE NOTES

On 31st August 2010, the Company entered into a placing
agreement with the placing agent, pursuant to which the placing
agent conditionally agreed, to procure placees to subscribe
for convertible notes issued by the Company in an aggregate
principal amount of up to HK$100,800,000 on a “best-efforts”
basis.

On 27th September 2010, the Company completed the placing
of HK$100,800,000 convertible notes to independent placees,
with the price of HK$98,784,000, after deducting transaction cost
of 2% over the principal amount of the convertible notes. The
convertible notes carry interest at 3% per annum and the principal
amounts of all convertible notes shall be due and repayable on the
third anniversary of the date of issue.

The convertible notes entitle their holders to convert their
outstanding principal amounts into new conversion shares at
the initial conversion price of HK$0.84 per conversion share
(subject to anti-dilutive adjustment). Pursuant to the terms and
conditions of the convertible notes, the conversion price of the
convertible notes was adjusted from HK$0.84 per conversion
share to HK$0.168 per subdivided share as a result of the share
subdivision. The above adjustment took effect from the close of
business of Monday, 15th November 2010.

B §5 ER R B 5F

29. ERERIAGIS (48)

(c) TEIDM

REE _ZTNF-A-HREEXNPED
EFREBE AN ELEREETIRRE
B H) BB % 10% BN B =%
ZENF-A—HERER - WhBEENEDE
REEMBRIEER ZREBRIGEELH
AT R BEFEIR MR - RZFTNF
HAZ+=R8 - EEEE R 7©2008)1
BoREBEETLFT_A=T—HHOR
B M Sk M B A B S 2 B B AR R AR R
TEMBERERNEE AT ERCEINR -
AR R AR IR B A F AR R BRI
B M LEEEENKRATRER AT B Z R A
SETEFRARR -_ZTZNF-A-—HEZ
T-=F=A=+—BHERNOE TEN
ETOK R EERRTERAGE -

30. oliRfRZ=HE

RZE—ZTFENA=Z+—8 AQARHEEERE
EREERZ  BEBAREREBERERE -
RIIBEME | % MNAREAREZSAAS S
R 5 = £100,800,00078 7T 2 AR A A B4 17 2 A] #2
BRI o

RZZ—ZFFAA=-F++tH ARARRMKBAER
I E AR S £ 2% % - 15498,784,00078 7T 2 &
B EAHACE S $£100,800,0005 7T 2 Al R I Z 4%
FRIUARA - TERBREBRASNZ FFERFER
FTEABBRER A BB MRERTA
HIE = RFRMEE -

AR EEE T ESE AADGERE (A8
BAR1H0.84 L) BRERITRZASSEEN
EBHRO (BFREFHIERME) - RIETRRERE
B2 R R AGFR > RO A - BB ER
BrEREORTUTERKRN0.84ABTHAREGHR
MRL170.1688 T - LHEH —E—TF+—H
THRAEH - RSGABRMLBER -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R §5 ER R B 5F

30. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued) 30.

Pursuant to the terms and conditions of the convertible notes,
the conversion price of the convertible notes was adjusted from
HK$0.168 per conversion share to HK$1.68 per consolidated
share as a result of the share consolidation (refer to Note 31(a)
for details). The above adjustment took effect from 8th January
2013. Pursuant to the terms and conditions of the convertible
notes, the conversion price of the convertible notes was adjusted
from HK$1.68 per conversion share to HK$0.573 per share as a
result of the rights issue (refer to Note 31(b) for details). The above
adjustment took effect from 16th January 2013.

The movement of the liability component of the convertible notes
is set out as below:

o IRRIE ()

RIBAT R AR IR 2 R R AR AT AR R iRy
RERKOE G B8 BHRE{7N0.168ETTHE
EFAHERM1.68ET (2R KM5E31(a) - LiiF
BR-ZZ-=F-ANBRER - RFEATREFE
B2 SRR TR E R
g —ERRN1.68 B TREEZFMN0.5738 T
(FBE2RMEE31(0) - LAFBR T —=F—
AtRBERAERK -

HMBRREEE D 2 EBEIN AT

The Group and
the Company

AEBRAAT

HK$’000

FET

At 1st April 2011 R-_ZE——FNA—H 49,695
Shares issued upon conversion of BT AR AR

convertible notes BT 2 RMH (21,992)

Interest expenses FERZ 3,454

Payment of interest expenses AR ERE (1,285)

At 31st March 2012 R—ZT——F=HA=+—H 29,872

At 1st April 2012 R-Z——FMA—H 29,872

Interest expenses FERAX 3,304

Payment of interest expenses XA A E R (939)

At 31st March 2013 RZZ-—=F=ZRA=+—H 32,237

Interest expense on the convertible notes was calculated using
the effective interest method by applying the effective rate of
11.92% per annum on the liability component of the convertible
notes.
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31.

z

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERR B EE

SHARE CAPITAL 31. BBk
The Group and the Company
AEBRAEALDT
Number of Number of
ordinary ordinary
shares of shares of
HK$0.02 each HK$0.2 each Amount
SEREE SREE
0.02;8 T2 0.2/ 8T 2
TEREB TEREE -]
Notes ’000 ‘000 HK$’000
gz Fhg FHR FET
Authorised: EERA
At 1st April 2011, R-ZZTE——FWMYA—A
31st March 2012 and - —F=ZA=+—H
1st April 2012 F—E——FmA—H 5,000,000 - 100,000
Share consolidation f&1n & O (a) (5,000,000) 500,000 -
Increase in authorised A E R
share capital - 2,000,000 400,000
At 31st March 2013 R-E—=F=A=+—H - 2,500,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRAR
At 1st April 2011 R-E—FWMA—H 3,250,500 - 65,010
Share issued upon HRABRRERE
conversion 21T
of convertible notes (c) 166,666 - 3,333
At 31st March 2012 R—TE——F=A=+—H 3,417,166 - 68,343
At 1st April 2012 N-ZE——FMH—H 3,417,166 - 68,343
Share consolidation & 1n& o (a) (3,417,166) 341,716 -
Issue of shares under REREIEIT 2R M
rights issue (b) - 1,025,150 205,030
At 31st March 2013 R-ZE—=F=ZA=+—H - 1,366,866 273,373
Notes: Vi

(@

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders
of the Company at the special general meeting of the Company
held on 7th January 2013, the consolidation of ordinary shares in
the share capital of the Company (on the basis that every 10 then
existing issued and unissued ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each were
consolidated into one ordinary share of HK$0.2 each) was approved
and became effective on 8th January 2013.

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders of the
Company at the special general meeting of the Company held on 7th
January 2013, the rights issue at the price of HK$0.2 per rights share
on the basis of three rights shares for every one ordinary share of
HK$0.2 each (immediately after the share consolidation as mentioned
in note (a) above), was approved. The rights issue completed in
February 2013.

During the year ended 31st March 2012, convertible notes with par
value of HK$28,000,000 were converted into 166,666,665 ordinary
shares of the Company of HK$0.02 each at a conversion price of
HK$0.168 per share.

CEYE

(a)

BERARABRRR_T-—=F-ALBERITZXK
RABRRFHIAG BB - AERRAR  ARF
AR EREAM (BHRERDETRARET
FREE.02E Tz TBILL - A6 A REMR
EEC2ETLZ EBBRKRM) A AE YR =F
—=F—ANHRER -

BEAQAGTRER T —=F—ALHETZAR
RARREFRAGRB—BLEBREE U —H#
iR 170.28 T2 BI% (B—R0.2B T2 LBk (&
BERZ 1D & HF 12 a0 £ P aE (a) ATilt) AT 38 = % it
Rt fn 2 B2E) (AR - BERERE - BN =T —=
FZRAFEK °

REBEE-ET-——F=-A=+—HILFEHH "
28,000,000/ 7T 2 & — HE {60.02/8 7T 2 Al R ik 52
BE(BRETR0.168E L) Eik AR AR LA
166,666,665% 17 °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

32. EQUITY COMPENSATION BENEFITS 32. giElhErEml

(a)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 20th September 2002, the shareholders of the Company
approved the adoption of a new share option scheme (the
“2002 Share Option Scheme”). The purpose of the 2002
Share Option Scheme is to encourage qualifying grantees to
work towards enhancing the value of the Company and its
shares for the benefit of the Company and its shareholders
as a whole. Qualifying grantees of the 2002 Share Option
Scheme mean (i) any employee or any business-related
consultant, agent, representative or advisor of the Company
or any subsidiary or any affiliate; or (ii) any supplier, agent or
consultant who provide goods or services to the Company
or any subsidiary or any affiliate; or (iij any customer of
the Company or any subsidiary or any affiliate; or (iv) any
business ally or joint venture partner of the Company or any
affiliate.

On 31st March 2011, the Company granted 146,800,000
share options to a qualifying grantees to subscribe for
ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each in the share capital of the
Company under the 2002 Share Option Scheme, subject
to acceptance by the grantees and other conditions being
fulfilled. The market value per share at 31st March 2011 was
HK$0.385.

On 26th October 2011, the Company granted 34,170,000
share options to a qualifying grantee to subscribe for
ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each in the share capital of the
Company under the 2002 Share Option Scheme, subject
to acceptance by the grantees and other conditions being
fulfilled. The market value per share at 26th October 2011
was HK$0.260.

(i) The terms and conditions of the grants are as as

(a)

BB A&t &

RZZZ-FHA-TH  ARARRIE
K ERESE (2 _F R
)  —ET_FERPEE B0 IEE
BEBRERABNRARAREBRREEZ
MR ARBRERN ZEE —TT -
FRRETHOHAEBRARABOARFH
EAAIPT S~ B BB R RN EAREE
HEMEXBEH2ER  REA RKXRHL
B k()[R AN 2 ) S AE AT BT /B 22 R sl AR AR
s8N B Rt E WS RS 2 E A HER - R
T 7% X B ¢ Sk (iii) AN X B SR AR (AT T B A R 3k
EETE B A R 2 ERZP ¢ siv) AR EE
MM EATRREMHBEARZEBBREE
BEERH -

MREZE——F=A=+—RH ARARE_
TR _FRERETS MAERERTESR
17146,800,00017 A] 3 {8 AN 2 Al & B B AR /%
0.2 Tz &Mz B - BFERTE
EXRREMEGERER - R - ——F
=A=+—HBEKMER.385ETT

RZZ——F+ A=+ ARARE=
ST F R 813 134,170,0000% i A%
EFEERAEA  UREARRBRAFF
REE0.02FB T EBAR - HAREARAES
MEMGEEEXATE R=2T——F+ A
—+NAEKTEA0.260/8 T °

)y BHZIERREEDOT -

follows:
Period during

Category of  No. of share which share
eligible options options are Exercise Contractual
persons granted Vesting exercisable price per life of
RERAL REH Date of grant conditions AT share options
2PE BREHA Rt B BERHS BRENER SRITEE BREZGNE
Directors 27,750,000 31st March 2011 1 year from the date 30th March 2012 to HK$0.394 10 years
S (equivalent to —F——F of grant (20%) 30th March 2021 0.3948 7T T4

8,139,075 share =R=1-8 mEHASRE—F(20%) —T--FZA=+HZE (HK$1.344

options after the ZZZ-F=RA=1H afterthe adjustments

effects of share
consolidation and

2 years from the date
of grant (20%)

of share consolidation
and rights issue)

rights issue) B A ARERF (20%) (R RR1 &4 R A AR
(RBRHE G R 3 years from the date R B1.3445T)
HEF2HE HE of grant (20%)
18,139,075 MR E =5 (20%)
BRE) 4 years from the date
of grant (20%)
B A RLF (20%)
5 years from the date
of grant (20%)
BELARRRE (20%)
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32. EQUITY COMPENSATION BENEFITS (Continued)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(a) SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

32. RigwmEENM (&)

(i) The terms and conditions of the grants are as as

follows: (Continued)

(a) IEARIESH SN (68)

B §5 ER R B 5F

iy WHZERREEAT @ (&)

Period during
Category of  No. of share which share
eligible options options are Exercise Contractual
persons granted Vesting exercisable price per life of
RERAL REH Date of grant conditions ATE share options
2AE BREHA Rt A BERHS BRENER SRITEE BREZGNE
Employees 119,050,000 31st March 2011 1 year from the date 30th March 2012 to HK$0.394 10 years
BT (equivalent to —E-—f at grant (20%) 30th March 2021 0.39475 7T T4
34,917,365 =R=+-H mEHASRE—F(20%) —T--F=A=+H (HK$1.344
share options ZZZ-F=F=1H afterthe adjustments
after the effects 2 years from the date of share consolidation
of share consolidation of grant (20%) and rights issue)
and rights issue) BT A SHRRE (20%) (R RR1A &4 R A AR
(RRHE B R 3 years from the date LR B1.344BT)
HERF2E  HE of grant (20%)
134,917,365 ML AR =2 (20%)
BRE) 4 years from the date
of grant (20%)
B B ERmE (20%)
5 years from the date
of grant (20%)
B ERERE (20%)
Director 34,170,000 26th October 2011 1 year from the date 25th October 2012 to  HK$0.263 10 years
S (equivalent to —E——f at grant (20%) 25th October 2021 0.2637 1 T
10,022,061 +A=+x8 AERHASE—F(20%) —T-—FF+A-+HA (HK$0.897
share options E-F--F after the adjustments
after the effects 2 years from the date +A=-t+%H of share consolidation

of share consolidation
and rights issue)
(MR E 6 &

HRY L% HE
110,022,061
BERE)

m
A
ll
&
<[:F
o

of grant (20%)
MR B HRREF (20%)
3 years from the date

of grant (20%)
mEHABE=F(20%)
4 years from the date

of grant (20%)
MR LB e mE (20%)
5 years from the date

of grant (20%)
mf AR RE (20%)

and rights issue)
(RBAA b RER
HEER08ITET)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 5 R Rl 5
32. EQUITY COMPENSATION BENEFITS (Continued) 32. IRilgtHiErsihl (&8)
(@) SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) (a) EBRZIEEHEN (@)
(i)  The number and weighted average exercise prices of (i) BERRIEY BB RANEFITEENT -

share options are as follows:

2013 2012
—E—=F —E—_F
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number of exercise Number of
price options price options
InREF 15 AR hniEFH fE R 12
THEE HE LB HE
HK$ HK$
E T BT
Outstanding at the E Y AT
beginning of the year 0.365 153,220,000 0.394 146,800,000
Granted during the year FAKD - - 0.263 34,170,000
Forfeited during the period/year F K {ERE 0.394 (4,500,000) 0.394 (27,750,000)
Outstanding immediately ZREAR D & OF
before the share consolidation A Z i RK7T{E 0.364 148,720,000 0.365 153,220,000
Effect of share consolidation R &Gz FE (133,848,000) -
Forfeited during the period INHAR R 3.940 (105,000) -
Outstanding immediately ZBE AR AT
before the rights issue ZMARITEE 3.637 14,767,000 0.365 153,220,000
Effect of rights issue Y a2 28,544,611 -
Forfeited during the period NN 1.344 (439,950) -
Outstanding at the EFR#ARITEE
end of the year 1.239 42,871,661 0.365 153,220,000
Exercisable at the RERKAITE
end of the year 1.284 15,144,252 0.394 23,810,000
The options outstanding at 31 March 2013 had exercise RZE—=F=ZA=+—H " @K
prices of HK$1.344 or HK$0.897 (2012: HK$0.394 {55 B AR 4 7 77 1 (81.3445% 7T 570.897
or HK$0.263) and a weighted average remaining Bt (ZF— % : 0.394/%715:0.263
contractual lives of 8.11 years (2012: 9.13 years). BIT) RN FIgR & K FHI8.A1F

(ZE—=%F :9.13F) -

i

1

§ 4

i

EHARAE

e
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

32. EQUITY COMPENSATION BENEFITS (Continued)

(a) SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

32. RigwmEENM (&)

(a) IEARIESH SN (68)

B §5 ER R B 5F

(i)  Fair value of share options and assumptions (i) WEREZzARERER
31st March 26th October
Grant date BB 2011 2011
—E——F —T——%F
—A=+—8 +A=Z+xB
Share price at grant date HEBZRMDER HK$0.385 HK$0.260
0.385/% 7T 0.2607% 7T
Exercise price TIE(E HK$0.394 HK$0.263
0.394%% 7T 0.263%8 7T
(HK$1.344 (HK$0.897
after the after the
adjustments adjustments
of share of share

Expected volatility (expressed as
weighted average volatility used
in the modeling under binomial
lattice model)

Option life

Expected dividend yield

Risk-free interest rate (based on
Exchange Fund Notes)

Fair value at measurement date
- options granted to directors
1 year vesting
2 years vesting
3 years vesting
4 years vesting

5 years vesting

— options granted to employees
1 year vesting

2 years vesting
3 years vesting
4 years vesting

5 years vesting

m
A
ll
&
{:{?
o

consolidation
and rights issue)

(R0 & B

HEFHER A

1.3447%7T)

T8 HA R 08 (LA O0 4 S 2558 18 2% 7R FE 78.196%

R R BEEER) 78.196E 7

HREFR 10 years
+4F
TEHARR B K 1.35%
1.35@ Dt
ERRAE (RBEINEESES) 2.81%
281A DL
AEAZARE

—BETESHERE
B HK$0.231
0.23178 7T
GES HK$0.242
0.2427 ¢
—FHBB HK$0.251
0.251% 7T
/Y 5 8 HK$0.258
0.258/8 7T
hERB HK$0.263
0.263/8 7T

—-BTEERRE
—FHB HK$0.209
0.209/ 7T
55 B HK$0.227
0.227% 7T
=FHRB HK$0.240
0.24078 7T
YR B HK$0.250
0.250/8 7T
AFEB HK$0.258
0.258/ 7

consolidation
and rights issue)
(Rt & Bf

R AR R B 12
%0.897%8 L)

87.93%
87.93H DL

10 years

T4

0.61%
0.61E 7Lt

1.369%
1.369A 7 It

HK$0.169
0.169% 7T
HK$0.178
0.178% 7T
HK$0.186
0.186/8 7T
HK$0.193
0.193% 7T
HK$0.198
0.198/8 7T

N/A
N A
N/A
i@
N/A
TE M
N/A
N A
N/A
ANiE A
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

32. EQUITY COMPENSATION BENEFITS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

(iiiy  Fair value of share options and assumptions
(Continued)

The fair value of services received in return for share
options granted is measured by reference to the fair
value of share options granted. The estimate of the fair
value of the share options granted is measured based
on the binomial lattice model. The contractual life of
the share option is used as an input into this model.
Expectations of early exercise are incorporated into the
model.

The expected volatility is based on the historic volatility
(calculated based on the weighted average remaining
life of the share options),
changes to future volatility based on publicly available
information. Expected dividends are based on historical
dividends. Changes in the subjective input assumptions
could materially affect the fair value estimate.

adjusted for any expected

Share options were granted under a service condition.
This condition has not been taken into account in the
grant date fair value measurement of the services
received. There was no market conditions associated
with the share option granted.

Share Award Plan 2010

On 13th September 2010, the shareholders of the Company
approved the adoption of a share award plan (the “Share
Award Plan 20107).

The Share Award Plan 2010 is a ten-year discretionary share
award and ownership plan. It is primarily for encouraging
or facilitating the holding of shares by those selected
employees of the Group who, as determined by the Board,
are eligible to participate in the plan and to whom new
shares are or will be awarded. The Directors will make use of
the plan to award new shares to those selected employees
of the Group on suitable terms as incentives and rewards for
their contribution to the Group.

No award was granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed during
the years ended 31st March 2013 and 2012 and as at 31st
March 2013 and 2012, there was no outstanding award
granted under the Share Award Plan 2010.
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32. RigwmiEENM (48)

(a)

(b)

KBz iEst 8 (58

(i) BWREZzARBEEBRE)

BREAAERERBARELBR
HRESRB 2 ARENZ2ERER
BREZAABEFE - HETERE
ZAnE[ETIRE AR EEE
AHAE -BREZAOFHDAELR
BRZHAETR - RETHEZEHD
AR -

TR HAR 08 T IR I LR (R AR T

ZIEFIERGE) RERGL - X
R ERFER MG BOR RIS 2 E

MEREE T IAFE - HHRE VIR
BAEZEREREERE - TBHUHER
BEZEHAIEAZEAAEMRE -

BB TR IR AR AS R AR - MR
HEREERFELDARARIREZ A
AEE -WRATHKRTERTHE
BiERR -

RIAEREGE (ZS—3F)

R-F—FEAA+=R  ARTZKRAE
BB AR R 8 (IR ID SR 3T 8 (=
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[ EBAE (—F2—2F) | DA+ 52
%\kﬁﬁ@&%ﬁﬁ% TERBEHE
m%$%&m2ﬁ§%%ﬁ&ﬁ%&A

iH SRR RE) 2 AR B RER R
ﬁﬁx{/\ o %%H—rhﬁﬂﬁﬁ R A aZ At 31 228
MR TREERZARERBIFAZSER

THAKEZ AR S B RE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 5 ER 2R Bf 5T
33. RESERVES 33. BLiB
The Group K&
The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of REBGEERSEKI D 2 MR RERZ
each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set out F'ﬁ B RENGAERET R EF' RAR T 2 &
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details of BHEKBLFENREE 2 EHZCFBFHH N
the changes in the Company’s individual components of equity T °
between the beginning and the end of the year are set out below.
The Company VAN |
(Accumulated
Share Convertible losses)/
Share option notes equity Contributed retained
premium reserve reserve surplus earnings Total
MEREE (ReHER)/
BROEE BRERE R 7 4 AR REEN ok
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FHET FET FET FET FET
As at 1st April 2011 —T——%MA—A
u\uﬁﬁ 113,721 19 9,634 17,524 117,433 258,331
Loss for the year AFEEE - - - - (50,879) (50,879)
Other comprehensive income £ /2 4z 25 - - - - - -
Total comprehensive loss ~ AF2HEEELE
for the year - - - - (50,879) (50,879)
Transaction with owners HBEBALRS
Recognition of equity- BRERAEERK
settled share-based RERZANAX
payment expenses - 12,663 - - - 12,663
Shares issued upon BRITBRRER
conversion of KET 2R
convertible notes 24,107 - (5,448) - - 18,659
Deferred tax relating to BHBBRIARERZ
conversion of convertible ERHIR
notes - - 899 - - 899
Dividend paid ERE&E - - - - (6,834) (6,834)
At 31st March 2012 —FE=R=1—H 137,828 12,682 5,085 17,524 59,720 232,839
At 1st April 2012 R-BE-—&mA—A
=323 137,828 12,682 5,085 17,524 59,720 232,839
Loss for the year AEEBE - - - - (224,949) (224,949)
Other comprehensive income {2 {25 - - - - - -
Total comprehensive AEXENHBE
income for the year - - - - (224,949) (224,949)
Transaction with owners BREEAZRS
Share issue expenses Hﬁf"? 18R (4,218) - - - - (4,218)
Recognition of equity- RIZEREE LR
settled share based ﬁ%ﬁmi’i DK
payment expenses - 8,850 - - - 8,850
Transfer to accumulated PR IR B K R
losses upon forfeiture BAZRTER
of share options - (294) - - 294 -
At 31st March 2013 RZZ-=F
ZA=+--8 133,610 21,238 5,085 17,524 (164,935) 12,502
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

33. RESERVES (Continued)

Notes:

(@

Share premium

The application of the share premium account is governed by
Section 40 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended) (the
“Companies Act”).

Revaluation reserve

The revaluation reserve has been set up and is dealt with the
revaluation on properties reclassified to investment properties in
accordance with the accounting policies adopted for land and
buildings in Note 3(g).

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policy set out in Note 3(t).

Capital reserve

The capital reserve was set up upon debt restructuring which will be
used for the purpose of repurchase of issued and fully paid ordinary
share capital.

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the amount
transferred from the capital account due to the capital reduction
effective on 28th March 2007. The balance of contributed surplus
account may be utilised in the future in accordance with the
Bye-Laws and the Companies Act, including distribution to the
shareholders subject to compliance with the relevant statutory
requirements on making distributions in the Companies Act.

Share option reserve
The share option reserve relates to share option granted to

employees under the Company’s employee share option plan. Further
information about share option is set out in Note 32.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33. RESERVES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(9@

Fair value reserve

The fair value reserve represents accumulated gains and losses
arising on the revaluation of available-for-sale investments that have
been recognised in other comprehensive income, net of amounts
reclassified to profit or loss when those investments are disposed of
or are determined to be impaired.

Convertible notes equity reserve

The convertible notes equity reserve represents the equity component
(conversion rights) of the convertible notes issued during the year
ended 31st March 2011 (Note 30).

Distributability of reserves

In accordance with Section 40 of the Companies Act 1981, the share
premium account of the Company is distributable to the shareholders
of the Company in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

At 31st March 2013, the aggregate amount of reserves available
for distribution to owners of the Company was HK$Nil (2012:
HK$215,072,000) subject to the restriction on the share premium
account as stated above. During the years ended 31st March 2013
and 2012, the directors do not recommend payment of a final
dividend.

B §5 ER R B 5F

33. ki (£8)

Bzt (&)

(9)
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BREHERAERE FREHSBEEAS -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R §5 ER R B 5F

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(@) Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk (including
foreign currency risk and interest rate risk). The Group is
also exposed to equity price risk arising from its equity
investments in other entities. These risks are limited by
the Group’s financial management policies and practices
described below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

(i)  Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a
customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails
to meet its contractual obligations, and the Group’s
credit risk primarily arises from cash at banks and,
trade and other receivables. Management has a credit
policy in place and the exposures to these credit risks
are monitored on an ongoing basis.

Cash at banks and bank deposits are placed with
licensed financial institutions with high credit ratings.
The Group monitors the exposure to each single
financial institution.

For trade and other receivables, credit checks are
part of the normal operating process and stringent
monitoring procedures are in place to deal with overdue
debts. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable
amounts of trade and other receivables at the end
of each reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

ﬂ:

(a)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(i

(i)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group has no significant concentrations of
credit risk with exposure spread over a number of
counterparties and customers. The maximum exposure
to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount
of each financial asset in the statement of financial
position after deducting any impairment allowance.
Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral from
customers.

Further quantitative disclosure in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables
and other receivables are set out in Note 21.

Except for the financial guarantees given by the
Company as set out in note 41, the Group and the
Company do not provide any other guarantees which
would expose the Group or the Company to credit risk.
The maximum exposure to credit risk in respect of
these financial guarantees at the end of the reporting
period is disclosed in note 41.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able
to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The
Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its current and
expected liquidity requirements and its compliance with
lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of
funding from major financial institutions to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

i ¥ bR E IR (4])

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued) (a) BMIFERMEBEEE (E)
(i) Liquidity risk (Continued) (i) wEEREE ()
The following table details the remaining contractual TERAXEERAQNRFLEHEE
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the RBEBRZHTALYEESHA (BIEE
Group’s and the Company’s financial liabilities, MEBMKRUSHTNERSE 2 F 2 00%
which are based on contractual undiscounted cash g - ‘Ef\iﬁiﬁﬂﬂEZﬂiufﬁﬂiﬁiﬁiﬁ
flows (including interest payments computed using ERE) &$’§lﬁi$ AemE
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current Mtz &xFBEE -
at the end of the reporting period) and the earliest date
the Group and the Company can be required to pay.
Specifically, for bank loans which contain a repayment LTER  REEFKRRITEENS ﬁ@i
on demand clause which can be exercised at the bank’s Z?QEQi Efiy \%,?kzmﬁﬁféf#\ .
sole discretion, the analysis shows the cash outflow AMBARERE B ERKMAR (ED
based on the earliest period in which the entity can be MEARES fB@EwZ?ﬁi 16 14 4 ) BD B (B
required to pay, i.e. if the lenders were to invoke their BER) 2FHBZRSRL - it
unconditional rights to call the loans with immediate RITEEZIHBA M IRIEETEE
effect. The maturity analysis for other bank borrowings HEHRER -
is prepared based on the scheduled repayment dates.
The Group KEE
2013
:E—;
Total More than Within
contractual 1 year but 1 year
undiscounted less than or on
Carrying cash flows 2 years demand
amount EHRFR SR—F48 R—FR
REE REeRELE DRME FRER
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET
Trade and other payables B REMEMER 95,635 95,635 - 95,635
Bank loans RITEE 223,764 224,871 - 224,871
Convertible notes Rk ER 32,237 32,709 4 32,709
Loans from a director EEZER 14,000 14,000 - 14,000
365,636 367,215 - 367,215
2012
- F
Total More than Within
contractual 1 year but 1 year
undiscounted less than oron
Carrying cash flows 2 years demand
amount EHARNE SH—F8 R—FR
FREE fﬁ%mi%'ﬁﬁ ENTES IR E K
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
Trade and other payables 25 &Eﬁﬂgﬁgﬁm 79,590 79,590 - 79,590
Bank loans RITEE 233,462 233,812 - 233,812
Loan from a director %$Z“m 65,000 65,000 - 65,000
Convertible notes QE:E e 29,872 32,709 31,770 939
407,924 411,111 31,770 379,341
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERR B EE

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

34. MFHEREIR (F)

(a) MFEBEER(

&)

(i) mBELEE (E)

The Company AT
2013
—E-Z=F
Total More than Within
contractual 1 year but 1 year
undiscounted less than or on
Carrying cash flows 2 years demand
amount BHRFR ZR—F48 R—FR
REE RERELE PRME FRER
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
Other payables HAb AR 3,429 3,429 - 3,429
Amounts due to subsidiaries  JE{FHT B QA 7 FIE 13,400 13,400 - 13,400
Convertible notes RREE 32,237 32,709 - 32,709
49,066 49,538 - 49,538
Financial guarantee issued: IS EREAT
Maximum amount guaranteed &= R4 5 - 130,000,000 - 130,000,000
2012
T F
Total More than Within
contractual 1 year but 1 year
undiscounted less than or on
Carrying cash flows 2 years demand
amount BHRTH ZR—FR R—FRN
REHE RenELE NTTES KR E K
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TFET FET TET
Other payables H i & 15 BR 3K 2,610 2,610 - 2,610
Amounts due to subsidiaries  JE{TH B QB FIE 13,408 13,408 - 13,408
Convertible notes BRRER 29,872 32,709 31,770 939
45,890 48,727 31,770 16,957
Financial guarantee issued: B SRR AT
Maximum amount guaranteed &= ERELEE - 130,000,000 - 130,000,000

etk
4
all
H
<[:{?
s
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(i)

(ifi)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The table that follows summarises the maturity
analysis of bank loans with a repayment on demand
clause based on agreed scheduled repayments set
out in the loan agreements. The amounts include
interest payments computed using contractual rates.
Taking into account of the Group’s financial position,
the directors of the Company do not consider it
probable that the bank will exercise its discretion to
demand immediate repayment. The directors of the
Company believe that such bank loans will be repaid in
accordance with the scheduled repayment date set out
in the loan agreements.

Maturity Analysis - Term Loans subject to a

34, WIFEREIR ()
(a) HMHEREE(E)
(i) mBHELEE (E)

TREMFEHERNERBAELERE
REEGRZERETMEZRITE
REHMALN - ZEREBHEEAALD
MEFAEZHNEMNT - EZEAEEH
ZEBMR - KRB EERBRIT A
RAJREAT IR BB 1 2R ANBS(EE -
ARAEFRE ZEFERTERER
EERMHEMEZREERAHEE -

HMaN - REREHBARERE

repayment on demand clause based on scheduled RZEHER
repayments
The Group N & B
Carrying
More than More than Total amount at
1 year but 2 years but undiscounted 31st March
less than less than cash 2013
Within 2 years 5 years outflows RZE-—=£
1 year ZR—F SRME AHXHFRE =ZA=t+-H
R—ER BORME BHIREE RERELE BEE
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET FET
31st March 2013 RZF—-=%=A=+—H 115,522 38,394 38,229 192,145 186,297
31st March 2012 RZE—Z5=A=1—H 77,081 38,513 79,435 195,029 185,508

Foreign currency risk
Currency risk arises on financial instruments that are
denominated in a currency other than the functional

currency of the entity to which they relate.

The Group’s exposure to currency risk is insignificant.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(@
(iv)

B §5 ER R B 5F

34. MFHEREIR (F)

etk
Re
all
H
<[:F
i

Financial risk factors (Continued) (a) MIFERMEBERE (&)
Interest rate risk (iv) FIEE R
The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in AEBEEAEBESHETERNRE
relation to variable-rate short term bank loan (Note 26). B2 nEE SRR (Miz26) -
The Group’s policy is to manage its interest rate risk ANEE 2 BRRERER R @R A ®
to ensure there are no more exposures to significant RZHEERFEES) 2 Bk AEE R
interest rate movements and rates are relatively fixed. EABEIBE o A K E W & EEF
The Group does not account for any fixed rate financial EeMmBEARETABE  RAE
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, and the B AT TR TPERER -
Group does not use derivative financial instruments to
hedge its debt obligations.
(i) Interest rate profile (i)  FI=BR
The following table details the interest rate profile TRAMAEFE 2 EERARRE
of the Group’s borrowings at the end of the R Z B EBR
reporting period:
The Group TEE
2013 2012
—E-=F —E-—F
Effective Effective
interest rates interest rates
ERA= BB %
% HK$°000 % HK$’000
FET FET
Fixed rate borrowings: ElEFEER
Convertible notes ARREE 11.92 32,237 11.92 29,872
Bank loans RITEE 6.16-6.3 56,201 8.5-9 24,518
88,438 54,390
Variable rate borrowings: AREBFEER:
Bank loans BITEE 2.91-6.16 167,563 3.63-7.22 208,944
Loans from a director EEZER Hong Kong dollar 14,000 Hong Kong dollar 65,000
prime rate quoted prime rate quoted
by HSBC plus by HSBC plus
1% per annum 1% per annum
EERTHET ELRTET
BREEAE REEAE
2.91-6.16 3.63-7.22
MEFE1% MEFE1%
181,563 273,944
Total borrowings BER 270,001 328,334
Net fixed rate borrowings FEITE &R &
as a percentage of total EBBER
borrowings 2B 32.8% 16.6%
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R §5 ER R B 5F

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(iv)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

(i)

Sensitivity analysis

Convertible notes and fixed-rate bank loans of
the Group which are fixed rate instruments are
insensitive to any change in interest rates. A
change in interest rate at the end of the reporting
period would not affect profit or loss.

At 31st March 2013, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 1% in interest rate with all
other variables held constant, would increase/
decrease the Group’s loss before taxation
and accumulated losses by approximately
HK$1,816,000. Other components of consolidated
equity would not change in response to the
general increase/decrease in interest rates.

At 31st March 2012, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 1% in interest rate, with all
other variables held constant, would increase/
decrease the Group’s loss before taxation by
approximately HK$2,739,000 and decrease/
increase the retained profits by approximately
HK$2,739,000. Other components of consolidated
equity would not change in response to the
general increase/decrease in interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis above has been
determined assuming that the change in interest
rates had occurred at the beginning of the
reporting period and had been applied to the
exposure to interest rate risk for variable rate
interest bearing financial instruments in existence
at that date. The 1% increase or decrease
represents management’s assessment of a
reasonably possible change in interest rates over
the period until the next annual reporting date.
The sensitivity analysis included in the financial
statements of the year ended 31st March 2012 has
been prepared on the same basis.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

ﬂ

LT

B §5 ER R B 5F

o ¥ IR E IR (4])

(b) Capital management (b) ERREREIR
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to REFBEBEAZBEEABRERRNZER
ensure that entities in the Group will be able to continue BRI LA ESERE  FRELEBRIRA
as a going concern while maximising the return to owners RERZREESHKTEEAZLR - FBEE
through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The BeKALEGERAEE R BIEE
management reviews the capital structure by considering HHERNGEE BERNNL  ANEBBUER
the cost of capital and the risks associated with each AEEREE BN BOYTKEE - BT
class of capital. In view of this, the Group will balance its MR ERBETHEESXBELRARAEE - LFEE
overall capital structure through the payment of dividends, HRR B R R A o
new share issues as well as the issue of new debt or the
redemption of existing debt as it sees fit and appropriate.
The Group monitors capital using gearing ratio, which is net REBUEEHR(EATFABERIABIKRAN
debt divided by the total equity. Net debt is calculated as BRI ESER B FESE AT
bank loans, loans from a director and convertible notes less B BEEEFEUBEBRERREERET
pledged bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents as FR o NBESEBSZEMNESGAR
shown in the consolidated statement of financial position. RFIR - BREEBEMAERRLD - A%E
Total equity comprises all components of equity. The Group EEREBE—AEENEERBLRAKFE -
aims to maintain the gearing ratio at a reasonable level. The MRAREMREELRNT -
gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting period were as
follows:

2013 2012
—EBE—=F —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET TET
Bank loans (Note 26) wITEE (M it26) 223,764 233,462
Loans from a director (Note 27) EE2ER (K at27) 14,000 65,000
Convertible notes (Note 30) AT AR 2= (H72230) 32,237 29,872
270,001 328,334
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (Note 24) 15 : & MIR& SEY (H/iF24) (116,760) (86,146)
Pledged bank deposits (Note 24) EEMRITER (W 5124) (2,272) (3,965)

Net debt [ERYEE 150,969 238,223
Total equity A R 547,027 548,316
Gearing ratio BEL = 27.6% 43.4%

(c) Equity price risk (c) BREEIEER
The Group is exposed to equity price risk arising from trading REEBATKE FTBFBEREMEEZR
of listed securities classified as trading securities in the ZEREB(NEETBMRARTHDIEAS
consolidated statement of financial position. The sensitivity BHEEE) URIES T HIRIEFTAEZ IR
analysis has been determined based on the exposure to MRE
equity price risk.
At 31st March 2013, if the quoted market prices of the HA:?—:EE:H:-%—EI HMEZ &S
trading securities had been 20% higher or lower while all iﬁ{ EAHTB20% M H Al & E 4
other variables were held constant, the Group’s loss before }%T CREBEBRBRAIEREBERIEEZA
taxation would decrease or increase by approximately ﬁ{ﬁ@é}jﬁﬁﬁ}\ﬁiibu%’ﬂ769,000§%ﬁ(:§
HK$769,000 (2012: HK$1,420,000) as a result of changes in 1,420,000/ 7T) °
fair value of investments.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 34. EERBRSIP (8)
(d) Fair value measurements recognised in the statement of (d) ERNRUFER[ZDPZARIAHSE

financial position

The following table provides an analysis of financial TEREHRT —ERERREHRUNAALBETE
instruments that are measured at fair value at the end of the ZEmMIENDN  WARBZARENAE
reporting period, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the RURE  HR—E=H -

degree to which the fair value is observable.

e  Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived . MASREFERBLREFEET
from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for %Hﬂé?i‘éf i&{ﬁ(ﬁi‘“uﬂﬁ) o

identical assets or liabilities.

e Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from . ZRAREHERBLIKRE BEE
inputs other than quoted prices included within Level —Z&MQI\E BRNAESAB I RE
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either B (BIER) S (BURNER) -
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from
prices).

e Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from e FBHARBEMNESNLKREMER
valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset or it BERARNEESRERE  TR2RER
liability that are not based on observable market data ABEMSEECTABEENEA) -

(unobservable inputs).
The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value ZARBERBREBANRA - BASEER
measurement is categorized in its entirety is determined on ZARERE  DIRBEHERBAAENES
the basis of the lowest level input that is significant to the fair BEUNZEMBNIRAMARE °
value measurement in its entirety.

The Group 2013 2012
R —B-=& —E-ZF
Level 1 Level2 Level3 Total Level1 Level2 Level3 Total

F-& %/ F=R BE E-f F-R BZR B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
8T TErT  FET TErT TET TET TET TET

Assets BE
Available-for-sale AfBEZ
investments KE 6,300 - - 6,300 6,056 - - 6,056
Trading securities BHEE 3,845 - - 3,845 7,098 - - 7,098
Total @ 10,145 - - 10,145 13,154 - - 13,154

F‘H:i N

=
e
i
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34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

ﬂ:

B §5 ER R B 5F

34. MFHEREIR (F)

(d) Fair value measurements recognised in the statement of (d) ERRUBBERNEDZ22ARETE (8)
financial position (Continued)
There were no significant transfers between instruments in FAE-—RRE_HKzTAWBERNEE -
Level 1 and Level 2 during the year.
The carrying amount of the Group’s and the Company’s REBRAQNRZE& TEZREEJIZK
financial instruments carried at cost or amortised cost such R E K AAR  WESMBELEEY
as cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, B REMEBWER  B5 REMBEMNER
trade and other payables and bank and other borrowings are RBTREMEE  EARBERZE—ZF
not materially different from their fair values as at 31st March F—E—=F=A=+—RHUESERTH"
2013 and 2012 because of the immediate or short term WMARZE R TAMNBSEERNEIE - AT
maturity of these financial instruments except as follows: 1B BRI -
The Group and the Company
Financial liabilities cRas AEBRARE
Carrying amount Fair value
IREEHE ARE
2013 2012 2013 2012
—B-=F —T——-F ZZB-=F —ZT——F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
Convertible notes AR R & 32,237 29,872 30,848 27,997
(e) Estimation of fair values (e) LRR{EMBEH
The following summarises the major methods and UTHAARFEERTARAABZEES
assumptions used in estimating the fair values financial EMRE
instruments.
i) Trading securities ) EFEE
Fair value is based on closing bid price quoted in an AREDREFRTHZETEAE
active market at the end of the reporting period without REBEMRAIIBERIZRAZH
any deduction for transaction costs. BHE -
i) Available-for-sale investments i) AHHNEZRE
Fair value is based on bid price quoted in an active RAETRBER IREHR AR ERA
market at the end of the reporting period without any RpMARZ ERTISENERE -
deduction for transaction costs.
iii)  Convertible notes /TE V&S
The fair value is estimated as the present value of the AREDEENIEZAKRRERE
contractually determined stream of future cash flows E AL &/ T AT S R X7
discounted at the current market interest rates for Himfhat e
similar financial instruments.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

35. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 35. EABHREALTRS
During the year, the Group had the following transactions with its FRAEBEABEATHEUTZRS

related parties:

(a) Key management personnel remuneration (a) FESBASHM
Remuneration for key management personnel of Group, AEBEFTEBEEAEHMN  BEINFAR
including amounts paid to the Company’s directors and RIEEMAE THREFAL (WM F10FTHE)
certain of highest paid individuals as disclosed in Note 10, is ZEREWT
as follows:
2013 2012
—E-=F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Short-term employee benefits REEERER 17,143 19,209
Post-employment benefits RIK1ERE T 58 38
Share-based payment expenses LARR A B B 2 153K 3,957 4,019
21,158 23,266
Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see Note e azsEe st AIB TRA(RETE((b)) °
9(b)).
(b) Financing arrangements (b) BIFETHE
2013 2012
—E—-=F —E-_F
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Loans from a director EEZER 14,000 65,000
Details of the loans and loans repaid during the year are FREEERNERFBEEAMBEHREMT
disclosed in note 27 to the consolidated financial statements. 27H I EE o

i
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i

i
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35.

R

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 35, SAEMEATRE (@)

(c)

In the course of preparing the financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 31st March 2013, it has come to the attention
of the directors that the following transactions were conducted

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Guarantee for banking facilities

On 9th May 2012, a wholly owned subsidiary obtained a
banking facility of US$4 million (equivalents to HK$31.2
millions) from a bank in Hong Kong for financing trade
transactions. The banking facility is guaranteed by the bank
deposits of HK$3,900,000 owned by a director Mr. Eav Yin.

(c) MITMBIER

with related companies during the years ended 31st March 2013 HEENRETNIZRS

and 2012 and there were balances with the related companies as
at 31st March 2013 and 2012. As a consequence, the disclosures
of related party transactions for the year ended 31st March 2012
and balances with the related companies as at 31st March 2012

and 1st April 2011 were restated.

B §5 ER R B 5F

R-E——FRHANLE —HE2EHEAR
RIt—HEERTINEINERFESRE
1784 &4,000,000% 7t (4§%7431,200,0007%
JL) cSRITBMEAREEIBCAEMEA IR
1717 543,900,000/8 TTATHEIR -

EREASEEBE T =F=-A=+—HLLF
ERFBHRERNBIET EFEIBIREEC
T _FRZE-=ZF=ZR=T—HIEFEHHA

AR BEEERRIR

—E——FR_TE—Z=ZFZA=Z+—HZ2&H -
Eit » —E——F=ZA=+—HItFEZHEEA
IRGWE  UREBEARR-_T——-F=A
=t+—HBER=ZZE——FHA—HBZHEHET -

(d) Other transactions d Hihxx5
2013 2012
—E-=F —E-_F
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
b iE FET FET
(Restated)
(E5])
Sales of watch movements to SHEFHREET
a related company ultimately BLCAEZTHEEERR
owned by the wife of Mr. Eav Yin B ETESIZ
and controlled by Mr. Eav Yin —HEERA 4,471 6,343
Purchase of watch movements from MBLCEEZTFREESR
a related company ultimately Mg S
owned by the wife of Mr. Eav Yin 2 —ERERT]
and controlled by Mr. Eav Yin R F RN - 1,276
Provision of subsidised advertising REESEPR
and marketing support to 5 E &
a related company ultimately THLCEAEZTFREESR
owned by the wife of Mr. Eav Yin R s e |
and controlled by Mr. Eav Yin 2 —HBEERA (i) 1,950 937
Leasing of offices and warehouses to HERAERBRET
three related companies ultimately BLEEAEZFHREER
owned by the wife of Mr. Eav Yin K512 5 A 12
and controlled by Mr. Eav Yin 2 —HEERT (ii) 1,428 1,102
Purchase of products from MG CEEETFHKRER
four related companies ultimately KA1 5 1T
owned by the wife of Mr. Eav Yin Z P RgE A A
and controlled by Mr. Eav Yin REBE M (iii) 8,865 4,021
Consultancy fee paid to SNEBERE THCEE
a related company ultimately EIREHER
owned by the wife of Mr. Eav Yin 1512 Je HE 1
and controlled by Mr. Eav Yin 2 —HBEERA 571 366
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S ERRBAE

35. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(d)

Other transactions (Continued)

Note:

(i)

(ii)

Provision of subsidised advertising and marketing
support services

During the years ended 31st March 2013 and 2012,
the Group participated in the marketing programs and
activities for promoting and enhancing the image of
branded watches supplied by Lucky Linker Limited. In
return, Lucky Linker Limited subsidised the Group by
paying an advertising subsidy to the Group.

Leasing of offices and warehouses

The Group leased an office space to Lucky Linker
Limited, being one of the three related companies,
ultimately owned by the wife of Mr. Eav Yin and
controlled by Mr. Eav Yin, during the years ended 31st
March 2013 and 2012. Lucky Linker Limited is a long-
term tenant of the Group and taken into the fact that
Lucky Linker Limited is responsible for the decoration
of the office, the Group offered a discount on the rental
charge for compensating the costs incurred by Lucky
Linker Limited in decoration of the office.

As at 31st March 2013, commitments under operating
leases receivable from the companies over which
ultimately owned by the wife of Mr. Eav Yin and

35. EABMEALRS (@)

(d)

Hithx2 5 (£8)

(U]

(i)

RUESEMRDIZHERIERE

RZE——FR=-F—=F=A=+—
A4 8 A% E 2 HEHLucky
Linker Limited#g#t = 145 H B &t &1 &2
TEED  DMEEA NG BIEFEOER -
R ZLucky Linker Limited[@) 7Zx & & %

B B 1 A A B A -
AENAZERAR
W —FER-F-=FZA=+-

HIEFESHE AEEEERAE
Lucky Linker Limited (A5 %kEE
TREHEE MG AETER =MEEA
A2 E&F—f) ° Lucky Linker Limited
BASEY REMEP - & EHLucky
Linker LimitedB ERERAE - A&
E R S B AT 0 A R ELucky
Linker Limited2E (S 98 N EEHE Z AN ©

RZZ-—=F=A=+—0 RELK
EHEANEKRAR (HBCEEET
?iﬂ}?ﬁﬁ&m%ﬂ SNz A E) I

controlled by Mr. Eav Yin were as follows: TH ARG -
2013 2012
—E—-=F —E—_F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FET
Not later than one year R—FR 1,479 984

Later than one year and B —FRTHBBERE

not later than five year 3,308 2,497
4,787 3,481

Leases for properties are negotiated for terms ranging
from 3 to 5 years (2012: 2 to 5 years) and related
commitments are included in Note 39(a).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERR B EE

35. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 35. EAEBMHEALTRXS (8)
(d) Other transactions (Continued) (d) Hthx5 (&)
Note: (Continued) e - (&)
(iii) Purchase of products (iii) FHBES
The Group purchased of products from the above NRIE——FERT—=F=A=+—
related companies during the years ended 31st AItFEEM AEEHR LlEER
March 2013 and 2012 which represented watches, AIRBEREEFE® FHERERZSIH
watch spare parts and components (including watch AN (BEFEED) - EEEH
movements), watch accessories and packaging. The R AREBETIINEFHRMAE - NI
Group also outsourced watch assembly, processing NEERY Gl T EatEgE A
and after-sales services such as maintenance and TRERGEE REEMBREZER
repairs to the above related parties. The purchase BHERLIKE -
of products includes the fees and charges for these
services.
(e) Balances with related companies (e) RIEQTIGEE
2013 2012 2011
—E-Z=f —E-CE —E——F
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FAT FET FET
(Restated) (Restated)
(E51) (E51)
Trade receivables due from two related ~ ERB- AL EFRLES
companies ultimately owned by the RBCAEENZ
wife of Mr. Eav Yin and controlled MEBEAAESEN
by Mr. Eav Yin 1,925 7,183 93
Trade payables due to three related ERBCAEZFRARE
companies ultimately owned by the RBCEER4Z
wife of Mr. Eav Yin and controlled “HBEELAAERZER
by Mr. Eav Yin 16 5,218 4,473

m
A
ll
ﬂ}
{:{?
B
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 5 SRR Bt 5T

36. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY 36. HE—RMEBEAS
On 27th April 2011, the directors of the Company approved to R-ZZE——FMA=-++H AATESHEN
dispose of a wholly owned subsidiary, City Island Property Limited X {E2,880,0007T A R % (473,456,000 7T) 1 &
(“City Island”), to an independent third party at a consideration of —ME2EHENB AR  MBEEERLAAF ([H
RMB2,880,000 (approximately HK$3,456,000). The disposal was ) F-REBILE=FH - HEER_ZE——F
completed on 4th June 2011 and the Group recorded a loss of NAMBTERK - RAE BN HE T $15458,000%8
HK$458,000 on disposal. TLZIEE -
Details of the net assets disposed of in respect of City Island are BRAMBFEELE ZFEHMMT ¢

summarised below:

HK$’000
FET
Net assets disposed of FEEHE
Investment property wEYE 4,275
Deferred tax liabilities BEFIEAE (361)
3,914
Loss on disposal HEEE (458)
3,456
Cash consideration received BWRERE 3,456
Net cash inflow arising on disposal of a subsidiary HE—FWNBRAREEZFHERA
Cash consideration received BWRERE 3,456
Bank balances and cash disposed of LERITERRAS -
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of BRALENMB R RREEEY
the disposal of City Island FmA 3,456
37. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 37. BEEIET
The assets pledged for certain banking facilities of the Group were AEFBEFRTEEKBEENT
as follows:
2013 2012
—E—=fF —E-_F
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Land and buildings THREF 3,198 3,319
Prepaid lease payments HEREMNRIE 20,833 21,081
Investment properties LEWE 151,676 144,827
Inventories FE 136,244 159,611
Pledged bank deposits BEHEFIRITER 2,272 3,965
314,223 332,803
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38.

39.

R

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) scheme
for all Hong Kong eligible employees. The assets of the MPF
scheme are held separately from those of the Group in funds
under the control of trustees.

The retirement benefit cost for MPF scheme charged to the
consolidated income statement represents contributions payable
to the MPF scheme by the Group at rates specified in the rules of
the MPF scheme.

Employees employed in the PRC are members of the state-
sponsored pension scheme operated by the PRC government.
The Group is required to contribute a certain percentage of their
payroll to the pension scheme to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the pension scheme is to
make the required contribution under the scheme.

COMMITMENTS
a) Operating lease commitments
As lessor

Property rental income earned during the reporting period
was HK$4,546,000 (2012: HK$3,869,000). At 31st March
2013, the properties held have committed tenants for lease
terms from 0.11 to 3.46 years (2012: 0.11 to 4.46 years),
whose tenancy agreements include paying security deposits.

The Group had total future minimum lease receivables under
the non-cancellable operating leases with the tenants falling
due as follows:

38.

39.

B §5 ER R B 5F

R fili& ifll 5t 2

AEBRAEEAAERE TR —HRHIMLD
Be ([BES] 8 ZRBESHIZEERR
KEZBESRRA  BREARESHAEE -

7 A& s R o 0 ER SR TS 2 51 &) A9 R K AR A BK
A HEERANEE LSS R BT
KX RE R FT BRI HR

ERBEXEZETNERMET 2RKFTEKE
HRAREFEATFERAFER - AEBEAKRBT
Hrazam T sHRKETEFERHER  AEE
EZBRRETEIP 2 BE - ERIEFE 2R EEH

R -

]
a) MEEHERAE
fERWLiRE

RBEHBAB2WERESRAR
4,546,000/ 7T (= Z — — £ : 3,869,000/8
) M-_E—=Z%F=A=+—8" s
ZWMECBHEE RGN F0.114 £3.465F
ZE-ZF 0. 11FR446F) 2 H
HEBZEREINEREZS -

AEERBEBATIZZ A HBELEZE
4 ARFERYWESARIHBERMT -

2013 2012

—E-—=F —E—_F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Not later than one year TE@d—F 4,155 3,429
Later than one year and not HB—F T HBOF

later than five years 4,566 5,601

8,721 9,030
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R §5 ER R B 5F

39. COMMITMENTS (Continued)

39. MGE (18

a) Operating lease commitments (Continued) a) REHSHRE (E)
As lessee fERRIASE
The Group leases certain of its office properties and retail AEEREBECEHELTHHEEETHAE
outlets under operating lease arrangements. Leases for ERTER - KER 2 YFAE R 50.08
properties are negotiated for terms ranging from 0.08 to 7.62 FR7.62F (ZF—_F:0.08FE9.7F) °
years (2012: 0.08 to 9.7 years). Certain rentals for the use of ETZEYNHES S UZFERBENTES
retails outlets are determined by reference to the revenue of HRARRE WEETEEHNESEN
the relevant outlets for the year and the rentals for certain EERFRELE -
retails outlets will be escalated by a fixed percentage per
annum.
The Group’s lease obligations primarily consist of non- AEBENHESTEFERFETAIRBEZHA
cancelable leases of office and retail store space. Future ERTEFERE - RETABEHEEZ R
minimum payments under non-cancelable leases were as RERESZOAT -
follows:
2013 2012
—E-=F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Not later than one year TE@a—F 224,922 189,852
Later than one year and not BB —F T HEA
later than five years HF 609,988 803,511
Later than five years HBiRAF 203,149 455,212
1,038,059 1,448,575
b) Capital commitments b) &S

Capital commitments of the Group at 31st March 2013
contracted but not provided for in the financial statements
for the purchase of property, plant and equipment was
HK$Nil (2012: HK$7,400,000).
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40.

ﬂ:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

In preparing these financial statements, management is required
to exercise significant judgements in the selection and application
of accounting principles, including making estimates and
assumptions. The following is a review of the more significant
accounting policies that are impacted by judgements and
uncertainties and for which different amounts may be reported
under a different set of conditions or using different assumptions.

a) Critical judgements in applying the Group’s accounting
policies

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following accounting judgements:

(i)  Going Concern

As mentioned in note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements, the directors are satisfied that the Group
will be able to meet its financial obligations in full as
and when they fall due in the foreseeable future. As
the directors are confident that the Group will be able
to continue in operational existence in the foreseeable
future, the consolidated financial statements have
been prepared on a going concern basis. If the going
concern basis is not appropriate, adjustments would
have to be made to restate the values of assets to their
immediate recoverable amounts, to provide for any
further liabilities which might arise and to reclassify
non-current assets and liabilities as current assets and
liabilities respectively. Such adjustments may have a
significant consequential effect on the loss for the year
and net assets of the Group.

(i) Provision for store closure

The provision for store closure of the Group consists
of provisions for store closure costs, compensation to
landlords and other related costs.

The Group recognises and measures a provision for
store closure costs as a provision for onerous contract.
In accordance with HKAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets”, an onerous
contract is a contract in which the unavoidable costs
of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed
the economic benefits expected to be received under
it. The unavoidable costs under a contract reflect the
least net cost of exiting from the contract, which is the
lower of the cost of fulfilling it and any compensation or
penalties arising from failure to fulfill it.

40.

B §5 ER R B 5F

FA & 2 51 FIBR B2 14 5t
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B U TRHERE AN R TR Y2 RER
EHEE - ERSBETR TR RERAT
FL B2 38 5 4 A TR B ©

a) FMEAREES G BRI FIER

RERASESTRENBRETS  BEED
TR AT 2 & 5 #IHf -

%
T
A
I

()

RiRA M IS MK 2 - ARAE
FHREE BRI - AKE
BEETHETAYBAET ANEEA
B AN B 8 59 72 7] 1R 5 e o SR A
BREFEERY  HEPBMERCRE
BRE2EERY - MRBELERE
TAEE  MEFHARSEIEERE
EZHASATREESRE RAEEE
MERE - P BB IRER  UEH
FERBEERBEINOIBRERDE
ERABE ZEHBEAURAAKESF
NEBRREEFEERENHAETE

(i) ARG

AEEBREHBFEFLOBRERERE
BAERRA  XEZWEERMEMA
FAE R RS -

REBMER NG EEHARRAEE
ERBEANRE - REFBEHER
FEITH[HE  HAABERIREE]
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

40. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(Continued)

a) Critical judgements in applying the Group’s accounting
policies (Continued)

(i)

(ifi)

Provision for store closure (Continued)

The Group recognises a provision for store closure
based on the estimated unavoidable costs of meeting
all leases and other obligations under the retail stores,
net of economic benefits expected to be received from
the stores, if any. The Group estimates the provision
based on the amount of compensation payment agreed
with the landlord as a result of early termination of
leases, unfulfilled lease obligations, and economic
benefits estimated to be received from fulfilling the
lease contracts. Management also consults with
retail agencies for certain locations in respect of the
current market trends. The Group also estimates the
provision based on past experience of payout ratio
of the total compensation to the landlords. Estimates
differ depending on the current rent, location, lease
exit terms and management’s assessment of when
the lease term can be terminated early and expected
benefits to be received from fulfilling the leases.
Except for stores which termination contracts have
already been agreed with the landlords, the settlement
of these contracts may be different from the Group’s
estimation subject to the negotiation with the landlords
and the economic benefits estimated to be received.
The Group recognises a provision for compensation to
employees when the Group has a detailed formal plan
for store closure and has communicated the plan to
the employees affected by it. The Group recognises a
provision for other related costs when obligations for
direct expenditures necessarily entailed by the plan
for store closure and not associated with the ongoing
activities of the Group arise.

Fair value of investment properties

Investment properties are stated at fair value based
on valuation performed by independent professional
valuers. The determination of the fair value involves
certain assumptions of market conditions. In relying
on the valuation report, the directors of the Company
have exercised their judgment and are satisfied that the
method of valuation is reflective of the current market
conditions.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

40. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(Continued)

ﬂ:

b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Notes 17 and 32 contain information about the assumptions
and their risk factors relating to valuation of investment
property and fair value of share options granted. Other key
sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

(i)  Write-down of inventories

Inventories are written down to net realisable value
based on an assessment of the realisability of
inventories. Write downs on inventories are recorded
where events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the balances may not be realised. The identification of
write downs requires the use of estimates. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying value of inventories
and write downs of inventories in the periods in
which such estimate has been changed. As at 31st
March 2013, the carrying amount of inventories is
HK$569,071,000 (2012: HK$596,594,000).

(i) Impairment loss on trade and other receivables

The policy for impairment losses is based on an
assessment of the recoverability of trade and other
receivables. Impairments are applied to trade and other
receivables where events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the balances may be uncollectible. The
identification of impairment loss requires the use of
estimates. Where the expectation is different from
original estimates, such difference will impact the
carrying value of receivables and impairment loss
expenses in the period in which such estimate has been
changed. As at 31st March 2013, the carrying amount
of trade and other receivables is HK$32,485,000 (2012:
HK$49,417,000).
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40. A% S 5HYIENR: {45t (48)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

40. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(Continued)

b)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(iii)

Income tax and deferred taxation

The Group estimates its income tax provision
in accordance with the prevailing tax rules and
regulations, taking into account any special approvals
obtained from relevant tax authorities and any
preferential tax treatment to which it is entitled in each
location or jurisdiction in which the Group operates.
There are many transactions and calculations for
which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues
based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be
due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax provisions
in the period in which such determination is made.

The Group believes it has recorded adequate
current tax provision based on the prevailing tax
rules and regulations and its current best estimates
and assumptions. In the event that future tax rules
and regulations or related circumstances change,
adjustments to current taxation may be necessary
which would impact the Group’s results or financial
position. As at 31st March 2013, the carrying amount
of current tax payable and deferred tax liabilities are
HK$3,137,000 (2012: HK$3,614,000) and HK$7,741,000
(2012: HK$8,050,000) respectively.
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41.

42.

ﬂ:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACTS

As at 31st March 2013, the Company had given corporate
guarantee to a bank in connection with banking facilities
granted to the Group amounting to HK$161,200,000 (2012:
HK$130,000,000). Facilities utilized by the Group as at 31st
March 2013 were HK$130,096,000 (2012: HK$130,000,000).
The directors of the Company considered that no recognition
was required because the fair value of such guarantee was
insignificant and that the directors of the Company did not
consider it probable that a claim would be made against the
Company under the guarantee.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(@ In April 2013, BEHFM (L8) ESHRAF], a wholly owned
subsidiary, entered into a loan agreement (the “Agreement”)
with a bank in the PRC. Under the Agreement, the subsidiary
was granted a loan of RMB20 million (equivalents to
HK$25 million) for a period of six months. The bank loan is
unsecured and has been used for purchase of inventories.

(b) On 27th June 2013, Time City (Hong Kong) Limited, a wholly
owned subsidiary, entered into a loan facility agreement of
HK$150 million with Mr. Eav Yin, a director and controlling
shareholder of the Company for a period from 27th June
2013 to 30th September 2014. The loan facilities are bearing
interest at 1% above the Hong Kong dollar prime rate quoted
by the Hong Kong and Shanghai Banking Corporation
Limited per annum.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

43.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2013

Up to the date of issuance of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued the following amendments, new standards
and interpretations which are not yet effective for the year ended
31st March 2013.

The Group has not early applied any of the following new and
revised standards, amendments or interpretations that have been
issued but are not yet effective.

The Group is in the progress of making assessment of what
impact of these amendments is expected to be in the period of
initial application. So far it has concluded the adoption of them
is unlikely to have material impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective

The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant to the
Group’s financial statements, have been issued, but are not yet
effective and have not been early adopted by the Group.
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43.

z

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2013 (Continued)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective (Continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July
2012

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January
2013

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January
2014

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January
2015

Amendments to HKAS 32 “Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities” and Amendments to HKFRS 7 “Disclosures —
Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities”

The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify existing application
issues relating to the offsetting requirements. Specifically, the
amendments clarify the meaning of “currently has a legally
enforceable right of set-off” and “simultaneous realisation and
settlement”.

The amendments to Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard
(“HKFRS”) 7 require entities to disclose information about rights
of offset and related arrangements (such as collateral posting
requirements) for financial instruments under an enforceable
master netting agreement or similar arrangement.

The amended offsetting disclosures are required for annual
periods beginning on or after 1st January 2013 and interim
periods within those annual periods. The disclosures should also
be provided retrospectively for all comparative periods. However,
the amendments to HKAS 32 are not effective until annual
periods beginning on or after 1st January 2014, with retrospective
application required.

The Directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of these amendments may result in more disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurement”

HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for fair value
measurements and disclosures about fair value measurements.
The Standard defines fair value, establishes a framework for
measuring fair value, and requires disclosures about fair value
measurements. The scope of HKFRS 13 is broad; it applies to
both financial instrument items and non-financial instrument items
for which other HKFRSs require or permit fair value measurements
and disclosures about fair value measurements, except in
specified circumstances. In general, the disclosure requirements
in HKFRS 13 are more extensive than those in the current
standards. For example, quantitative and qualitative disclosures
based on the three-level fair value hierarchy currently required for
financial instruments only under HKFRS 7 “Financial Instruments:
Disclosures” will be extended by HKFRS 13 to cover all assets
and liabilities within its scope.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

43.

44.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2013 (Continued)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurement” (Continued)

HKFRS 13 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st
January 2013, with earlier application permitted.

The Directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
this new Standard may result in more extensive disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements.

Other than as described above, the Directors of the Company
anticipate that the application of the other new Standards,
Amendments to Standards and Interpretation will have no material
impact on the results and the financial position of the Group or the
Company.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been realigned to conform to the
current year’s presentation.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

h

FUFREE

For the year ended 31st March 2013 #HE—-ZT—=F=A=+—HILFE

RESULTS 4
Year ended 31st March
BE=A=1+—HLEE
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
—EEhNF —T-TF —FT——F —T—_F —E2-=F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FHET FET FET FET FET
(Restated)
(&3
Turnover EER 618,813 777,464 1,035,326 1,036,249 1,098,593
(Loss)/profit before taxation KA (&518) /i 42,710 56,834 113,876 (50,728) (208,351)
Income tax Frig %t (3,019) (5,603) (16,431) (10,042) (393)
(Loss)/profit for the year FE(BE),H#F 39,691 51,231 97,445 (60,770) (208,744)
Equity attributable to RPN
owners of the Company KRABHFRABA 39,691 51,231 97,445 (60,770) (208,746)
Non-controlling interests IR IR R = - - - - 2
39,691 51,231 97,445 (60,770) (208,744)
(Restated) (Restated)
(251 (E5)
Basic (loss)/earnings BREXR(BER) /BT
per share 6.61¢ 1.71¢ 3.18¢ (6.12)¢ (20.76)¢
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
hEWRHRHS

For the year ended 31st March 2013 #HE—-ZT—=F=A=+—HILFE

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES SEnals

......

As at 31st March

R=A=+—H

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
—TTHEF ZE-TF ZT——F —ZT—=F =ZE-=F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET Fi&or FET FET

(Restated) (Restated)

(E5)) (E31)
Total assets BEE 461,827 520,351 789,079 1,075,672 1,053,139
Total liabilities FEN=R 104,395 115,044 228,977 527,356 506,112
Net assets BEEFE 357,432 405,307 560,102 548,316 547,027

Equity attributable to NN

owners of the Company B AR 357,432 405,307 560,102 538,609 537,318
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR AR R AE 2R - - - 9,707 9,709
Total equity 48 W 2 FE 357,432 405,307 560,102 548,316 547,027

Certain comparative figures have been restated to reflect the adoption ETHRBESEETINARBEQTIEREETZE
of the new and revised HKFRSs. BRI RS AR
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